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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
  

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”) and the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”)which are subject to risks, uncertainties and 
assumptions that are difficult to predict. All statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, other than statements of historical fact, are forward-
looking statements. These forward-looking statements are made pursuant to safe harbor provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. The forward-looking statements include statements, among other things, concerning our business strategy, including anticipated trends
and developments in and management plans for, our business and the markets in which we operate; future financial results, operating results,
revenues, gross margin, operating expenses, products, projected costs and capital expenditures; research and development programs; sales and
marketing initiatives; and competition. In some cases, you can identify these statements by forward-looking words, such as “estimate”, “expect”, 
“anticipate”, “project”, “plan”, “intend”, “believe”, “forecast”, “foresee”, “likely”, “may”, “should”, “goal”, “target”, “might”, “will”, “could”, 
“predict” and “continue”, the negative or plural of these words and other comparable terminology. The forward-looking statements are only 
predictions based on our current expectations and our projections about future events. All forward-looking statements included in this Annual 
Report on Form 10-K are based upon information available to us as of the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. You should not place 
undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update any of these forward-looking statements for any 
reason. These forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results,
levels of activity, performance, or achievements to differ materially from those expressed or implied by these statements. These factors include
the matters discussed in the section entitled “Item 1A: Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Form 10-K. You should carefully consider the risks and 
uncertainties described under this section. 

  
For further information about these and other risks, uncertainties and factors, please review the disclosure included in this report under Item

1A “Risk Factors.” 
  

PART I 
  

Item 1. Business. 
  

In this Report, we use the terms “Company,” “XsunX,” “we,” “us,” and “our,” unless otherwise indicated, or the context otherwise 
requires, to refer to XsunX, Inc.   
  
Organization 
  

XsunX, Inc. (“XsunX,” the “Company” or the “issuer”) is a Colorado corporation formerly known as Sun River Mining Inc. “Sun River”). 
The Company was originally incorporated in Colorado on February 25, 1997. Effective September 24, 2003, the Company completed a plan of
reorganization and name change to XsunX, Inc. 

  
Business Overview 
  

XsunX, Inc. is developing and has begun to market a hybrid manufacturing solution to produce high performance Copper Indium Gallium
(di) Selenide (CIGS) thin film solar cells. Our patent pending processing technology, which we call CIGSolar™, focuses on the mass production
of individual thin-film CIGS solar cells that match silicon solar cell dimensions and can be offered as a non-toxic, high-efficiency and lowest-cost 
alternative to the use of silicon solar cells. We intend to offer licenses for the use of the CIGSolar™ process technology thereby generating
revenue streams through licensing fees and manufacturing royalties for the use of the technology. 

  
Technology Overview 

  
Our efforts have been focused on the development and customization of a series of specialized processing tools that when combined provide

a turn-key high-throughput manufacturing system to produce CIGS solar cells. 
  
Core attributes to our process method are the use of small area thermal co-evaporation techniques coupled with state-of-the-art sputter 

deposition technologies to improve manufacturing output, increase cell efficiency, production yields, and lower the costs for the production of
high efficiency CIGS cells. 

  
There are five (5) core process tools that when combined will produce 156mm format (about 6” square) solar cells. We believe that it will be 

the ability of our system to minimize processing defects while maintaining exceptional per hour production rates that will provide superior
commercial opportunities. CIGSolar™ cells will be manufactured on stainless steel squares sized to match silicon solar cells currently used in
nearly 75% of all solar modules manufactured today. 
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This innovative approach bridges the gap between inexpensive thin-film and costly high efficiency silicon wafer technologies to produce a

new breed of solar cell combining what we believe are the best attributes of each technology. The mass production of individual, high
performance CIGS solar cells – like solar building blocks – we believe will allow solar power to finally compete effectively against other sources
of electrical energy. 

  
CIGS Thin Film Solar Devices  

  
Copper Indium Gallium (di) Selenide (CIGS) exceeds all other thin film solar cell performance to date delivering nearly 20% conversions in

laboratory environments. It is this high efficiency low cost potential for CIGS, and its wide array of potential uses and applications, that we
believe provides the basis to drive the cost of energy production for alternative sources to unprecedented new lows. For this reason many major
research institutes and agencies worldwide view CIGS as a significant solar technology and support continuous development and research efforts
related to CIGS thin films. 

  
We believe that through the successful combination of small area co-evaporation processing techniques with the high rate sputter processing

techniques, overall factory yields (total watts of production per day) can be increased thereby resulting in lower production costs while still
delivering the full energy and low cost potential that CIGS based devices can offer. 
  
CIGS Experience 
  

Our staff experience includes nearly 17years of thin film and CIGS experience in successful technology development, equipment design, and
production of several million square feet CIGS products in a commercial production setting. Our Chief Technology Officer has worked side by
side with leading researchers at NREL and in fact shares an R&D 100 award with NREL staff for efforts related to CIGS technology
development. 

  
In June 2011 the National Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL) certified the peak efficiency conversion of 16.36% achieved by XsunX for

Copper-Indium-Gallium-(di)selenide (CIGS) photovoltaic devices. Overall efficiency of tested samples ranged from 15.3% to 16.36% producing
an average efficiency of 15.91%. The samples provided to NREL was part of a 125mm substrates which after deposition were sub-divided into 
quadrants to produce NREL device test structures and analytical equipment test structures. The purpose was to provide a statistically significant
body of data in support of XsunX’s continuous process improvement efforts. 
  
Sales and Marketing  
  

We have developed and have begun to implement a plan to offer CIGSolar™ technology to existing manufacturers of solar products in the
renewable energy industry. Although XsunX focuses on the development of solar technology and products, we are not a systems or a machine
manufacturer. We have and intend to continue to develop relationships with equipment manufacturers that can build systems to our specifications
thereby allowing us to offer turn-key manufacturing solutions to enable our licensees to manufacturer CIGS cells quickly and inexpensively. 

  
We anticipate that at the conclusion of the initial development of our CIGS technology, that we will generate revenue from an array of

services and license fees from manufacturers that utilize our technologies. These revenue fees may include inception license fees and royalty
streams based upon the efficiencies our unique CIGS technology, guidance for the conversion of new or existing facilities, production line
equipment and systems design and markups, training and implementation, as well as R&D support, and product reliability expertise. 
  
Intellectual Property 
  

We plan to market license opportunities for our technology and not directly manufacture the solar technologies and related products that may
employ the use of our thin film technologies. This business model requires that we develop and maintain intellectual property that includes both
patented and proprietary technologies. We have licensed certain patented and patent pending technologies, and we are developing with the intent
to file for patent protection certain other thin film manufacturing technologies. The following is an outline of certain patents and technologies we
are developing, have acquired,or licensed: 

  
The Company is developing a hybrid manufacturing solution to produce high performance Copper Indium Gallium (di) Selenide (CIGS) thin

film solar cells. Our system and processing technology, which we call CIGSolar™, focuses on the mass production of individual thin-film CIGS 
solar cells that match silicon solar cell dimensions and can be offered as a non-toxic, high-efficiency and lowest-cost alternative to the use of 
silicon solar cells. We have designed a proprietary system for a process known as co-evaporation used in the manufacture of the solar absorbing 
material CIGS. Certain key features related to this system we believe may qualify for patent protection. In November 2010 we filed provisional
patent application with the United States Patent and Trademark Office identifying five (5) claims that through continued system and process
design revisions we have subsequently modified and for which we have elected to forego the filing of utility patent applications at this time, and
in July 2011 we filed three (3) additional claims related to our thermal effusion source design. As we continue to refine our designs and process
technologies we may elect to abandon, modify, or file additional applications and we may 
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we have elected to forego the filing of utility patent applications at this time, and in July 2011 we filed three (3) additional claims related to our
thermal effusion source design. As we continue to refine our designs and process technologies we may elect to abandon, modify, or file additional
applications and we may seek to enforce our claims through filing of utility patents. 

  
In September 2003, the Company was assigned the rights to three patents as part of an Asset Purchase Agreement with Xoptix Inc., a

California corporation. The patents acquired were No. 6,180,871 for Transparent Solar Cell and Method of Fabrication (Device), granted on
January 30, 2001; No. 6,320,117 for Transparent Solar Cell and Method of Fabrication (Method of Fabrication), granted on November 20, 2001;
and No. 6,509,204 for Transparent Solar Cell and Method of Fabrication (formed with a Schottky barrier diode and method of its manufacture),
granted on January 21, 2003. We do not currently employ the use of the above named patents in the development or commercialization of our
CIGSolar™ technology. 

  
As we continue to develop these new technologies, we may actively seek patent protection for certain aspects related to methods and

apparatus we develop. We can give no assurance that any such patent(s) will be granted for any process and manufacturing technology that we
may develop individually or in conjunction with third parties. 

  
We rely on trademark and copyright law, trade secret protection and confidentiality or license agreements with our employees, customers,

partners and others to protect our proprietary rights. We have not been subject to any intellectual property claims. 
  
Company History 
  

XsunX is a Colorado corporation formerly known as Sun River Mining Inc. (“Sun River”). The Company was originally incorporated in 
Colorado on February 25, 1997. Effective September 24, 2003, the Company completed a Plan of Reorganization and Asset Purchase Agreement
(the “Plan”). 
  

Pursuant to the Plan, the Company acquired the following three patents from Xoptix, Inc., a California corporation for Seventy Million
(70,000,000) shares of common stock (post reverse split one for twenty): No. 6,180,871 for Transparent Solar Cell and Method of Fabrication
(Device), granted on January 30, 2001; No. 6,320,117 for Transparent Solar Cell and Method of Fabrication (Method of Fabrication), granted on
November 20, 2001; and No. 6,509,204 for Transparent Solar Cell and Method of Fabrication (formed with a Schottky barrier diode and method
of its manufacture), granted on January 21, 2003. 
  

Pursuant to the Plan, the Company authorized the issuance of 110,530,000 (post reverse split) common shares. Prior to the Plan, the Company
had no tangible assets and insignificant liabilities. Subsequent to the Plan, the Company completed its name change from Sun River Mining, Inc.
to XsunX, Inc. The transaction was completed on September 30, 2003. 
  
Government Contracts 
  

There are no government contracts as of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011. 
  
Competitive Conditions 

  
A number of thin film solar cell technologies have and are being developed by other companies. Such technologies include amorphous

silicon, cadmium telluride, copper-indium-gallium-selenide (CIGS), and copper indium selenide as well as advanced concepts in thin film
crystalline silicon, and the use of organic materials. Given the benefit of time, investment, and advances in manufacturing technologies any of
these competing technologies may be offered in formats delivering power similar or greater to technologies developed that may be developed by
us, and they may also achieve manufacturing costs per watt lower than cost per watt to manufacture technologies developed by us. 
  

In accessing the principal competitive factors in the market for solar electric power products, we use price per watt, stability and reliability,
conversion efficiency, diversity in use applications, and other performance metrics such as scalability of manufacturing processes and the ability
to adapt new technologies into cell designs and the manufacturing process without antiquation of existing infrastructure. If we do not compete
successfully with respect to these or other factors, it could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial
condition. 
  

A number of large companies are actively engaged in the development, manufacturing and marketing of solar electric power products.
Several of the larger TFPV cell suppliers are Q-Cells, Shell Solar, Sharp Corporation, BP Solar, Kyocera Corporation, First Solar, and Energy
Conversion Devices, which together supply the significant portion of the current TFPV market. All of these companies have greater resources to
devote to research, development, manufacturing and marketing than we do. 
  

Other competitive factors lie in the current use of other clean, renewable energy technologies such as wind, ocean thermal, ocean tidal, and
geo-thermal power sources and conventional fossil fuel based technologies for the production of electricity. We expect our primary competition
will be within the solar cell marketplace itself. Barriers to entering the solar cell manufacturing industry include the technical know-how required 
to produce solar cells that maintain acceptable efficiency rates, the design of efficient and scalable manufacturing processes, and access to
necessary manufacturing infrastructure. 
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Compliance with Environmental Laws and Regulations 
  

The operations of the Company are subject to local, state and federal laws and regulations governing environmental quality and pollution
control. Compliance with these regulations by the Company has required that we retain the use of consulting firms to assist in the engineering and
design of systems related to equipment operations, management of industrial gas storage and delivery systems, and occupancy fire and safety
construction standards to deal with emergency conditions. We do not anticipate that these costs will have a material effect on the Company’s 
operations or competitive position, and the cost of such compliance has not been material. The Company is unable to assess or predict at this time
what effect additional regulations or legislation could have on its activities. 
  
Employees and Consultants 
  

As of the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 we had 4 salaried employees. This represents a decrease of 2 employees over the same period
ended 2010. The Company also engages consultants when needed to perform specific functions that otherwise would require an employee. We
have not experienced any work stoppages and we consider relations with our employees to be good. 
  
Available Information 
  

Our website address is www.xsunx.com. We make available on our website access to our Annual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on 
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports that we have filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”). The information found on our website is not part of this or any other report we file with, or furnish to, the SEC. 

  
Item 1A. Risk Factors 
  

An investment in our common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the following risk factors, as well as the
other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, in evaluating XsunX and our business. If any of the following risks occur, our business,
financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely affected. Accordingly, the trading price of our common stock could
decline and you may lose all or part of your investment in our common stock. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the only ones
we face. Additional risks that we currently do not know about or that we currently believe to be immaterial may also impair our business
operations.   
  

We Have Not Generated Any Significant Revenues and Our Financial Statements Raise Substantial Doubt About Our Ability to Continue
As A Going Concern. 
  

We are a development stage company and, to date, have not generated any significant revenues. The accompanying consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, which contemplate
our continuation as a going concern. Net loss for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 was $(1,117,654) and $(2,210,603), respectively.
Net cash used for operations was $(1,117,818) and $(1,347,395) for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. At September 30, 
2011, we had a working capital deficit of $(654,041). From inception through September 30, 2011, we had an accumulated deficit of
$(35,037,459) at September 30, 2011. 
  

The items discussed above raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. We cannot assure you that we can achieve
or sustain profitability in the future. Our operations are subject to the risks and competition inherent in the establishment of a business enterprise.
There can be no assurance that future operations will be profitable. Revenues and profits, if any, will depend upon various factors, including
whether our product development can be completed, whether our products will achieve market acceptance and whether we obtain additional
financing. We may not achieve our business objectives and the failure to achieve such goals would have a materially adverse impact on us. 
  

We expect that we will need to obtain additional financing to continue to operate our business, including capital expenditures to complete
the development of marketable thin film manufacturing technologies, and financing may be unavailable or available only on disadvantageous
terms which could cause the Company to curtail its business operations and delay the execution of its business plan. 
  

We have in the past experienced substantial losses and negative cash flow from operations and have required financing, including equity and
debt financing, in order to pursue the commercialization of products based on our technologies. We expect that we will continue to need
significant financing to operate our business. Although the Company entered into a financing arrangement with Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC
pursuant to which the Company has the right over a 25-month period to receive $50,000 every two business days under such financing
arrangement unless our stock price equals or exceeds $0.20, in which case we can sell greater amounts to Lincoln Park as the price of our
common stock increases, Lincoln Park shall not have the right or the obligation to purchase any shares of our common stock on any business day
that the market price of our common stock is less than $0.08. The registration statement is currently not available for use for sales to Lincoln Park.
Furthermore, there can be no assurance that additional financing will be available or that the terms of such additional financing, if available, will
be acceptable to us. If additional financing is not available or not available on terms acceptable to us, our ability to fund our operations, complete
the development of  
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marketable technologies, develop a sales network, maintain our research and development efforts or otherwise respond to competitive pressures
may be significantly impaired. We could also be forced to curtail our business operations, reduce our investments, decrease or eliminate capital
expenditures and delay the execution of our business plan, including, without limitation, all aspects of our operations, which would have a
material adverse effect on our business. 
  

We may be required to raise additional financing by issuing new securities with terms or rights superior to those of our shares of common
stock, which could adversely affect the market price of our shares of common stock and our business. 
  

We will require additional financing to fund future operations, including expansion in current and new markets, development and acquisition,
capital costs and the costs of any necessary implementation of technological innovations or alternative technologies. We may not be able to obtain
financing on favorable terms, if at all. If we raise additional funds by issuing equity securities, the percentage ownership of our current
stockholders will be reduced, and the holders of the new equity securities may have rights superior to those of the holders of shares of common
stock, which could adversely affect the market price and the voting power of shares of our common stock. If we raise additional funds by issuing
debt securities, the holders of these debt securities would similarly have some rights senior to those of the holders of shares of common stock, and
the terms of these debt securities could impose restrictions on operations and create a significant interest expense for us which could have a
materially adverse effect on our business. 
  

If future products based on technologies we are developing cannot be developed for manufacture and sold commercially or our products
become obsolete or noncompetitive, we may be unable to recover our investments or achieve profitability which will have a materially adverse
effect on our business. 
  

There can be no assurance that such research and development efforts will be successful or that we will be able to develop commercial
applications for our products and technologies. Further, the areas in which we are developing technologies and products are characterized by rapid
and significant technological change. Rapid technological development may result in our products becoming obsolete or noncompetitive. If future
products based on our technologies cannot be developed for manufacture and sold commercially or our products become obsolete or
noncompetitive, we may be unable to recover our investments or achieve profitability. In addition, the commercialization schedule may be
delayed if we experience delays in meeting development goals, if products based on our technologies exhibit technical defects, or if we are unable
to meet cost or performance goals. In this event, potential purchasers of products based on our technologies may choose alternative technologies
and any delays could allow potential competitors to gain market advantages. 
  

There is no assurance that the market will accept our products once development has been completed which could have an adverse effect
on our business. 
  

There can be no assurance that products based on our technologies will be perceived as being superior to existing products or new products
being developed by competing companies or that such products will otherwise be accepted by consumers. The market prices for products based
on our technologies may exceed the prices of competitive products based on existing technologies or new products based on technologies
currently under development by competitors. There can be no assurance that the prices of products based on our technologies will be perceived by
consumers as cost-effective or that the prices of such products will be competitive with existing products or with other new products or
technologies. If consumers do not accept products based on our technologies, we may be unable to recover our investments or achieve
profitability. 
  

Other companies, many of which have greater resources than we have, may develop competing products or technologies which cause
products based on our technologies to become noncompetitive which could have an adverse effect on our business. 
  

We will be competing with firms, both domestic and foreign, that perform research and development, as well as firms that manufacture and
sell solar products. In addition, we expect additional potential competitors to enter the markets for solar products in the future. Some of these
current and potential competitors are among the largest industrial companies in the world with longer operating histories, greater name
recognition, access to larger customer bases, well-established business organizations and product lines and significantly greater resources and
research and development staff and facilities. There can be no assurance that one or more such companies will not succeed in developing
technologies or products that will become available for commercial sale prior to our products, that will have performance superior to products
based on our technologies or that would otherwise render our products noncompetitive. If we fail to compete successfully, our business would
suffer and we may lose or be unable to gain market share. 
  

The loss of strategic relationships used in the development of our thin film manufacturing technologies and products could impede our
ability to complete the development of our products and have a material adverse effect on our business. 
  

We have established a plan of operations under which a portion of our operations rely on strategic relationships with third parties, to provide
systems design, assembly and support. A loss of any of our third party relationships for any reason could cause us to experience difficulties in
implementing our business strategy. There can be no assurance that we could establish other relationships of adequate expertise in a timely
manner or at all. 
  

We may suffer the loss of key personnel or may be unable to attract and retain qualified personnel to maintain and expand our business 
which could have a material adverse effect on our business. 
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Our success is highly dependent on the continued services of a limited number of skilled managers, scientists and technicians. The loss of any
of these individuals could have a material adverse effect on us. In addition, our success will depend upon, among other factors, the recruitment
and retention of additional highly skilled and experienced management and technical personnel. There can be no assurance that we will be able to
retain existing employees or to attract and retain additional personnel on acceptable terms given the competition for such personnel in industrial,
academic and nonprofit research sectors. 
  

We may not be successful in protecting our intellectual property and proprietary rights and may be required to expend significant 
amounts of money and time in attempting to protect these rights. If we are unable to protect our intellectual property and proprietary rights, 
our competitive position in the market could suffer. 

  
Our intellectual property consists of patents, trade secrets, and trade dress. Our success depends in part on our ability to obtain patents and

maintain adequate protection of our other intellectual property for our technologies and products in the U.S. and in other countries. The laws of
some foreign countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent as do the laws of the U.S., and many companies have encountered
significant problems in protecting their proprietary rights in these foreign countries. These problems may be caused by, among other factors, a
lack of rules and methods for defending intellectual property rights. 

  
Our future commercial success requires us not to infringe on patents and proprietary rights of third parties, or breach any licenses or other

agreements that we have entered into with respect to our technologies, products and businesses. The enforceability of patent positions cannot be
predicted with certainty. We intend to apply for patents covering both our technologies and our products, if any, as we deem appropriate. Patents,
if issued, may be challenged, invalidated or circumvented. There can be no assurance that no other relevant patents have been issued that could
block our ability to obtain patents or to operate as we would like. Others may develop similar technologies or may duplicate technologies
developed by us. 

  
We are not currently a party to any litigation with respect to any of our patent positions or trade secrets. However, if we become involved in

litigation or interference proceedings declared by the United States Patent and Trademark Office, or other intellectual property proceedings
outside of the U.S., we might have to spend significant amounts of money to defend our intellectual property rights. If any of our competitors file
patent applications or obtain patents that claim inventions or other rights also claimed by us, we may have to participate in interference
proceedings declared by the relevant patent regulatory agency to determine priority of invention and our right to a patent of these inventions in the
U.S. Even if the outcome is favorable, such proceedings might result in substantial costs to us, including, significant legal fees and other expenses,
diversion of management time and disruption of our business. Even if successful on priority grounds, an interference proceeding may result in loss
of claims based on patentability grounds raised in the interference proceeding. Uncertainties resulting from initiation and continuation of any
patent or related litigation also might harm our ability to continue our research or to bring products to market. 

  
An adverse ruling arising out of any intellectual property dispute, including an adverse decision as to the priority of our inventions would

undercut or invalidate our intellectual property position. An adverse ruling also could subject us to significant liability for damages, prevent us
from using certain processes or products, or require us to enter into royalty or licensing agreements with third parties. Furthermore, necessary
licenses may not be available to us on satisfactory terms, or at all. 

  
Confidentiality agreements with employees and others may not adequately prevent disclosure of trade secrets and other proprietary 

information. 
  
To protect our proprietary technologies and processes, we rely on trade secret protection as well as on formal legal devices such as patents.

Although we have taken security measures to protect our trade secrets and other proprietary information, these measures may not provide
adequate protection for such information. Our policy is to execute confidentiality and proprietary information agreements with each of our
employees and consultants upon the commencement of an employment or consulting arrangement with us. These agreements generally require
that all confidential information developed by the individual or made known to the individual by us during the course of the individual’s 
relationship with us be kept confidential and not be disclosed to third parties. These agreements also generally provide that technology conceived
by the individual in the course of rendering services to us shall be our exclusive property. Even though these agreements are in place there can be
no assurances that that trade secrets and proprietary information will not be disclosed, that others will not independently develop substantially
equivalent proprietary information and techniques or otherwise gain access to our trade secrets, or that we can fully protect our trade secrets and
proprietary information. Violations by others of our confidentiality agreements and the loss of employees who have specialized knowledge and
expertise could harm our competitive position and cause our sales and operating results to decline as a result of increased competition. Costly and
time-consuming litigation might be necessary to enforce and determine the scope of our proprietary rights, and failure to obtain or maintain trade
secret protection might adversely affect our ability to continue our research or bring products to market. 

  
Downturns in general economic conditions could adversely affect our profitability. 
  
Downturns in general economic conditions can cause fluctuations in demand for our products, product prices, volumes and 
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margins. Future economic conditions may not be favorable to our industry. A decline in the demand for our products or a shift to lower-margin 
products due to deteriorating economic conditions could adversely affect sales of our intended products and our profitability and could also result
in impairments of certain of our assets. 

  
Standards for compliance with section 404 of The Sarbanes-Oxley Act Of 2002 are uncertain, and if we fail to comply in a timely manner,

our business could be harmed and our stock price could decline. 
  
This annual report does not include an attestation report of the company's registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over

financial reporting. Management's report was not subject to attestation by the Company's registered public accounting firm pursuant to rules of the
Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the Company to provide only management's report in this annual report. The standards that must 
be met for management to assess the internal control over financial reporting as effective are new and complex, and require significant
documentation, testing and possible remediation to meet the detailed standards and will impose significant additional expenses on us. We may
encounter problems or delays in completing activities necessary to make an assessment of our internal control over financial reporting. If we
cannot assess our internal control over financial reporting as effective, investor confidence and share value may be negatively impacted. 

  
Our common stock is considered a “Penny Stock” and as a result, related broker-dealer requirements affect its trading and liquidity. 
  
Our common stock is considered to be a “penny stock” since it meets one or more of the definitions in Rules 15g-2 through 15g-6 

promulgated under Section 15(g) of the Exchange Act. These include but are not limited to the following: (i) the common stock trades at a price
less than $5.00 per share; (ii) the common stock is not traded on a “recognized” national exchange; (iii) the common stock is not quoted on the 
NASDAQ Stock Market, or (iv) the common stock is issued by a company with average revenues of less than $6.0 million for the past three (3)
years. The principal result or effect of being designated a “penny stock” is that securities broker-dealers cannot recommend our Common Stock to 
investors, thus hampering its liquidity. 

  
Section 15(g) and Rule 15g-2 require broker-dealers dealing in penny stocks to provide potential investors with documentation disclosing the

risks of penny stocks and to obtain a manually signed and dated written receipt of the documents before effecting any transaction in a penny stock
for the investor’s account. Potential investors in our Common Stock are urged to obtain and read such disclosure carefully before purchasing any
of our shares. 

  
Moreover, Rule 15g-9 requires broker-dealers in penny stocks to approve the account of any investor for transactions in such stocks before

selling any penny stock to that investor. This procedure requires the broker-dealer to (i) obtain from the investor information concerning his or her
financial situation, investment experience and investment objectives; (ii) reasonably determine, based on that information, that transactions in
penny stocks are suitable for the investor and that the investor has sufficient knowledge and experience as to be reasonably capable of evaluating
the risks of penny stock transactions; (iii) provide the investor with a written statement setting forth the basis on which the broker-dealer made the 
determination in (ii) above; and (iv) receive a signed and dated copy of such statement from the investor, confirming that it accurately reflects the
investor’s financial situation, investment experience and investment objectives. 

  
The trading market in our common stock is limited and may cause volatility in the market price. 
  
Our common stock is currently traded on a limited basis on the OTCBB. The OTCBB is an inter-dealer, over-the-counter market that 

provides significantly less liquidity than the NASDAQ Stock Market and the other national markets. Quotes for stocks included on the OTCBB
are not listed in the financial sections of newspapers as are those for the NASDAQ Stock Market. Therefore, prices for securities traded solely on
the OTCBB may be difficult to obtain. 

  
The quotation of our common stock on the OTCBB does not assure that a meaningful, consistent and liquid trading market currently exists,

and in recent years such market has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have particularly affected the market prices of many
smaller companies like us. Thus, the market price for our common stock is subject to volatility and holders of common stock may be unable to
resell their shares at or near their original purchase price or at any price. In the absence of an active trading market: 
  

  

  

  
Due to the low price of the securities, many brokerage firms may not be willing to effect transactions in the securities. Even if a purchaser

finds a broker willing to effect a transaction in these securities, the combination of brokerage commissions, state transfer 

Table of Contents

  investors may have difficulty buying and selling or obtaining market quotations;

  market visibility for our common stock may be limited; and

  a lack of visibility for our common stock may have a depressive effect on the market for our common stock.
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taxes, if any, and any other selling costs may exceed the selling price. Further, many lending institutions will not permit the use of such securities
as collateral for any loans.  Such restrictions could have a materially adverse effect on our business. 
  

We may have difficulty raising necessary capital to fund operations as a result of market price volatility for our shares of common stock. 
  

The market price of our common stock is likely to be highly volatile and could fluctuate widely in price in response to various factors, many
of which are beyond our control, including: 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
Because we have a limited operating history with limited revenues to date, you may consider any one of these factors to be material. Our

stock price may fluctuate widely as a result of any of the above listed factors.  In recent years, the securities markets in the United States have
experienced a high level of price and volume volatility, and the market price of securities of many companies have experienced wide fluctuations
that have not necessarily been related to the operations, performances, underlying asset values or prospects of such companies. For these reasons,
our shares of common stock can also be expected to be subject to volatility resulting from purely market forces over which we will have no
control. If our business development plans are successful, we may require additional financing to continue to develop and exploit existing and
new technologies and to expand into new markets. The exploitation of our technologies may, therefore, be dependent upon our ability to obtain
financing through debt and equity or other means. 
  
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments 
  

As of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, there are no unresolved staff comments regarding our previously filed periodic or current 
reports under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. 
  
Item 2. Properties 
  

California Corporate Office Lease 
  
The Company leases facilities in Aliso Viejo, CA. At the lease rate of approximately $1,000 per month. The Company plans to continue to

lease these facilities for the foreseeable future. 
  
Proposed California Facilities Lease 
  
The Company has located and negotiated a month to month proposed sub-lease for facilities located in Irvine California to be used for the 

final assembly, calibration, and marketing of the Company’s multi-chamber CIGSolar thermal coevaporation system which is currently under
construction. The Company intends to commence the lease at the time that system major components are ready for delivery by vendors engaged in
its production for final assembly by XsunX. We intend to operate in this facility for up to one year prior to locating to larger and permanent
facilities. 
  

The Company owns no real property. 
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 • technological innovations or new products and services by us or our competitors;

 • additions or departures of key personnel;

 • sales of our common stock;

 • our ability to integrate operations, technology, products and services;

 • our ability to execute our business plan;

 • operating results below expectations;

 • loss of any strategic relationship;

 • industry developments;

 • economic and other external factors; and

 • period-to-period fluctuations in our financial results.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings 
  

In the ordinary conduct of our business, we may become involved in various lawsuits and legal proceedings, which arise in the ordinary
course of business. However, litigation is subject to inherent uncertainties, and an adverse result in these or other matters may arise from time to
time that may harm our business. We are currently not aware of any such legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have, individually or in
the aggregate, a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or operating results except as set forth below. 

  
None 

  
Item 4. (Removed and Reserved) 
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PART II 
  
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities 
  
Price Range of Common Stock 
  

The Company’s common stock trades on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol “XSNX”.  The range of high, low and close quotations 
for the Company’s common stock by fiscal quarter within the last two fiscal years, as reported by the OTC Bulletin Board, was as follows: 
  

  
The market price for our common stock, like that of other technology companies, is highly volatile and is subject to fluctuations in response

to variations in our operating results, announcements related to technological innovation or business development, or other events and factors. Our
stock price may also be affected by broader market trends unrelated to our performance. 

  
The above quotations reflect inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down, or commission and may not necessarily represent actual 

transactions. 
  
Number of Holders 
  

As of September 30, 2011, there were approximately 280 record holders of the Company’s common stock, not counting shares held in “street 
name” in brokerage accounts which is unknown. As of September 30, 2011, there were 224,998,637 shares of common stock outstanding on
record with the Company’s stock transfer agent, Mountain Share Transfer. On September 30, 2011 the last reported sales price of our common
stock on the OTCBB was approximately $0.06 per share. 
  
Transfer Agent 
  

Our transfer agent is Mountain Share Transfer, Inc. located at 1625 Abilene Drive, Broomfield, CO  80020, 303-460-1149 Telephone, 303-
438-9243 Fax. 

  
Dividends 
  

The Company has not declared or paid any cash dividends on its common stock and does not anticipate paying dividends for the foreseeable 
future. 
  
Stock Option Plan 
  

On January 5, 2007, the Board of Directors of XsunX resolved to establish the Company’s 2007 Stock Option Plan to enable the Company to 
obtain and retain the services of the types of employees, consultants and directors who could contribute to the Company’s long range success and 
to provide incentives which are linked directly to increases in share value which will inure to the benefit of all stockholders of the Company.
Options granted under the Plan may be either Incentive Options or Nonqualified Options and shall be administered by the Company's Board of
Directors ("Board"). Each Option shall be exercisable to the nearest whole share, in installments or otherwise, as the respective Option agreements
may provide. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan or of any Option agreement, each Option shall expire on the date specified in the
Option agreement. A total of 20,000,000 shares of common stock are authorized under the plan. 
  
Stock Compensation, Issuance of Stock Purchase Options 
  

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 eleven million options were granted.  
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Year Ended September 30, 2011 High   Low Close
First Quarter ended December 31, 2010 0.12   0.07 0.07
Second Quarter ended March 31, 2011 0.11   0.07 0.08
Third Quarter ended June 30, 2011 0.10   0.06 0.07
Fourth Quarter ended September 30, 2011 0.09   0.05 0.06

     
Year Ended September 30, 2010     
First Quarter ended December 31, 2009 0.26   0.13 0.16
Second Quarter ended March 31, 2010 0.21   0.11 0.13
Third Quarter ended June 30, 2010 0.15   0.10 0.11
Fourth Quarter ended September 30, 2010 0.12   0.07 0.10
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Table of Equity Compensation 

  
The following table sets forth summary information, as of September 30, 2011, concerning securities authorized for issuance under all equity

compensation plans and agreements for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2011, and 2010 is as follows: 
  

  
A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information follows: 
  

  
The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding issued under the plan as of September 30, 2011 was as follows: 
  

  
Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of stock-based payment awards that is 

ultimately expected to vest. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the financial statements of operations during the year ended
September 30, 2011, included compensation expense for the stock-based payment awards granted prior to, but not yet vested, as of September 30,
2011 based on the grant date fair value estimated, and compensation expense for the stock-based payment awards granted subsequent to 
September 30, 2011, based on the grant date fair value estimated. We account for forfeitures as they occur. The stock-based compensation 
expense recognized in the statement of operations during the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 was $186,016 and $273,133, respectively.

  
Warrants 

  
A summary of the Company’s warrants activity and related information follows: 
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Risk free interest rate 1.67% to 2.77%
Stock volatility factor 90.56% to 104.73%
Weighted average expected option life 5 years 
Expected dividend yield None 

  9/30/2011  9/30/2010
 Weighted  Weighted
 Number average Number  average
 of exercise of  exercise
  Options  price  Options  price

Outstanding, beginning of year 10,180,000 $ 0.27 10,180,000  $ 0.27 
Granted 11,000,000 $ 0.10 —    $ —   
Exercised —  $ —  —    $ —   
Expired  —    $ —    —    $ —   
Outstanding, end of year 21,180,000 $ 0.18 10,180,000  $ 0.27 

Exercisable at the end of year 8,544,159 $ 0.27 6,858,328  $ 0.29 

Weighted average fair value of       
 options granted during the year     $ 0.10      $ —   

  Weighted
  Average
  Stock Stock Remaining

Exercisable  Options Options Contractual
Prices  Outstanding  Exercisable  Life (years)
$0.46   1,150,000 950,000 0.32 years  
$0.53   100,000 100,000 0.40 years  
$0.45   100,000 100,000 0.56 years  
$0.41   100,000 100,000 0.91 years  
$0.36   2,500,000 1,500,000 1.07 years  
$0.36   500,000 500,000 1.12 years  
$0.36   500,000 500,000 1.16 years  
$0.36   115,000 115,000 2.03 years  
$0.16   5,115,000 4,679,159 1.50 years  
$0.10   11,000,000  —    4.05 years  

   21,180,000  8,544,159    
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At September 30, 2011, the weighted average remaining contractual life of warrants outstanding: 
  

  
Recent Sales of Securities (Registered and Unregistered) 
  

The authorized Common stock of the Company was established at 500,000,000 shares with no par value.The Company is also authorized to
issue 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.01 per share. The rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of the
preferred stock will be determined by the Board of Directors prior to issuance of such shares.The following represents a detailed analysis of the 
fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 Common stock transactions. 

  
During the year ended September 30, 2011, pursuant to an S-1 Registration Statement declared effective by the SEC on June 30, 2010, and a

Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 registration declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 4, 2011 the Company sold
to Lincoln Park Capital Group, LLC (LPC) a total of approximately 6,853,376 shares for a total investment of $575,000. These shares were sold
at various pricing between $0.08 and $0.0888 per share. An additional 159,720 of the remaining pool of 1,236,112 commitment shares were
issued on a pro rata basis to LPC as LPC has purchased additional shares pursuant to the effective S-1 Registration Statement. The registration 
statement is currently not available for use for sales to Lincoln Park. 

  
During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Company also issued 5,000,000 units composed of one share of restricted common stock and

a five year warrant exercisable to purchase two shares of Common Stock at $0.04 per share for cash of $200,000; 1,250,000 shares of restricted
common stock at a price of $0.04 per share for cash of $50,000; a holder of warrants exercised all available 5,000,000 warrants utilizing a
cashless exercise provision resulting in the net issuance of 2,680,204 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock. The above shares were 
issued in a transactions exempt from registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. 

  
Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC Transaction 

  
On March 30, 2010, XsunX signed a $5 million stock purchase agreement with Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC (“LPC”), an Illinois limited 

liability company. Upon signing the agreement, XsunX received $500,000 from LPC as an initial purchase under the $5 million dollar
commitment in exchange for 5,000,000 shares of our common stock. We also entered into a registration rights agreement with LPC whereby we
agreed to file a registration statement related to the transaction with the U.S. Securities & Exchange Commission (“SEC”) covering the shares that 
have been issued or may be issued to LPC under the purchase agreement. On April 30, 2010, XsunX, Inc. filed a Form S-1 with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission seeking to register 27,500,000 shares related to our financing agreements with LPC. The registration was declared
effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 30, 2010. On March 29, 2011 we filed a Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 Form S-
1 with the Securities and Exchange Commission seeking to maintain the registration for the 27,500,000 shares related to our financing agreements
with LPC. The Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 registration was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 4,
2011. Subject to the effective registration statement related to the transaction, we have the right over a 25-month period to sell our shares of
common stock to LPC in amounts up to $500,000 per sale, depending on certain conditions as set forth in the purchase agreement, up to the
aggregate commitment of $5 million. 
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  9/30/2011  9/30/2010
 Weighted   Weighted
 Number average Number  average
 of exercise of  exercise
  Options  price  Options  price

Outstanding, beginning of year 4,195,332 $ 0.61 4,195,332  $ 0.61
Granted 10,000,000 $ 0.04 —    $ —  
Exercised (5,000,000) $ (0.04) —    $ —  
Expired  (612,000)  $ (0.73)  —    $ —   
Outstanding, end of year  8,583,332  $ 0.32  4,195,332  $ 0.61 

Exercisable at the end of year 8,583,332 $ 0.32 4,047,332  $ 0.64

Weighted average fair value of     
 warrants granted during the year    $ 0.04     $ —   

  Weighted
  Average
  Remaining

Exercisable  Warrants Warrants Contractual
Prices  Outstanding Exercisable Life (years)
$0.20   250,000 250,000 0.25 years  
$0.50   1,666,666 1,666,666 1.09 years  
$0.75   1,666,666 1,666,666 1.09 years  
$0.04   2,500,000 2,500,000 4.30 years  
$0.04   2,500,000  2,500,000  4.46 years  

   8,583,332  8,583,332    
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There are no upper limits to the price LPC may pay to purchase our common stock, and the purchase price of the shares related to the $4.5

million of future funding will be based on the prevailing market prices of the Company’s shares at the time of sales without any fixed discount. 
The Company will control the timing and amount of any sales of shares to LPC. LPC shall not have the right or the obligation to purchase any
shares of our common stock on any business day that the price of our common stock is below $0.08. 

  
In consideration for entering into the $5 million agreement which provides for an additional $4.5 million of future funding, we issued to LPC

1,250,000 shares of our common stock as a financing inception commitment and shall issue an equivalent amount of shares pro rata as LPC
purchases the additional $4.5 million. The common stock purchase agreement may be terminated by us at any time at our discretion without any
cost to us. Except for a limitation on variable priced financings, there are no negative covenants, restrictions on future funding’s, penalties or 
liquidated damages in the agreement. The proceeds received by the Company under the common stock purchase agreement are expected to be
used in the development of thin film manufacturing equipment and technologies, general and administrative costs, and general working capital. 

  
Pursuant to the stock purchase agreement with LPC and the S-1 Registration Statement declared effective by the SEC on June 30, 2010, the

Company has sold to Lincoln Park Capital Fund, LLC through September 30, 2011, approximately 12,410,184 shares for a total investment of
$1,125,000 including the initial $500,000 and 5,000,000 shares. These shares were sold at various pricing between $0.08 and $0.10 per share.
Including 1,250,000 shares provided to LPC as financing inception commitment shares, and an additional 173,608 commitment shares issued pro
rata as LPC has purchased additional shares, as of September 30, 2011 13,666,208 registered shares remain available for future sales pursuant to
the effective S-1 Registration Statement. The registration statement is currently not available for use for sales to Lincoln Park. 
  
Issuance of Shares for Services 
  

None 
 

Use of Proceeds from the Sale of Securities 
  

The proceeds from the above sales of securities were and are being used primarily to fund efforts by the Company to develop marketable
technologies for the manufacture of thin film solar technologies, and in the day-to-day operations of the Company and to pay the accrued 
liabilities associated with these operations. 
  
Item 6. Selected Financial Data 
  

N/A  
  
Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operations 

  
Cautionary and Forward-Looking Statements 
  
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our

consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition to historical 
consolidated financial information, the following discussion and analysis contains forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties 
and assumptions as described under the “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” that appears earlier in this Annual Report 
on Form 10-K. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated by these forward-looking statements as a result of many factors, 
including those discussed under “Item 1A: Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
  

The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after 
the date hereof. Readers should carefully review the factors described in other documents the Company files from time to time with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission, including the Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Annual Report on Form 10-K filed and any Current Reports on 
Form 8-K filed by the Company. 
  
Business Overview 
  

XsunX, Inc. is developing and has begun to market a hybrid manufacturing solution to produce high performance Copper Indium Gallium
(di) Selenide (CIGS) thin film solar cells. Our patent pending processing technology, which we call CIGSolar™, focuses on the mass production
of individual thin-film CIGS solar cells that match silicon solar cell dimensions and can be offered as a non-toxic, high-efficiency and lowest-cost 
alternative to the use of silicon solar cells. We intend to offer licenses for the use of the CIGSolar™ process technology thereby generating
revenue streams through licensing fees and manufacturing royalties for the use of the technology. 

  
Our efforts have been focused on the development and customization of a series of specialized processing tools that when 
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combined provide a turn-key high-through put manufacturing system to produce CIGS solar cells. 

  
Core attributes to our process method are the use of small area thermal co-evaporation techniques coupled with state-of-the-art sputter 

deposition technologies to improve manufacturing output, increase cell efficiency, production yields, and lower the costs for the production of
high efficiency CIGS cells. 

  
There are five (5) core process tools that when combined will produce 156mm format (about 6” square) solar cells. We believe that it will be 

the ability of our system to minimize processing defects while maintaining exceptional per hour production rates that will provide superior
commercial opportunities. CIGSolar™ cells will be manufactured on stainless steel squares sized to match silicon solar cells currently used in
nearly 75% of all solar modules manufactured today. 

  
This innovative approach bridges the gap between inexpensive thin-film and costly high efficiency silicon wafer technologies to produce a

new breed of solar cell combining what we believe are the best attributes of each technology. The mass production of individual, high
performance CIGS solar cells – like solar building blocks – we believe will allow solar power to finally compete effectively against other sources
of electrical energy. 

  
Plan of Operations 

  
For the fiscal year ending September 30, 2012, the Company has developed a plan of operations focused on the assembly of a multi-chamber 

CIGSolar™ thermal co-evaporation system to provide hands-on access to interested customers of a production-sized multi-chamber CIGSolar™ 
system. We plan to add support systems necessary to establish limited scale pilot CIGS solar cell production capabilities to enhance marketing
and sales efforts, continued CIGSolar™ process improvement, and to support general business development efforts related to the
commercialization of our CIGS solar cell manufacturing technology. 

  
Our Plan of Operations, based upon the aforementioned activities, requires $1.03 million for general and administrative activities, $239

thousand to support increased sales and marketing efforts, and $1.48 million to establish a limited scale production system for use in marketing
and sales efforts through the use of the system to demonstrate the CIGSolar™ technologies, continued process development and improvement 
under our technology license model, and for support purposes of the systems that may be placed in the field as we work to commercialize our
CIGSolar™ manufacturing technology. 
  

The Company may change any or all of the budget categories in the execution of its business attempts. None of the items is to be considered
fixed or unchangeable. 
  

Management believes the summary data and audit presented herein is a fair presentation of the Company’s results of operations for the 
periods presented. Due to the Company’s change in primary business focus and new business opportunities these historical results may not
necessarily be indicative of results to be expected for any future period. As such, future results of the Company may differ significantly from
previous periods. 
  
Results of Operations for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2011Compared to Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2010. 

Revenue and Cost of Sales: 

The Company generated no revenues in the fiscal years ended September 30, 2011, and 2010. There were no associated costs of goods sold in
any of the fiscal periods represented above. The Company to date has had minimal revenue and cost of sales, and is still in the development stage. 

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses: 

Selling, General and Administrative (SG&A) expenses decreased by $(524,272) during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 to $946,459
as compared to $1,470,731 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. The decrease in SG&A expenses was related primarily to a general
reduction to salaries, staffing, and operating expenses under the Company’s re-focused plan of operations for the development of a new 
CIGSolar™ thin film solar manufacturing technology. We anticipate that expenditures associated with the commercial development and sales of
our thin-film solar manufacturing technologies will increase SG&A expenditures in the future. However, we plan to offer our technology as a
licensable process to existing solar product manufacturers which we anticipate will mitigate future expenditures that would normally be associated
with our need to establish direct large scale manufacturing capabilities and the associated facility infrastructure. 

Research and Development:  

Research and development decrease slightly by $(10,507) during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 to $282,492 as  
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compared to $292,999 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. The decrease was primarily due to a reduction in research related employees
used in the period on the development of our new cross-industry thin film solar manufacturing technology CIGSolar™.  

During portions of the fiscal year research and development efforts included the use of third party equipment vendors whose equipment we may
use as part of our integrated CIGSolar™ manufacturing system. These vendors assist with access to equipment and technologies that we are
working to customize for use in our manufacturing processes. During the fiscal year while reducing direct research and development costs we
prepared plans and began efforts to establish each of the various system capabilities necessary for our technology within our own facilities for use
in continued process improvement, marketing efforts, and future systems sales support. We anticipate that future R&D expense will again
increase as we complete this process establishing each of the various system capabilities within our own facilities. 

Net Loss:  

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, our net loss was $(1,117,654) as compared to a net loss of $(2,210,603) for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2010. This decrease in Net Loss of $(1,092,949) compared to the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010was primarily due to
a decrease in write down of assets, which resulted in an expense of $313,671. Also, the decrease in net loss was due to the Company’s overall 
decrease in operating expenses. The Company anticipates the trend of losses to continue in future periods until the Company can recognize sales
of significance of which there is no assurance. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources  

We had a working capital deficit at September 30, 2011 of $(654,041), as compared to a working capital deficit of $(727,848) as of
September 30, 2010. The increase of $73,807 in working capital was the result of a decrease in accounts payable, with a similar decrease in cash.
There was no revenue producing activities for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011. 

Cash flow used by operating activities was $(1,117,818) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, as compared to cash flow used by
operating activities of ($1,347,395) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. The decrease in cash flow used of $(229,577) by operating
activities was primarily due to a decrease in stock option expense and accounts payable, and an increase in other assets and accrued expenses. 

Cash flow provided by investing activities was $158,972 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, as compared to cash flow provided in
investing activities of $14,100 during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. The net increase in investing activities was primarily due to
proceeds received of $17,000 from the sale of certain assets, and a deposit refunded due to cancellation of a purchase order in the amount of
$230,000, offset by a payment made on a purchase order of $81,975, compared to the prior fiscal year. 

Cash flow provided by financing activities was $825,000 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, as compared to cash provided by
financing activities of $1,003,000 during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. The decrease in cash flow provided by financing activities
was the result of a reduction to cash provided through equity financing. Our capital needs have primarily been met from the proceeds of private
placements, as we are currently in the development stage and had no revenues. 

The Company is currently engaged in efforts to develop a cross-industry thin film solar manufacturing technology that we believe provides an
opportunity for XsunX to establish a competitive advantage within the solar industry. However the cash flow requirements associated with the
completion of these development efforts, and the transition to revenue recognition will exceed cash generated from operations in the current and
future periods. We will need to seek to obtain additional financing from equity and/or debt placements. We have been able to raise capital in a
series of equity and debt offerings in the past. While there can be no assurances that we will be able to obtain such additional financing, on terms
acceptable to us and at the times required, or at all, we believe that sufficient capital can be raised in the foreseeable future as necessary. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
  

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships such as entities often referred to as structured finance
or special purpose entities that would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance-sheet arrangements or for other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. As such, we are not exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had
engaged in such relationships. 
  
Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 
  

Our products will be quoted for sale and licensure in United States dollars and as our business development efforts progress we anticipate the
sale and/or licensure of our products to foreign entities. To the extent that we may be exposed to foreign currency risks related to the rise and/or
fall of foreign currencies against the U.S. dollar we will report in United States dollars. 

  
Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data 
  

All financial information required by this Item is attached hereto at the end of this report beginning on page F-1 and is hereby incorporated by 
reference.   
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All financial information required by this Item is attached hereto at the end of this report beginning on page F-1 and is hereby incorporated by 

reference.   
  

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 
  

Effective as of July 17, 2009, the board of directors of the Company approved the engagement of HJ Associates& Consultants, LLP (“HJ”) as 
its principal independent registered public accounting firm to audit the Company’s financial statements. During the Company’s two (2) most 
recent fiscal years, as well as the subsequent interim period through the Effective Date, there were no disagreements between the Company and
HJ on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedures, which disagreements if not
resolved to their satisfaction would have caused them to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with HJ’s report. 
During the Company’s most recent two (2) fiscal years, as well as the subsequent interim period through the Effective Date, HJ did not advise the
Company of any of the matters identified in Item 304(a)(v)(A) - (D) of Regulation S-K. 

  
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures 
  
Disclosure Controls and Procedures 
  

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as such
term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report. The evaluation
included certain control areas in which we have made, and are continuing to make, changes to improve and enhance controls. A material
weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low
level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited
may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Based on such
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer have concluded that, as of the end of such period, our disclosure controls and
procedures were effective, and we have discovered no material weakness. 

  
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
  

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control structure and procedures over financial reporting (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) under the Exchange Act. The SEC rule making for the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Section 404 
requires that a company's internal controls over financial reporting be based upon a recognized internal control framework. Our management
conducted an assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of September 30, 2011 based on the framework set
forth in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) 
that has been modified to more appropriately reflect the current limited operational scope of the Company as a Development Stage company. The
Company used the COSO guide - The Internal Control over Financial Reporting - Guidance for Smaller Public Companies to implement the 
Company’s internal control framework. Additionally, the limited scope of operations of the Company means that traditional separation of duties
controls are not used by the Company as a result of the limited staffing within the Company. The Company relies on alternative procedures to
overcome this non-material control weakness. 
  

During the Company's fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, management continued to assess the Company's internal and controls procedure
documents basing any need for revision upon additional guidance for implementing the model framework created by COSO as is appropriate to
our operations and operations of smaller public entities. This framework is entitled Internal Control-Integrated Framework. The COSO
Framework, which is the common shortened title, was published in 1992 and has been updated, and we believe will satisfy the SEC requirements
of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. As the Company expands operations, additional staff will be added to implement separation of
duties controls as well. 

  
Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Operating Officer concluded that our internal control over financial

reporting as of September 30, 2011 was effective. Internal control over financial reporting cannot provide absolute assurance of achieving
financial reporting objectives because of its inherent limitations. Internal control over financial reporting is a process that involves human
diligence and compliance and is subject to lapses in judgment and breakdowns resulting from human failures. Because of such limitations, there is
a risk that material misstatements may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis by internal control over financial reporting. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  

 
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
  

Except as noted above, there have not been any changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as such term is defined in  
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Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during our fourth fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to 
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.  
  
Auditors Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

  
This annual report does not include an attestation report of the company's registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over

financial reporting. Management's report was not subject to attestation by the company's registered public accounting firm pursuant to temporary
rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission that permit the company to provide only management's report in this annual report. 

  
Item 9B. Other Information 
  

As part of the Company’s operating plans, and efforts to maximize the use of its capital resources towards the assembly of its initial baseline
multi-chamber CIGSolar™ thermal co-evaporation system, the Company’s CEO, COO, and CTO agreed effective October 2011 to salary
reductions under which each executive would receive an annualized salary of $120,000. 
  

On October 24, 2011, in exchange for a promissory note (the “Note”) of $456,921 plus accrued interest of $98,645 that had become due at
September 1, 2011, the Company issued 7,000,000 restricted shares of common stock as payment for the reduction of $205,565 of principal and
accrued interest balance under the Note, and exchanged the Note for and issued a new unsecured promissory exchange note (the “Exchange 
Note”) in the amount of $350,000. The note bears interest at 10% per annum and matures on September 30, 2012. 

  
On October 27, 2011, and again on December 7, 2011 XsunX, Inc. (the "Company") consummated a Securities Purchase Agreement (the

"Purchase Agreements") providing for the sale by the Company of 8% unsecured Convertible Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $53,000
and $42,500 respectively (the “Note”) which amounts were advanced immediately at the time of each sale. The October 27, 2011 Note matures on
July 31, 2012, and the December 7, 2011 Note matures on September 12, 2012. The Company has the right to redeem a portion or all amounts
outstanding under the either Note prior to one hundred and eighty one days from issuance of the Note under a variable redemption rate premium.
After one hundred and eighty days the holder may convert into shares of common stock at a conversion price of sixty percent of the average
lowest five closing bid prices for the common stock, during the ten trading day period ending on the latest complete trading day prior to the
conversion date. The holder has certain rights of first refusal related to financings of less than seventy five thousand dollars by the Company, and
in the event of certain default conditions the Company may be subject a default premium of fifty percent. 
  
Issuance of Stock Purchase Options 
  

In October 2010, the Board of Directors authorized the grant of stock option agreements to the named employees listed below as follows: 
  

  
The vesting schedule for Mr. Grimes is as follows: 
  
The option shall become exercisable in the following amounts upon the delivery and/or achievement by the optionee(s) of the following

performance milestones: 
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Date 

Issued  
Number 
Issued

Exercise 
Price

Expiration 
Date Consideration

Joseph Grimes October 18, 2010   1,000,000 $ 0.10 18-Oct-15
Future key deliverables within the scope 
of the employees influence

Robert G. Wendt October 18, 2010   10,000,000 $ 0.10 18-Oct-15
Future key deliverables within the scope 
of the employees influence

(a) The Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 1,000,000 shares upon Optionee’s management of the assembly and operation of 
initial baseline CIGSolar process equipment contemplated under the Company’s CIGS solar cell equipment and technology plan, and 
the subsequent production of 1,000 full size solar cells (dimension of 125 or 156 mm square) that achieve a minimum of >10%
conversion efficiency over a five (5) day operating period in which the system operates at the designed through-put speed range 
delivering a cell yield of >80%. Cells measured at AM1.5 using a light source and tester calibrated to NIST standards.  

(b) In the event of a sale or merger of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets to an acquiring party following which the Company 
would not be a surviving operating entity, the Company will provide Optionee a fifteen (15) day prior notice of such proposed event
providing for immediate vesting of all remaining unvested Options under this Agreement. 
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The vesting schedule for Mr. Wendt is as follows: 
  
The option shall become exercisable in the following amounts upon the delivery and/or achievement by the optionee(s) of the following

performance milestones: 
  

  

  

  

  
Additionally, in October 2010, the Board of Directors authorized amendments to prior option grants issued to the named employee listed 

below as follows: 
  

  

Table of Contents

(a) The Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 1,000,000 shares upon the award to the Company of atleast one patent issued by
the United States Patent and Trademark Office protecting a key element to the Company’s CIGSolar manufacturing approach in which 
Optionee had an instrumental involvement in either the design, development, prosecution, or inception of the intellectual property. 

(b) The Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 4,000,000 shares upon Optionee’s assembly and/or management of the assembly 
and operation of initial baseline CIGSolar process equipment contemplated under the Company’s CIGS solar cell equipment and 
technology plan, and the subsequent production of 1,000 full size solar cells (dimension of 125 or 156 mm square) that achieve a
minimum of  >10% conversion efficiency over a five (5) day operating period in which the system operates at the designed through-put 
speed range delivering a cell yield of  >80%. Cells measured at AM1.5 using a light source and tester calibrated to NIST standards. 

(c) The Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 5,000,000 shares upon Optionee’s assembly and/or management of the assembly 
and operation of commercial CIGSolar production equipment prepared for use by the Company, or for delivery to a third party by the
Company for use in a commercial setting, and the subsequent production of 2,000 full size solar cells (dimension of 125 or 156 mm
square) that achieve a minimum of  > 12% conversion efficiency while operating over a five (5) day operating period in which the
system operates at the designed through-put speed range delivering a cell yield of  >85%. Cells measured at AM1.5 using a light source 
and tester calibrated to NIST standards. 

(d) Achievement of each milestone to be reviewed and determined by the Company’s Board of Directors prior to the Company 
acknowledgment of any vesting rights by Optionee. Determination by the Board of Directors will be provided within ten (10) business
days from notice to the Company by Optionee of milestone achievement. Notice by Optionee shall contain all relevant information
necessary for the Board of Directors to review and make a determination. 

Grant 
Number

Optionee 
Name

Amended Terms 

07-016 Robert Wendt Section 3(i) (b) Exercise of Option was amended as follows; This Option shall 
become exercisable in the amount of 100,000 shares upon production by Optionee of 
a >10% NREL CIGS device produced on glass substrate.  Device measured at 
AM1.5 using a light source and tester calibrated to NIST standards

07-023 Robert Wendt Section 3(i) (a,b,c) Vesting Schedule was amended as follows; 
(a) This Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 250,000 shares upon 
production by Optionee of a >10% NREL CIGS device produced on stainless steel 
substrate. Device measured at AM1.5 using a light source and tester calibrated to 
NIST standards.” 
  
“(b) This Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 250,000 shares upon 
production by Optionee of one >10% full size 125 mm pseudo square cell on stainless 
steel (SS). Device measured at AM1.5 using a light source and tester calibrated to 
NIST standards.” 
  
“(c) Intentionally Omitted”

34-2009 Robert Wendt Section 3(i) (a) Exercise of Option was amended as follows; All remaining unvested 
Options under this Agreement shall vest and become exercisable upon production by 
Optionee, and third party validation, of functioning >10% full size 125 mm pseudo 
square cells on stainless steel (SS) – minimum 20 cells. Cells measured at AM1.5 
using a light source and tester calibrated to NIST standards.” 
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PART III 

  
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corporate Governance 
  

The following table lists the executive offices and directors of the Company during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011: 
  

  
The above listed directors will serve until the next annual meeting of the stockholders or until their death, resignation, retirement, removal, or

disqualification, and until their successors have been duly elected and qualified. Vacancies in the existing Board of Directors are filled by majority
vote of the remaining Directors. There are no agreements or understandings for any officer or director to resign at the request of another person
and no officer or director is acting on behalf of or will act at the direction of any other person. There is no family relationship between any of our
directors. 

  
The directors of the Company will devote such time to the Company’s affairs on an “as needed” basis, but typically less than 20 hours per 

month. As a result, the actual amount of time which they will devote to the Company’s affairs is unknown and is likely to vary substantially from 
month to month. 

  
Biographical Information 
  
Mr. Tom Djokovich, age 54, Chief Executive Officer and a Director as of October 2003,acting Principal Accounting Officer as of September 
2009; 
  

Mr. Djokovich was the founder and served from 1995 to 2002 as the Chief Executive Officer of Accesspoint Corporation, a vertically
integrated provider of electronic transaction processing and e-business solutions for merchants. Under Mr. Djokovich’s guidance, Accesspoint 
became a member of the Visa/MasterCard association, the national check processing association NACHA, and developed one of the payment
industry’s most diverse set of network based transaction processing, business management and CRM systems for both Internet and conventional
points of sale. Prior to Accesspoint, Mr. Djokovich founded TMD Construction and Development in 1979. TMD provided management for
multimillion-dollar projects incorporating at times hundreds of employees, subcontractors and international material acquisitions for commercial,
industrial and custom residential construction services as a licensed building and development firm in California. In 1995 Mr. Djokovich
developed an early Internet based business-to-business ordering system for the construction industry. 

  
Mr. Joseph Grimes, age 54, Chief Operating Officer as of April 2006, a Director as of August 2008, and President as of March 2009; 
  

Mr. Grimes brings to XsunX more than eight years direct experience in thin-film technology and manufacturing. He was most recently Vice 
President, Defense Solutions, for Envisage Technology Company, where he directed and managed the defense group business development
process, acquisition strategies and vision for next generation applications from October 2005 to March 2006. Previously he was Co-Founder, 
President and CEO of ISERA Group, where he established the company infrastructure and guided five development teams, finally selling the
company to Envisage from 1993 to 2005. His direct experience in thin-film technology came with Applied Magnetics Corporation from 1985 to
1993 as manager for thin-film prototype assembly. Mr. Grimes holds a Bachelor’s degree in business economics and environmental studies, and a 
Master’s in computer modeling and operation research applications, both from the University of California at Santa Barbara. 

 
Mr. Robert Wendt, age 49, Chief Technology Officer as of March 2009; 
  

Mr. Wendt holds a B.S. and M.S. in Metallurgical Engineering and Material Science from the Colorado School of Mines. His responsibility
encompasses technical specification of the facilities, equipment, and manufacturing processes for XsunX. Prior to joining XsunX in 2007, Mr.
Wendt served at various times as Vice President of Sales, Product Development, and Engineering at Global Solar Energy from May 1996 to 2005.
At Global Solar, Mr. Wendt has led and directed several areas including copper indium 
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Name  Age  Position Held  Tenure
Tom Djokovich  54  CEO, Director, Secretary, and acting 

Principal Accounting Officer
 CEO and Director since October 

2003, Secretary and PAO since 
September 2009

Joseph Grimes  54  President, COO, Director  President since March 2009, COO 
since April 2006, and as a director 
Since August 2008

Robert Wendt  49  CTO Since March 2009
Thomas Anderson  46  Director Since August 2001
Oz Fundingsland  68  Director Since November 2007
Michael Russak  64  Director Since November 2007
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gallium di-selenide (CIGS) technology development, equipment design and integration, facilities design and construction, engineering,
production, and operations   
  

Prior to Global Solar, Mr. Wendt was at ITN with responsibility for the development of thin-film deposition technologies, thin-film PV, and 
development of charge controller/battery systems for portable solar cell powered systems. Prior to joining ITN, Mr. Wendt spent eight years with
Lockheed Marietta Astronautics, Denver Division. While in this position, Mr. Wendt was program manager/principal investigator on over 20
material-based programs. During 1994/1995, Mr. Wendt was the technical lead for thin-film PV research at the Denver Division. 

  
Independent Directors 
  
Mr. Thomas Anderson, age 46, became a director of the Company in August 2001; 
  

Mr. Anderson presently works as the Director of Southwest Business Operations for American Capital Energy, a commercial and utility scale
solar integrator. He has been with American Capital Energy since October, 2008.  He recently served as Managing Director of the Environmental
Science and Engineering Directorate of Qinetiq North America in Los Alamos, New Mexico. He was with Qinetiq North America, formerly
Apogen Technologies, from January, 2005, through September, 2008. Mr. Anderson worked for 19 years in the environmental consulting field,
providing consulting services in the areas of environmental compliance, characterization and remediation services to Department of Energy,
Department of Defense, and industrial clients. He formerly worked as a Senior Environmental Scientist at Concurrent Technologies Corp. from
November 2000 to December 2004. He earned his B.S. in Geology from Denison University and his M.S. in Environmental Science and
Engineering from Colorado School of Mines. 
  
Mr. Oz Fundingsland as Director, age 68, became a director of the Company in November 2007; 
  

On November 12, 2007, the Company announced the appointment of Mr. Oz Fundingsland as Director, effective November 12, 2007. Mr.
Fundingsland brings over forty years of sales, marketing, executive business management, finance, and corporate governance experience to
XsunX. His professional and business experience principally originated with his tenure, commencing in 1964, at Applied Magnetics Corp., a disk
drive and data storage company. Prior to his retirement from Applied Magnetics in 1994, Mr. Fundingsland served as an Executive Officer and
Vice President of Sales and Marketing for 11 years directing sales growth from $50 million to over $550 million. Commencing in 1993 through
2003 Mr. Fundingsland served as a member of the board of directors for the International Disk Drive Equipment Manufacturers Association
“IDEMA” where he retired emeritus, and continues to serve as an advisor to the board. For the last 13 years, Mr. Fundingsland has provided
consulting services assisting with sales, marketing, and management to a host of companies within the disk drive, optical, software, and LED
industries. 
  
Dr. Michael A. Russak as Director, age 64, became a director of the Company in November 2007; 
  

On November 28, 2007, the Company announced the appointment of Dr. Michael A. Russak as a Director, effective November 26, 2007. Dr.
Russak is also a member of the Company’s Scientific Advisory Board. Dr. Michael A. Russak currently holds the position of Executive Vice
President of Business Development with Intevac, Inc. in Santa Clara, CA. He has been working as a consultant in the hard disk drive and
photovoltaic industries since Jan 2007. He is also currently the Executive Director of IDEMA-U.S. (the hard disk drive industry trade association) 
and a member of the Board of Directors and Scientific Advisory Board of XsunX, Inc. From 2001 to 2006 he was President and Chief Technical
Officer of Komag, Inc., a manufacturer of hard magnetic recording disks for hard disk drive applications. From 1993 to 2001 he was Chief
Technical Officer of HMT Technology, Inc. also a manufacturer of magnetic recording disks. From 1985 to 1993 he was a research staff member
and program manager in the Research Division of the IBM Corporation. Dr. Russak has over thirty five years of industrial experience progressing
from a research scientist to senior executive officer of two public companies. He has expertise in thin film materials and devices for magnetic
recording, photovoltaic, solar thermal applications, semiconductor devices as well as glass, glass-ceramic and ceramic materials. He also has over 
twelve years’ experience at the executive management level of public companies with significant off shore development and manufacturing
functions. He received his B.S. in Ceramic Engineering in 1968 and Ph.D. in Materials Science in 1971, both from Rutgers University in New
Brunswick, NJ. During his career, he has been a contributing scientist and program manager at the Grumman Aerospace Corporation, a Research
Staff Member and technical manager in the areas of thin film materials and processes at the Research Division of the IBM Corporation at the T.J.
Watson Research Laboratories. In 1993, he joined HMT Technology, a manufacturer of thin film disks for magnetic storage, as Vice President of
Research and Development. His responsibilities included new product design and introduction. Dr. Russak became Chief Technical Officer of
HMT and held that position until 2000 when HMT merged with Komag Inc. Dr. Russak was appointed President and Chief Technical Officer of
the combined company. He continued to set technical, operational and business direction for Komag until his retirement at the end of 2006. He
has published over 90 technical papers, and holds 23 U.S. patents. 
  
Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings 
  

None of the members of the Board of Directors or other executives has been involved in any bankruptcy proceedings, criminal proceedings,
any proceeding involving any possibility of enjoining or suspending members of our Board of Directors or other 
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executives from engaging in any business, securities or banking activities, and have not been found to have violated, nor been accused of having
violated, any federal or state securities or commodities laws. 
  
Board Committees; Audit Committee 
  

As of September 30, 2011, the Company’s board was comprised of five directors, three of which are considered independent directors and the
Company did not have an audit committee. Further, none of the members of the board of directors is qualified as a financial expert. We are a
development stage company with limited resources and we are actively seeking a qualified financial expert for addition to the board. The board of
directors will appoint committees as necessary, including an audit committee as resources permit.  In the meantime, the Board serves as the
Company’s audit committee utilizing business judgment rules and good faith efforts. 
  
Section 16(A) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance 
  

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires the Company’s officers and directors, and certain persons who own more than 10% of a registered
class of the Company’s equity securities (collectively, “Reporting Persons”), to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership (“Section 16 
Reports”) with the SEC. Reporting Persons are required by the SEC to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16 Reports they file.  Based 
on its review of the copies of such forms received by it, or written representations from certain reporting persons, the Company believes that,
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, all filing requirements applicable to its officers, directors, and greater than ten-percent beneficial 
owners were complied with the exception that one report, covering an aggregate of two transactions were not timely filed by the chief executive
officer with the SEC via Form 4 or via year-end report on Form 5. 
  
Code of Ethics 
  

The Company’s board of directors adopted a Code of Ethics policy on January 7, 2008. 
  
Item 11. Executive Compensation 
  
Overview 
  

We are a development stage Company and we rely on our board of directors to evaluate compensation and incentive offerings made by the
Company as it applies to our executive officers, and efforts to attract and maintain qualified staff. To date, our compensation policy has been
conducted on a case by case basis with input from our chief executive officer, and focused on the following three primary areas; (a) salary
compensatory with peer group companies and peer position, (b) cash bonuses tied to sales and revenue attainment, and (c) long term equity
compensation tied to strategic objectives of establishing marketable solar technologies. 

  
In this Compensation Discussion and Analysis, the individuals in the Summary Compensation Table set forth below are referred to as the

“named executive officers”. Generally, the types of compensation and benefits provided to the named executive officers may be similar to what
we intend to provide to future executive officers. 

 
Executive Compensation 
  

The following table sets forth information with respect to compensation earned by our chief executive officer, our chief operating officer, and
our chief technical officer (collectively, our “named executive officers”) for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2011, and 2010 respectively. 

Summary Compensation Table 
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Name and Principal Position  Year   
Salary 
($)

Bonus 
($)

Stock 
Awards
($)

Option 
Awards 
($)  

All Other 
Compensation
($) 

Total 
($)

         

Tom Djokovich, CEO(1)

  

2011 
2010 

     

165,000
165,000

0
0

0
0

0
0

  

4,800
4,800

169,800
169,800

Joe Grimes, COO(2)

  

2011 
2010 

     

157,500
157,500

0
0

0
0

0
0

  

4,800
4,800

162,300
162,300

Robert Wendt, CTO(3)

  

2011 
2010 

     

165,000
160,384

0
0

0
0

0
0

  

4,800
4,800

169,800
165,184
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No other compensation not described above was paid or distributed during the listed fiscal years to the executive officers of the Company. 

  
Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table 
  

The following table sets forth summary information regarding all grants of plan-based awards made to our named executive officers during 
the two years ended September 30, 2011, and 2010 respectively. 
  

  
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year End Table 
  

The following table sets forth the outstanding equity awards with respect our named executive officers for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2011 
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 (1) In addition to Mr. Djokovich’s base compensation the Company also provides Mr. Djokovich with a $400 monthly
health insurance allowance.

 (2) In addition to Mr. Grimes base compensation the Company also provides Mr. Grimes with a $400 monthly health
insurance allowance.  

   
 (3) In addition to Mr. Wendt’s base compensation the Company also agreed to provide Mr. Wendt with a $400 monthly

health insurance allowance.

Name
Grant 
Date

All Other 
Option 

Awards: 
Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Options 

  
(#)

Exercise or 
Base Price 
of Option 
Awards 

  
($/Sh)   

Grant Date 
Fair Value of 

Stock and 
Option Awards 

  
($)

    
 Tom Djokovich, CEO 2011 0 0   0
 2010 0 0   0
     
 Joe Grimes, COO 2011 1,000,000 0.10   80,000
 2010 0 0   0
     
Robert Wendt, CTO 2011 10,000,000 0.10   800,000
 2010 0 0   0

OPTION AWARDS  STOCK AWARDS

Name  

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 
Options (#) 
Exercisable  

Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercised 

Unearned 
Options (#) 

Unexercisable  

Equity 
Incentive Plan 

Awards: 
Number of 
Securities 

Underlying 
Unexercisable 

Unearned 
Options (#)  

Option 
Exercise 
Price ($)  

Option 
Expiration 

Date  

Number 
of Shares 
or Unites 
of Stock 

That 
Have Not 

Vested 
(#)  

Market 
Value of 
Shares or 
Unites of 
Stock that 
Have Not 
Vested ($)  

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan Awards: 
Number of 
Unearned 

Shares, Units 
or Other 

Rights That 
Have Not 
Vested (#)  

Equity 
Incentive 

Plan 
Awards: 
Market 

or Payout 
Value of 
Unearned 
Shares, 
Units or 
Other 
Rights 
That 

Have Not 
Vested 

(#)

Tom Dhikovich, CEO   —     —   —  —  —     —     —  —  
                 
Joseph Grimes, COO   400,000   100,000 500,000 $ 0.46 1/26/2012 —     —     —  —  
   0   500,000 500,000 $ 0.36 10/23/2012 —     —     —  —  
   2,500,000   0 2,500,000 $ 0.16 4/1/2014 —     —     —  —  
   0   10,000,000 10,000,000 $ 0.10 10/18/2015 —         
                 
Robert Wendt, CTO   400,000   100,000 500,000 $ 0.46 1/26/2012 —     —     —  —  
   0   500,000 500,000 $ 0.36 10/23/2012 —     —     —  —  
   2,500,000   0 2,500,000 $ 0.16 4/1/2014 —     —     —  —  
   0   10,000,000 10,000,000 $ 0.10 10/18/2015 —     —     —  —  
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Option Exercises  
  

None 
  
Pension Benefits 
  

None 
  
Nonqualified Defined Contribution and Other Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plans 
  

None 
  
Employment Agreements and Arrangements 
  

Tom M. Djokovich 
  

Mr. Djokovich serves as our chief executive officer, acting principal accounting officer, and a director. We do not have an employment
agreement with Mr. Djokovich. He currently works at the discretion of the board of directors as he has since October 2003. His annual base salary
compensation for the 2011 fiscal period was $165,000, and he was provided a $400 per month allowance for use in the payment of medical
benefits. His total compensation is based solely on the annual base cash salary and we do not have any equity based, cash bonus, or special
compensation agreements or understanding in place with Mr. Djokovich. Mr. Djokovich is also subject to confidentiality and non-solicitation 
provisions which provide that Mr. Djokovich will not divulge information or solicit employees for 24 months after termination of his
employment. 

  
Joseph Grimes 
  
Mr. Grimes serves as our chief operating officer, president, and a director. As of January 2011 the employment agreement between the

Company and Mr. Grimes had expired and he currently works at the discretion of the board of directors. His annual base salary compensation for
the 2011 fiscal period was $157,500, and he was provided a $400 per month allowance for use in the payment of medical benefits. Mr. Grimes is
also subject to confidentiality and non-solicitation provisions which provide that Mr. Grimes will not divulge information or solicit employees for
24 months after termination of his employment. 

   
Robert Wendt 
  
Mr. Wendt serves as our chief technology officer. As of January 2011 the employment agreement between the Company and Mr. Wendt had

expired and he currently works at the discretion of the board of directors. His annual base salary compensation for the 2011 period was $165,000,
and he was provided a $400 per month allowance for use in the payment of medical benefits. Mr. Wendt is also subject to confidentiality and non-
solicitation provisions which provide that Mr. Wendt will not divulge information or solicit employees for 24 months after termination of his
employment. 
  
Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change-In-Control 

  
Terms of a two year Key Employee Retention Agreement dated September 1, 2009, with Mr. Robert Wendt, our chief technical officer,

provided that in the event that Mr. Wendt’s employment was terminated by the Company without good cause, Mr. Wendt may have receive
twelve months salary at the then salary rate at time of termination, twelve months Company paid costs for actual costs incurred by Mr. Wendt for
medical benefits related to COBRA coverage, and a relocation payment up to $2,500. The agreement expired in September 2011 and the
Company did not incur any costs associated with the agreement prior to its expiration. 
  
Long Term Incentive Plans — Awards in Last Fiscal Year 
  

The following table and notes set forth the incentive awards provided to named officers of the Company in 2011 fiscal period. 
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Date 

Issued  
Number 
Issued

Exercise 
Price

Expiration 
Date Consideration

Joseph Grimes October 18, 2010   1,000,000 $ 0.10 18-Oct-15
Future key deliverables within the scope of 
the employees influence

Robert G. Wendt October 18, 2010   10,000,000 $ 0.10 18-Oct-15
Future key deliverables within the scope of 
the employees influence
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The vesting schedule for Mr. Grimes is as follows: 
  

  

  
The vesting schedule for Mr. Wendt is as follows: 
  
The option shall become exercisable in the following amounts upon the delivery and/or achievement by the optionee(s) of the following

performance milestones: 
  

  

  

  

  
Additionally, in October 2010, the Board of Directors authorized amendments to prior option grants issued to the named employee listed 

below as follows: 
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(a) The Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 1,000,000 shares upon Optionee’s management of the assembly and operation of 
initial baseline CIGSolar process equipment contemplated under the Company’s CIGS solar cell equipment and technology plan, and 
the subsequent production of 1,000 full size solar cells (dimension of 125 or 156 mm square) that achieve a minimum of  >10%
conversion efficiency over a five (5) day operating period in which the system operates at the designed through-put speed range 
delivering a cell yield of  >80%. Cells measured at AM1.5 using a light source and tester calibrated to NIST standards. 

(b) In the event of a sale or merger of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets to an acquiring party following which the Company 
would not be a surviving operating entity, the Company will provide Optionee a fifteen (15) day prior notice of such proposed event
providing for immediate vesting of all remaining unvested Options under this Agreement. 

(a) The Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 1,000,000 shares upon the award to the Company of a least one patent issued by
the United States Patent and Trademark Office protecting a key element to the Company’s CIGSolar manufacturing approach in which 
Optionee had an instrumental involvement in either the design, development, prosecution, or inception of the intellectual property. 

(b) The Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 4,000,000 shares upon Optionee’s assembly and/or management of the assembly 
and operation of initial baseline CIGSolar process equipment contemplated under the Company’s CIGS solar cell equipment and 
technology plan, and the subsequent production of 1,000 full size solar cells (dimension of 125 or 156 mm square) that achieve a
minimum of  >10% conversion efficiency over a five (5) day operating period in which the system operates at the designed through-put 
speed range delivering a cell yield of  >80%. Cells measured at AM1.5 using a light source and tester calibrated to NIST standards. 

(c) The Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 5,000,000 shares upon Optionee’s assembly and/or management of the assembly 
and operation of commercial CIGSolar production equipment prepared for use by the Company, or for delivery to a third party by the
Company for use in a commercial setting, and the subsequent production of 2,000 full size solar cells (dimension of 125 or 156 mm
square) that achieve a minimum of  > 12% conversion efficiency while operating over a five (5) day operating period in which the
system operates at the designed through-put speed range delivering a cell yield of  >85%. Cells measured at AM1.5 using a light source 
and tester calibrated to NIST standards. 

(d) Achievement of each milestone to be reviewed and determined by the Company’s Board of Directors prior to the Company 
acknowledgment of any vesting rights by Optionee. Determination by the Board of Directors will be provided within ten (10) business
days from notice to the Company by Optionee of milestone achievement. Notice by Optionee shall contain all relevant information
necessary for the Board of Directors to review and make a determination. 

Grant 
Number

Optionee 
Name

Amended Terms 

07-016 Robert Wendt Section 3(i) (b) Exercise of Option was amended as follows; This Option shall 
become exercisable in the amount of 100,000 shares upon production by Optionee of 
a >10% NREL CIGS device produced on glass substrate.  Device measured at 
AM1.5 using a light source and tester calibrated to NIST standards

07-023 Robert Wendt Section 3(i) (a,b,c) Vesting Schedule was amended as follows; 
  
(a) This Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 250,000 shares upon 
production by Optionee of a >10% NREL CIGS device produced on stainless steel 
substrate. Device measured at AM1.5 using a light source and tester calibrated to 
NIST standards.” 
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Director Compensation 
  

In the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, Directors received no additional cash or non-cash compensation for their service to the 
Company as directors.  All Directors were reimbursed for any expenses actually incurred in connection with attending meetings of the Board of
Directors. 
  

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE OF DIRECTORS 
  

  
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation 
  

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 no adjustments or additions to new or existing employment agreements were reviewed and 
deliberated by the five members of the Company’s Board of Directors. 
  
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters 
  

The following table sets forth, as of September 30, 2011, the number of shares of common stock owned of record and beneficially by
executive officers, directors and persons who hold 5.0% or more of the outstanding common stock of the Company. Also included are the shares
held by all executive officers and directors as a group. Unless otherwise indicated, the address of each beneficial owner listed below is c/o XsunX,
Inc., 65 Enterprise, Aliso Viejo, California 92656. 
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“(b) This Option shall become exercisable in the amount of 250,000 shares upon 
production by Optionee of one >10% full size 125 mm pseudo square cell on stainless 
steel (SS). Device measured at AM1.5 using a light source and tester calibrated to 
NIST standards.” 
  
“(c) Intentionally Omitted” 

34-2009 Robert Wendt Section 3(i) (a) Exercise of Option was amended as follows; All remaining unvested 
Options under this Agreement shall vest and become exercisable upon production by 
Optionee, and third party validation, of functioning>10% full size 125 mm pseudo 
square cells on stainless steel (SS) – minimum 20 cells. Cells measured at AM1.5 
using a light source and tester calibrated to NIST standards.” 

Name  

Fees 
Earned or 

Paid in 
Cash  

($)

Stock 
Awards 

($)

Option 
Awards 

($)

All  
Other  

Compensation 
 

($)  
Total 

($)
Tom Djokovich  $ 0 0 0 0  $ 0
Joseph Grimes  $ 0 0 0 0  $ 0
Thomas Anderson  $ 0 0 0 0  $ 0
Oz Fundingsland  $ 0 0 0 0  $ 0
Dr. Michael Russak  $ 0 0 0 0  $ 0

Shareholders/Beneficial Owners  
Number of 

Shares  
Ownership 

Percentage(1)

Tom Djokovich(2) 
President & Director 

 
14,993,000 6.5%

Thomas Anderson 
Director 

 
1,500,000 < 1%

Oz Fundingsland 
Director 

 
500,000 < 1%

Mike Russak 
Director 

 
600,000 < 1%

Joseph Grimes 
Chief Operating Officer 

 
2,900,000 1.3%

Robert Wendt 
Chief Technical Officer 

 
3,000,000 < 1.3%
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All directors and executive officers as a group of (6 persons) account for ownership of 23,493,000 shares representing 10.13% of the issued 

and outstanding common stock. Each principal shareholder has sole investment power and sole voting power over the shares. 
  

  

  
Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence 

  
No officer, director, or related person of the Company has or proposes to have any direct or indirect material interest in any asset proposed to

be acquired by the Company through securities holdings, contracts, options or otherwise or any transaction in which the amount involved exceeds
the lesser of $120,000 or one percent of the Company's total assets at year end. 

  
The Company has adopted a policy under which any consulting or finder’s fee that may be paid to a third party for consulting services to 

assist management in evaluating a prospective business opportunity can be paid in stock, stock purchase options or in cash. Any such issuance of
stock or stock purchase options would be made on an ad hoc basis. Accordingly, the Company is unable to predict whether or in what amount
such a stock issuance might be made. 

  
The following directors are independent:  Thomas Anderson, Oz Fundingsland and Dr.Michael Russak. 
  
The following directors are not independent:  Tom Djokovich and Joseph Grimes. 

  
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services 

  
Audit Fees 2011 

  
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 HJ Associates & Consultants, LLP had incurred $28,600 for the following professional 

services: review of the interim financial statements included in quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended December 30, 2010, March 
31, 2011, June 30, 2011 and for audit fees related to the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K. No other fees were billed by HJ Associates & 
Consultants, LLP in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011. 
  
Audit Fees 2010 

  
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010 HJ Associates & Consultants, LLP had incurred $51,000 for the following professional 

services: review of the interim financial statements included in quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended December 30, 2009, March 
30, 2010, June 30, 2010, and for audit fees related to the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K. No other fees were billed by HJ Associates & 
Consultants, LLP in the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010. 
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 (1) Applicable percentage ownership is based on 231,998,637 shares of common stock issued and outstanding as of
December 29, 2011. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. Shares of common stock that
are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of December 29, 2011 are deemed to be beneficially owned by the
person holding such securities for the purpose of computing the percentage of ownership of such person, but are not
treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

 (2) Includes 14,068,000 shares owned by the Djokovich Limited Partnership. Mr. Djokovich shares voting and dispositive
power with respect to these shares with Mrs. Djokovich.

26



  
PART IV 

  
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules 

  
Exhibits: 
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Exhibit  Description
3.1  Articles of Incorporation(1)

3.2  Bylaws(2)

10.1  XsunX Plan of Reorganization and Asset Purchase Agreement, dated September 23, 2003.(3)

10.2  XsunX 2007 Stock Option Plan, dated January 5, 2007.(4)

10.3
 

Common Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of March 30, 2010, by and between the Company and Lincoln Park Capita
LLC. (5)

10.4  Registration Rights Agreement dated as of March 30, 2010, by and between the Company and Lincoln Park Capital Fund
10.5  Form S-1 and S-1/A related to the filing of a registration statement by the Company (6)(7)

10.6
 

Form S-1/A related to the filing of a Post-Effective Amendment No. 1 registration statement by the Company.(8) 
  

10.7  Form of Security Purchase Agreement used in connection with the sale of equity to an accredited investor totaling 1,250
of restricted common stock.(9)

10.8  Form of Security Purchase and Warrant Agreement used in connection with the sale of equity to accredited investors of 5
units composed of one share of restricted common stock and a five year warrant exercisable to purchase two shares of Co
Stock, and the same Warrant Agreement used in connection with the cashless exercise by a holder of 5,000,000 warrants

10.9  Form of Exchange Agreement and Exchange Note used in connection with the exchange, partial repayment, and extensio
promissory note that had become due September 1, 2011. (9)

10.10  Form of Securities Purchase Agreement and Convertible Promissory Note used in connection with the sale of two conve
promissory notes in the aggregate amount of $95,500. (9)

10.11  Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the issuance of Options to Joseph Grimes, October 2010(10)

10.12  Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the issuance of options to Robert Wendt, October 2010(10)

16.1  Auditor Letter(9)

31.1  Sarbanes-Oxley Certification(9)

31.2  Sarbanes-Oxley Certification(9)

32.1  Sarbanes-Oxley Certification(9)

32.2  Sarbanes-Oxley Certification(9)

(1) Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement Form 10SB12G #000-29621dated February 18, 2000 and by reference to exhibits
included with the Company’s prior Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission dated October 29, 200

(2) Incorporated by reference to Registration Statement Form 10SB12G #000-29621 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
dated February 18, 2000.

(3) Incorporated by reference to exhibits included with the Company’s Report on Form 8-K/A filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission dated October 29, 2003.

(4) Incorporated by reference to exhibits included with the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission dated January 5, 2007.

(5) Incorporated by reference to exhibits included with the Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission dated April 1, 2010.

(6) Incorporated by reference to exhibits included with the Company’s Report on Form S-1 filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission dated April 30, 2010.

(7) Incorporated by reference to exhibits included with the Company’s Report on Form S-1/A filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission dated June 25, 2010.

(8) Incorporated by reference to exhibits included with the Company’s Post-Effective Amendment No.1 Report on Form S-1/A filed with
Securities and Exchange Commission dated March 29, 2011.

(9) Provided herewith.
(10) Incorporated by reference to exhibits included with the Company’s Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission dated December 29, 2010.
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SIGNATURES 

  
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be 

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
  

  
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of 

the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 
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Date: December 29, 2011 XSUNX, INC.
 
 By: /s/ Tom Djokovich   
 Name: Tom Djokovich
 Title: CEO and Principal Accounting Officer

/s/ Tom Djokovich  December 29, 2011
Tom Djokovich, Chief Executive Officer, 
Principal Executive Officer, Principal 
Financial and Accounting Officer, and Director 

  

 
/s/ Joseph Grimes  December 29, 2011
Joseph Grimes, President, Chief Operating Officer and Director   
 
/s/ Thomas Anderson  December 29, 2011
Thomas Anderson, Director   
 
/s/ Oz Fundingsland  December 29, 2011
Oz Fundingsland, Director   
 
/s/ Michael Russak  December 29, 2011
Michael Russak, Director   
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 
  
 
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders 
XsunX, Inc. (A Development Stage Company) 
Alisa Viejo, California 
  
We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of XsunX, Inc. (a development stage company) as of September 30, 2011 and 2010 and the
related statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years then ended and for the period from February 25, 1997
(inception) to September 30, 2011. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The financial statements for the period from February 25, 1997 (inception)
to September 30, 2008 were audited by other auditors and our opinion, insofar as it relates to cumulative amounts included for such prior periods,
is based solely on the reports of such other auditors. 
  
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
  
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of XsunX, Inc. (a
development stage company) as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended and
for the period from February 25, 1997 (inception) to September 30, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 
  
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 1
to the financial statements, the Company does not generate significant revenue and has negative cash flows from operations which raise
substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note 1. The 
financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. 
  
/s/ HJ Associates & Consultants, LLP 
HJ Associates & Consultants, LLP 
Salt Lake City, Utah 
December 29, 2011 
  

Table of Contents
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XSUNX, INC. 

(A Development Stage Company) 
Balance Sheets 

  

  

  
  
  
  
  

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements 

Table of Contents

  September 30, 2011  September 30, 2010
  

ASSETS    
    
CURRENT ASSETS    
  Cash $ 66,576  $ 200,422
  Other receivable —    2,500
  Prepaid expenses  9,204  14,061 
    
                       Total Current Assets  75,780  216,983 
    
PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT    
  Office & miscellaneous equipment 29,841  28,942
  Machinery & equipment 177,699  354,541
                    Total Property & Equipment 207,540  383,483
    Less accumulated depreciation  (164,472)  (307,995)
    
                    Net Property & Equipment  43,068  75,488 
    
OTHER ASSETS    
  Manufacturing equipment in progress 81,975  230,000
  Security deposit 3,200  3,200
    
                       Total Other Assets 85,175  233,200
    
                       TOTAL ASSETS $ 204,023  $ 525,671

    
    
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT    
    
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
  Accounts payable $ 167,420  $ 418,288
  Accrued expenses 8,740  8,945
  Credit card payable 1,099  10,728
  Accrued interest on note payable 95,641  49,949
  Note payable 456,921  456,921
    
                       Total Current Liabilities 729,821  944,831
    
    
                      TOTAL LIABILITIES  729,821  944,831 
    
SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT    
  Preferred stock, $0.01 par value;    
    50,000,000 authorized preferred shares —    —  
  Common stock, no par value;    
    500,000,000 authorized common shares    
    224,998,637 and 209,055,337 shares issued and outstanding, respectively 25,638,369  24,813,369
  Additional paid in capital 5,238,213  5,238,213
  Paid in capital, common stock warrants 3,635,079  3,449,063
  Deficit accumulated during the development stage (35,037,459)  (33,919,805)
    
                     TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT (525,798)  (419,160)
    
                     TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' DEFICIT  $ 204,023  $ 525,671 

F-1



  
XSUNX, INC. 

(A Development Stage Company) 
Statements of Operations 

  
  

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements 
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   From Inception
   Feb ruary 25, 1997
 Years Ended  through
 September 30, 2011 September 30, 2010  September 30, 2011
   

REVENUE  $ —    $ —    $ 14,880 
    
OPERATING EXPENSES    
   Selling, general and administrative expenses 946,459 1,470,731  17,876,800
   Research and development 282,492 292,999  3,163,954
   Depreciation and amortization expense 38,472 86,948  687,826
    
             TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,267,423 1,850,678  21,728,580
    
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS BEFORE  OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSE) (1,267,423) (1,850,678)  (21,713,700)
    
OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES)    
   Interest income —  44  445,537
   Gain/(Loss) on sale of asset 17,000 (577)  16,423
   Impairment of assets —  (253,671)  (7,285,120)
   Write down of inventory asset —  (60,000)  (1,177,000)
   Gain on legal settlement 179,580 —    1,279,580
   Loan fees —  —    (7,001,990)
   Forgiveness of debt —  —    592,154
   Other, non-operating —  —    (5,215)
   Penalties (596) —    (596)
   Interest expense  (46,215)  (45,721)  (187,532)
    
             TOTAL OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES)  149,769  (359,925)  (13,323,759)
    
        NET LOSS  $ (1,117,654)  $ (2,210,603)  $ (35,037,459)

    
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE  $ (0.01)  $ (0.01)   

    
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE COMMON SHARES OUTSTANDING    
     BASIC AND DILUTED 218,617,564 204,441,056  
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XSUNX, INC. 

(A Development Stage Company) 
Statements of Stockholders' Equity 

From Inception February 25, 1997 to September 30, 2011 

  
The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements  
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       Accumulated
    Additional Stock Options/    during the
  Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-in Warrants  Treasury Stock  Development
  Shares  Amount Shares Amount Capital Paid-in-Capital  Shares  Stage Total

Balance at September 30, 1997  —    $ —  —  $ —  $ —  $ —    $ —    $ —  $ —  
              
Issuance of stock for cash   —     —  15,880 217,700 —  —     —    —  217,700
Issuance of stock to Founders   —     —  14,110 —  —  —     —    —  —  
Issuance of stock for consolidation   —     —  445,000 312,106 —  —     —    —  312,106
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 1997   —     —  —  —  —     —    (193,973) (193,973)
Balance at September 30, 1997   —     —  474,990 529,806 —  —     —    (193,973) 335,833
              
Issuance of stock for services   —     —  1,500 30,000 —  —     —    —  30,000
Issuance of stock for cash   —     —  50,200 204,000 —  —     —    —  204,000
Consolidation stock cancelled   —     —  (60,000) (50,000) —  —     —    —  (50,000)
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 1998   —     —    —    —    —    —     —    (799,451)  (799,451)
Balance at September 30, 1998   —     —  466,690 713,806 —  —     —    (993,424) (279,618)
              
Issuance of stock for cash   —     —  151,458 717,113 —  —     —    —  717,113
Issuance of stock for services   —     —  135,000 463,500 —  —     —    —  463,500
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 1999   —     —  —  —  —  —     —    (1,482,017) (1,482,017)
Balance at September 30, 1999   —     —  753,148 1,894,419 —  —     —    (2,475,441) (581,022)
              
Issuance of stock for cash   —     —  15,000 27,000 —  —     —    —  27,000
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2000   —     —  —  —  —  —     —    (118,369) (118,369)
Balance at September 30, 2000   —     —  768,148 1,921,419 —  —     —    (2,593,810) (672,391)
              
Extinguishment of debt   —     —  —  337,887 —  —     —    —  337,887
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2001   —     —  —  —  —  —     —    (32,402) (32,402)
Balance at September 30, 2001   —     —  768,148 2,259,306 —  —     —    (2,626,212) (366,906)
              
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2002   —     —  —  —  —  —     —    (47,297) (47,297)
Balance at September 30, 2002   —     —  768,148 2,259,306 —  —     —    (2,673,509) (414,203)
              
Issuance of stock for assets   —     —  70,000,000 3 —  —     —    —  3
Issuance of stock for cash   —     —  9,000,000 225,450 —  —     —    —  225,450
Issuance of stock for debt   —     —  115,000 121,828 —  —     —    —  121,828
Issuance of stock for expenses   —     —  115,000 89,939 —  —     —    —  89,939
Issuance of stock for services   —     —  31,300,000 125,200 —  —     —    —  125,200
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2003   —     —  —  —  —  —     —    (145,868) (145,868)
Balance at September 30, 2003   —     —  111,298,148 2,821,726 —  —     —    (2,819,377) 2,349
              
Issuance of stock for cash   —     —  2,737,954 282,670 —  —     —    —  282,670
Warrant expense   —     —  —  —  —  825,000   —    375,000 1,200,000
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2004   —     —    —    —    —    —     —    (1,509,068)  (1,509,068)
Balance at September 30, 2004   —     —  114,036,102 3,104,396 —  825,000   —    (3,953,445) (24,049)
              
Issuance of stock for cash   —     —  6,747,037 531,395 —  —     —    —  531,395
Issuance of stock for services   —     —  3,093,500 360,945 —  —     —    —  360,945
Warrant expense   —     —  —  —  —  180,000   —    —  180,000
Beneficial conversion   —     —  —  —  400,000 —     —    —  400,000
Shares held as collateral for debentures   —     —  —  —  —  —     26,798,418  —  —  
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2005   —     —    —    —    —    —     —    (1,980,838)  (1,980,838)
Balance at September 30, 2005   —     —  123,876,639 3,996,736 400,000 1,005,000   26,798,418  (5,934,283) (532,547)
              
Issuance of stock for services   —     —  72,366 31,500 —  —     —    —  31,500
Warrant expense   —     —  —  —  —  996,250   —    —  996,250
Beneficial conversion   —     —  —  —  5,685,573 —     —    —  5,685,573
Debenture conversion   —     —  21,657,895 5,850,000 —  —     —    —  5,850,000
Issuance of stock for interest expense   —     —  712,956 241,383 —  —     —    —  241,383
Issuance of stock for warrant conversion   —     —  10,850,000 3,171,250 —  —     —    —  3,171,250
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2006   —     —    —    —    —    —     —    (9,112,988)  (9,112,988)
Balance at September 30, 2006 (restated)   —     —  157,169,856 13,290,869 6,085,573 2,001,250   26,798,418  (15,047,271) 6,330,421
              
Cancellation of stock for services returned   —     —  (150,000) —  —  —     —    —  —  
Release of security collateral   —     —  —  —  —  —     (26,798,418)  —  (26,798,418)
Issuance of stock for warrants   —     —  900,000 135,000 —  —     —    —  135,000
Stock option and warrant expense   —     —  —  —  —  772,315   —    —  772,315
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2007   —     —    —    —    —    —     —    (1,968,846)  (1,968,846)
Balance at September 30, 2007 (restated)   —     —  157,919,856 13,425,869 6,085,573 2,773,565   —    (17,016,117) (21,529,528)
              
Fusion Equity common stock purchase   —     —  15,347,581 5,200,000 (55,300) —     —    —  5,144,700
Commitment fees   —     —  3,500,000 1,190,000 (1,190,000) —     —    —  —  
Cumorah common stock purchase   —     —  8,650,000 2,500,000 —  —     —    —  2,500,000
Wharton settlement   —     —  875,000 297,500 (397,500) —     —    —  (100,000)
MVS warrant cancellation   —     —  —  —  805,440 (805,440)   —    —  —  
Stock options and warrant expense   —     —  —  —  —  673,287   —    —  673,287
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2008   —     —  —  —  —  —     —    (4,058,952) (4,058,952)
Balance at September 30, 2008   —     —  186,292,437 22,613,369 5,248,213 2,641,412   —    (21,075,069) (17,370,493)
              
Issuance of common shares in October 2008 for cash              
(2,000,000 common shares issued at $0.20 per share )   —     —  2,000,000 400,000 —  —     —    —  400,000
              
Issuance of common shares in November 2008 for cash              
(1,000,000 common shares issued at $0.20 per share )   —     —  1,000,000 200,000 —  —     —    —  200,000
              
Issuance of common shares in November 2008 for services              
(50,000 common shares issued at a fair value of $0.22 per share )   —     —  50,000 11,000 —  —     —    —  11,000
              
Issuance of common shares in August 2009 for cash              
(1,129,483 common shares issued at $0.062 per share )   —     —  1,129,483 70,000 —  —     —    —  70,000
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XSUNX, INC. 

(A Development Stage Company) 
Statements of Stockholders' Equity 

From Inception February 25, 1997 to September 30, 2011 

  

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements 
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        Deficit
        Accumulated
    Additional Stock Options/    during the
  Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-in Warrants  Treasury Stock  Development
  Shares  Amount Shares Amount Capital Paid-in-Capital  Shares  Stage Total

              
Issuance of common shares in August 2009 for services              
(900,000 common shares issued at a fair value of $0.12 per share )   —     —  900,000 108,000 —  —     —    —  108,000
              
Issuance of common shares in August 2009 for services              
(76,976 common shares issued at a fair value of $0.1364 per share )   —     —  76,976 10,500 —  —     —    —  10,500
              
Issuance of common shares in September 2009 for services              
(35,714 common shares issued at a fair value of  $0.14 per share )   —     —  35,714 5,000 —  —     —    —  5,000
              
Issuance of common shares in September 2009 for cash              
(5,000,000 common shares issued at $0.07 per share )   —     —  5,000,000 350,000 —  —     —    —  350,000
              
Stock compensation expense   —     —  —  —  —  534,518   —    —  534,518
              
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2009                      (10,634,133)  (10,634,133)
Balance at September 30, 2009   —     —  6,012,690 473,500 —  534,518   —    (31,709,202) 482,810
              
Issuance of common shares in October 2009 for cash              
(2,556,818 common shares issued at $0.088 per share )   —     —  2,556,818 225,000 —  —     —    —  225,000
              
Issuance of common shares in November 2009 for services              
(53,789 common shares issued at a fair value of $0.1859 per share)   —     —  53,789 10,000 —  —        —  10,000
              
Issuance of common shares in December 2009 for subscription receivable              
(1,000,000 common shares issued at $0.088 per share)   —     —  1,000,000 88,000 —  —        —  88,000
              
Issuance of common shares in March 2010 for cash              
(2,000,000 common shares issued at $0.075 per share )   —     —  2,000,000 150,000 —  —     —    —  150,000
              
Issuance of common shares in March 2010 for services              
(139,424 common shares issued at $0.16137 per share )   —     —  139,424 22,500 —  —     —    —  22,500
              
Issuance of common shares in March 2010 for cash              
(6,250,000 common shares issued at $0.10 per share )   —     —  6,250,000 500,000 —  —     —    —  500,000
              
              
Issuance of common shares in September 2010 for cash              
(279,661 common shares issued at $0.09167 per share )   —     —  279,661 25,000 —  —     —    —  25,000
              
              
Issuance of common shares in September 2010 for cash              
(291,035 common shares issued at $0.088 per share )   —     —  291,035 25,000 —  —     —    —  25,000
              
Stock compensation expense   —     —  —  —  —  273,133   —    —  273,133
              
Stock issuance costs   —     —  —  —  (10,000) —     —    —  (10,000)
              
Net Loss for the year ended September 30, 2010   —     —  —  —  —  —        (2,210,603) (2,210,603)
Balance at September 30, 2010   —     —  209,055,337 24,813,369 5,238,213 3,449,063   —    (33,919,805) (419,160)
              
Issuance of common shares for cash   —     —  13,263,096 825,000 —  —     —    —  825,000
              
Issuance of common shares for a cashless  exercise of warrants   —     —  2,680,204 —  —  —     —    —  —  
              
Stock compensation costs   —     —  —  —  —  186,016      —  186,016
              
Net loss for the year ended September 30, 2011   —     —  —  —  —  —     —    (1,117,654) (1,117,654)
              
Balance at September 30, 2011   —    $ —  224,998,637 $ 25,638,369 $ 5,238,213 $ 3,635,079  $ —    $ (35,037,459) $ (525,798)
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XSUNX, INC. 
(A Development Stage Company) 

Statements of Cash Flows 
  

The Accompanying Notes are an Integral Part of These Financial Statements 
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   From Inception
   February 25,1997
 For the Years Ended  through
  September 30, 2011  September 30, 2010  September 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    
   Net loss $ (1,117,654) $ (2,210,603)  $ (35,037,459)
   Adjustment to reconcile net loss to net cash    
      used in operating activities    
   Depreciation & amortization 38,472 86,948  687,826
   Common stock issued for services and interest —  32,500  1,996,634
   Stock option and warrant expense 186,016 273,133  3,909,269
   Beneficial conversion and commitment fees —  —    5,685,573
   Asset impairment —  253,671  7,285,120
   Write down of inventory asset —  60,000  1,177,000
   Gain on settlement of debt (179,580) —    (466,961)
   (Gain)/Loss on sale of asset (17,000) 577  (16,423)
   Settlement of lease —  —    59,784
  Change in Assets and Liabilities:    
   (Increase) Decrease in:    
   Prepaid expenses 4,857 104,271  (9,204)
   Inventory held for sale —  —    (1,417,000)
   Other receivable 2,500 (2,500)  —  
   Other assets —  2,615  (3,200)
   Increase (Decrease) in:    
   Accounts payable (80,916) 28,995  2,370,101
   Accrued expenses 45,487 22,998  115,110
    
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (1,117,818) (1,347,395)  (13,663,830)
    
    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    
   Purchase/Refund of manufacturing equipment and facilities in process 148,025 (230,000)  (5,906,604)
   Payments on note receivable —  —    (1,500,000)
   Proceeds from sale of assets 17,000 244,100  261,100
   Receipts on note receivable —  —    1,500,000
   Purchase of marketable prototype —  —    (1,780,396)
   Purchase of fixed assets  (6,053)  —    (597,972)
    
NET CASH PROVIDED/(USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES  158,972  14,100  (8,023,872)
    
    
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    
  Proceeds from warrant conversion —  —    3,306,250
  Proceeds from debentures —  —    5,850,000
  Proceeds for issuance of common stock, net  825,000  1,003,000  12,598,028 
    
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES  825,000  1,003,000  21,754,278 
    
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (133,846) (330,295)  66,576
    
CASH, BEGINNING OF PERIOD  200,422  530,717  —   
    
CASH, END OF PERIOD  $ 66,576  $ 200,422  $ 66,576 

    
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION    
  Interest paid  $ 440  $ 28  $ 120,131 

  Taxes paid  $ —    $ —    $ —   

    
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NON CASH TRANSACTIONS    
  During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Company issued 2,680,204 shares of common stock in a cashless exercise of stock purchase warrants
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XSUNX, INC. 
(A Development Stage Company) 

Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2011 and 2010 

  
1. ORGANIZATION AND LINE OF BUSINESS  

Organization 
XsunX, Inc. (“XsunX,” the “Company” or the “issuer”) is a Colorado corporation formerly known as Sun River Mining Inc. “Sun River”). The 
Company was originally incorporated in Colorado on February 25, 1997. Effective September 24, 2003, the Company completed a Plan of
Reorganization and Asset Purchase Agreement (the “Plan”). 

  
Line of Business 
In the year ended September 30, 2010, XsunX modified its previous plans to directly establish product manufacturing infrastructure. We have re-
focused operations on the development of a cross-industry thin film solar manufacturing concept that we believed provides an opportunity for XsunX to
establish a competitive advantage within the industry. We have been developing and we have begun to market a hybrid manufacturing solution to
produce high performance Copper Indium Gallium (di) Selenide (CIGS) thin film solar cells. Our patent pending system and processing technology,
which we call CIGSolar™, focuses on the mass production of individual thin-film CIGS solar cells that match silicon solar cell dimensions and can be 
offered as a non-toxic, high-efficiency and lowest-cost alternative to the use of silicon solar cells. We intend to offer licenses for the use of the
CIGSolar™ process technology thereby generating revenue streams through licensing fees and manufacturing royalties for the use of the technology. 
  
Going Concern 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis of accounting, which contemplates continuity of operations,
realization of assets and liabilities and commitments in the normal course of business. The accompanying financial statements do not reflect any
adjustments that might result if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern. The Company does not generate significant revenue, and has
negative cash flows from operations, which raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The ability of the 
Company to continue as a going concern and appropriateness of using the going concern basis is dependent upon, among other things, additional cash
infusion. The Company has obtained funds from its shareholders since its inception through the year ended September 30, 2011. Management believes
the existing shareholders and the prospective new investors will provide the additional cash needed to meet the Company’s obligations as they become 
due, and will allow the development of its core of business. 

  
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

This summary of significant accounting policies of XsunX, Inc. is presented to assist in understanding the Company’s financial statements. The 
financial statements and notes are representations of the Company’s management, which is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These
accounting policies conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and have been consistently applied in the
preparation of the financial statements. 

  
Development Stage Activities and Operations 
The Company has been in its initial stages of formation and for the year ended September 30, 2011, had no revenues. A development stage activity as
one in which all efforts are devoted substantially to establishing a new business and even if planned principal operations have commenced, revenues are
insignificant. 

  
Use of Estimates  
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the accompanying financial statements. Significant estimates made in preparing these financial
statements include the estimate of useful lives of property and equipment, the deferred tax valuation allowance, and the fair value of stock options.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

  
Cash and Cash Equivalents  
For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in banks and money markets with an original maturity of three 
months or less. 
  
Fair Value of Financial Instruments  
The Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued liabilities are carried at cost, which
approximates their fair value, due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. As of September 30, 2011, and 2010, the Company’s notes 
payable have stated borrowing rates that are consistent with those currently available to the Company and, accordingly, the Company believes the
carrying value of these debt instruments approximates their fair value. 

  
Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost, and are depreciated using straight line over its estimated useful lives: 
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Leasehold improvements Length of the lease
Computer software and equipment 3 Years
Furniture & fixtures 5 Years
Machinery & equipment 5 Years
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XSUNX, INC. 

(A Development Stage Company) 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2011 and 2010 

  
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

The Company capitalizes property and equipment over $500. Property and equipment under $500 are expensed in the year purchased. The depreciation
expense for the years ended September 30, 2011, and 2010, were $38,472 and $86,948, respectively. 

  
Loss per Share Calculations 
Loss per Share is the calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing income
available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares available. Diluted earnings per share is computed similar to basic
earnings per share except that the denominator is increased to include the number of additional common shares that would have been outstanding if the
potential common shares had been issued and if the additional common shares were dilutive. The Company’s diluted loss per share is the same as the
basic loss per share for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 as the inclusion of any potential shares would have had an anti-dilutive effect due 
to the Company generating a loss. 

  
Revenue Recognition 
The Company recognizes revenue when services are performed, and at the time of shipment of products, provided that evidence of an arrangement
exists, title and risk of loss have passed to the customer, fees are fixed or determinable, and collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured. To
date the Company has had minimal revenue and is still in the development stage. 

  
Advertising  
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total advertising costs were $6,622, and $8,515 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. 

  
Research and Development  
Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Total research and development costs were $282,492 and $292,999 for the years ended 
September 30, 2011, and 2010, respectively. 

  
Stock-Based Compensation 
Share-based Payment applies to transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity instruments for goods or services and also applies to liabilities an
entity may incur for goods or services that are to follow a fair value of those equity instruments. We are required to follow a fair value approach using
an option-pricing model, such as the Black Scholes option valuation model, at the date of a stock option grant. The deferred compensation calculated
under the fair value method would then be amortized over the respective vesting period of the stock option. This has not had a material impact on our
results of operations. 

Income Taxes 

Deferred income taxes are provided using the liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and
operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the
differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in
the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are adjusted for the effects of the changes in tax laws and rates of the date of enactment. 
  
When tax returns are filed, it is highly certain that some positions taken would be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities, while others are
subject to uncertainty about the merits of the position taken or the amount of the position that would be ultimately sustained. The benefit of a tax
position is recognized in the financial statements in the period during which, based on all available evidence, management believes it is more likely than
not that the position will be sustained upon examination, including the resolution of appeals or litigation processes, if any. Tax positions taken are not 
offset or aggregated with other positions. Tax positions that meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold are measured as the largest amount of 
tax benefit that is more than 50 percent likely of being realized upon settlement with the applicable taxing authority. The portion of the benefits
associated with tax positions taken that exceeds the amount measured as described above is reflected as a liability for unrecognized tax benefits in the
accompanying balance sheet along with any associated interest and penalties that would be payable to the taxing authorities upon examination. 
  
Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
Management reviewed accounting pronouncements issued during the three months ended September 30, 2011, and no pronouncements were adopted
during the period. 
  

3. CAPITAL STOCK 

At September 30, 2011, the Company’s authorized stock consisted of 500,000,000 shares of common stock, with no par value. The Company is also
authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.01 per share. The rights, preferences and privileges of the holders of the
preferred stock will be determined by the Board of Directors prior to issuance of such shares. 
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XSUNX, INC. 

(A Development Stage Company) 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2011 and 2010 

  
3. CAPITAL STOCK (continued) 

During the year ended September 30, 2011, pursuant to an S-1 Registration Statement declared effective by the SEC on June 30, 2010, and a Post-
Effective Amendment No. 1 registration declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 4, 2011 the Company sold to Lincoln 
Park Capital Group, LLC (LPC) a total of approximately 7,013,096 shares for a total investment of $575,000. These shares were sold at various pricing
between $0.08 and $0.0888 per share, and included 159,720 of the remaining pool of 1,236,112 commitment shares were issued on a pro rata basis to
LPC as LPC has purchased additional shares pursuant to the effective S-1 Registration Statement. 
  
During the year ended September 30, 2011, the Company also issued 5,000,000 units composed of one share of restricted common stock and a five year
warrant exercisable to purchase two shares of Common Stock at $0.04 per share for cash of $200,000; 1,250,000 shares of restricted common stock at a
price of $0.04 per share for cash of $50,000; a holder of warrants exercised all available 5,000,000 warrants utilizing a cashless exercise provision
resulting in the net issuance of 2,680,204 shares of the Company’s restricted common stock. The above shares were issued in a transactions exempt from
registration pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Act. 
  
During the year ended September 30, 2010, the Company issued 2,556,818 shares of common stock at a price of $0.088 per share for cash of $225,000;
issued 193,213 shares of common stock at fair values between $0.16137 and $0.1859 per share for services; issued 1,000,000 shares of common stock at
a price of $0.088 for a subscription payable; issued 2,000,000 shares of common stock at a price of $0.08 per share for cash of $150,000; Also, through
an equity offering the Company received $550,000 in cash, and issued 6,820,696 shares of common stock, which included 1,263,888 commitment
shares. The shares were issued at prices between $0.088 and $0.10 per share. 

  
4. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS 

The Company adopted a Stock Option Plan for the purposes of granting stock options to its employees and others providing services to the Company,
which reserves and sets aside for the granting of Options for Twenty Million (20,000,000) shares of Common Stock. Options granted under the Plan
may be either Incentive Options or Nonqualified Options and shall be administered by the Company's Board of Directors ("Board"). Each Option shall
be exercisable to the nearest whole share, in installments or otherwise, as the respective Option agreements may provide. Notwithstanding any other
provision of the Plan or of any Option agreement, each Option shall expire on the date specified in the Option agreement. During the year ended
September 30, 2011, the Company granted 11,000,000 incentive stock options to employees that will vest upon completion of various milestones.
1,000,000 of the shares were part of the Company’s 2007 Stock Option Plan. The stock options are exercisable for a period of five years from the date of
grant at an exercise price between $0.10 and $0.53 per share and expire at various times through October 2015. 
  

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information follows: 
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Risk free interest rate 1.67% to 2.77%
Stock volatility factor 90.56% to 104.73%
Weighted average expected option life 5 years 
Expected dividend yield None 

 9/30/2011 9/30/2010
 Weighted   Weighted
 Number average Number  average
 of exercise of  exercise
  Options  price  Options  price

Outstanding, beginning of year 10,180,000 $ 0.27 10,180,000  $ 0.27
Granted 11,000,000 $ 0.10 —    $ —  
Exercised —  $ —  —    $ —  
Expired —  $ —  —    $ —  
Outstanding, end of year 21,180,000 $ 0.18 10,180,000  $ 0.27

Exercisable at the end of year  8,544,159  $ 0.27  6,858,328  $ 0.29 

Weighted average fair value of     
 options granted during the year $ 0.10    $ —  
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XSUNX, INC. 

(A Development Stage Company) 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2011 and 2010 

  
  

4. STOCK OPTIONS AND WARRANTS (continued) 

The weighted average remaining contractual life of options outstanding issued under the plan as of September 30, 2011 was as follows: 
  

  
Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of stock-based payment awards that is ultimately
expected to vest. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the financial statements of operations during the year ended September 30, 2011,
included compensation expense for the stock-based payment awards granted prior to, but not yet vested, as of September 30, 2011 based on the grant
date fair value estimated, and compensation expense for the stock-based payment awards granted subsequent to September 30, 2011, based on the grant
date fair value estimated. We account for forfeitures as they occur. The stock-based compensation expense recognized in the statement of operations 
during the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 was $186,016 and $273,133, respectively. 

  
Warrants 
A summary of the Company’s warrants activity and related information follows: 

  
At September 30, 2011, the weighted average remaining contractual life of warrants outstanding: 
  

5. INCOME TAXES 

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. Federal jurisdiction, and the state of California. With few exceptions, the Company is no longer
subject to U.S. federal, state and local, or non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2008. 

  
Included in the balance at September 30, 2011, are no tax positions for which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain, but for which 
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  Average
  Stock Stock Remaining

Exercisable  Options Options Contractual
Prices  Outstanding Exercisable Life (years)
$0.46   1,150,000 950,000  0.32 years  
$0.53   100,000 100,000  0.40 years  
$0.45   100,000 100,000  0.56 years  
$0.41   100,000 100,000  0.91 years  
$0.36   2,500,000 1,500,000  1.07 years  
$0.36   500,000 500,000  1.12 years  
$0.36   500,000 500,000  1.16 years  
$0.36   115,000 115,000  2.03 years  
$0.16   5,115,000 4,679,159  2.50 years  
$0.10   11,000,000 —   4.05 years  

   21,180,000  8,544,159    

  9/30/2011  9/30/2010
 Weighted   Weighted
 Number average Number  average
 of exercise of  exercise
 Options price Options  price

Outstanding, beginning of year 4,195,332 $ 0.61 4,195,332  $ 0.61
Granted 10,000,000 $ 0.04 —    $ —  
Exercised (5,000,000) $ (0.04) —    $ —  
Expired  (612,000)  $ (0.73)  —    $ —   
Outstanding, end of year  8,583,332  $ 0.32  4,195,332  $ 0.61 

Exercisable at the end of year  8,583,332  $ 0.32  4,047,332  $ 0.64 

Weighted average fair value of     
 warrants granted during the year    $ 0.04     $ —   

  Weighted
  Average
  Remaining

Exercisable  Warrants Warrants Contractual
Prices  Outstanding  Exercisable  Life (years)
$0.20   250,000 250,000  0.25 years  
$0.50   1,666,666 1,666,666  1.09 years  
$0.75   1,666,666 1,666,666  1.09 years  
$0.04   2,500,000 2,500,000  4.30 years  
$0.04   2,500,000 2,500,000  4.46 years  

   8,583,332 8,583,332   

F-9



  
XSUNX, INC. 

(A Development Stage Company) 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2011 and 2010 

  
5. INCOME TAXES (continued) 

there is uncertainty about the timing of such deductibility. Because of the impact of deferred tax accounting, other than interest and penalties, the
disallowance of the shorter deductibility period would not affect the annual effective tax rate but would accelerate the payment of cash to the taxing
authority to an earlier period. 

  
The Company's policy is to recognize interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense and penalties in operating expenses.
During the period ended September 30, 2011, the Company did not recognize interest and penalties. 
  

6. DEFERRED TAX BENEFIT 

At September 30, 2011, the Company had net operating loss carry-forwards of approximately $19,390,000 that may be offset against future taxable
income from the year 2011 through 2030. No tax benefit has been reported in the September 30, 2011 financial statements since the potential tax benefit
is offset by a valuation allowance of the same amount. 

The income tax provision differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the U.S. federal and state income tax rate of 40% to pretax
income from continuing operations for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 due to the following: 

  

  
Deferred taxes are provided on a liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and operating loss
and tax credit carry-forwards and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences. Temporary differences are the differences
between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance when, in the opinion
of management, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
adjusted for the effects of changes in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment. 
  
Net deferred tax assets consist of the following components as of September 30, 2011 and 2010: 

  

7. PROMISSORY NOTE 

During the year ended September 30, 2009, the Company converted accounts payable to a promissory note in the amount of $456,921. The note accrues
interest at 10% per annum. The note, including all principal and interest were due September 1, 2011. The interest expense for the years ended
September 30, 2011 and 2010 was $45,692 and $45,721. Merix Corporation (the original holder) of the note sold, assigned and conveyed all of its right,
title and interest in the note to a third party during the 2011 calendar year. At the time the promissory note matured the Company was engaged in
negotiations to re-pay and/or alter the terms of the note with the new holder. 

  
8. SALE AND DISPOSITION OF ASSETS 

On April 21, 2011 the Company received payment in the amount of $17,000 for an offer it accepted on April 14, 2011 for the sale of equipment no
longer in use by the Company. The book value of the asset was zero and the Company recognized a gain of $17,000. 
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  9/30/2011  9/30/2010
Book Income $ (447,062) $ (884,241)
State Income Taxes —  —   
Nondeductible Stock Compensation 74,406 109,253 
Nondeductible Penalties 238 —   
Asset Impairment —  125,468 
Meals & Entertainment 530 682 
Depreciation 11,339 24,225 
Loss on disposal of assets (6,494) 13,931 
NOL Carryover —  —   
Valuation Allowance  367,043  610,682 
Income Tax Expense $ —  $ —   

 9/30/2011 9/30/2010
Deferred Tax Assets:    
  NOL Carryforward $ 7,755,958 $ 7,269,868 
  Depreciation —   —   
  Contribution Carryforward 40  40 
  Section 179 Expense Carry-forward 73,406  90,686 
  R&D Carryforward 37,407  19,045 
    
Deferred Tax Liabilities: —   —   
  Depreciation (15,280)  (10,058)
    
Valuation Allowance (7,851,531)  (7,369,581)
Net Deferred Tax Asset $ —  $ —   
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XSUNX, INC. 

(A Development Stage Company) 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2011 and 2010 

  
9. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

In February 2010, the Company elected to negotiate a settlement related to a dispute over a re-stocking fee on certain equipment with a vendor, Airgas 
Corp., agreeing to pay $114,641 in 12 equal monthly payments of $9,553, which commenced on March 1, 2010. As of September 30, 2011, the debt was
paid in full. 
  
On March 31, 2011 we entered into a settlement agreement with Billco Manufacturing Inc. agreeing to pay $30,000 in the form of 3 equal monthly
payments of $10,000 commencing April 15, 2011 as full and final settlement for an open book account balance of $340,568 purportedly owed to the
vendor by XsunX. XsunX completed all payments and on June 22, 2011 we received a full release from the vendor. The accounts payable liability of
$209,580 which the Company booked while working to settle this claim was reduced to $30,000 and the Company recognized $179,580 gain on
settlement of debt. 

  
The Company continues to lease a corporate office facility located in Aliso Viejo. The lease is month to month at a monthly rate of $1,000 per month. 
  

10. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events as of the financial statement date according to the requirements of ASC TOPIC 855 and has reported the 
following: 
  
As part of the Company’s operating plans, and efforts to maximize the use of its capital resources towards the assembly of its initial baseline multi-
chamber CIGSolar™ thermal co-evaporation system, the Company’s CEO, COO, and CTO agreed effective October 2011 to salary reductions under
which each executive would receive an annualized salary of $120,000. 
  
On October 24, 2011, in exchange for a promissory note (the “Note”) of $456,921 plus accrued interest of $98,645 that had become due at September 1,
2011, the Company issued 7,000,000 restricted shares of common stock as payment for the reduction of $205,565 of principal and accrued interest
balance under the Note, and exchanged the Note for and issued a new unsecured promissory exchange note (the “Exchange Note”) in the amount of 
$350,000. The note bears interest at 10% per annum and matures on September 30, 2012. 
  
On October 27, 2011, and again on December 7, 2011 XsunX, Inc. (the "Company") consummated a Securities Purchase Agreement (the "Purchase
Agreements") providing for the sale by the Company of 8% unsecured Convertible Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $53,000 and $42,500
respectively (the “Note”) which amounts were advanced immediately at the time of each sale. The October 27, 2011 Note matures on July 31, 2012, and
the December 7, 2011 Note matures on September 12, 2012. The Company has the right to redeem a portion or all amounts outstanding under the either
Note prior to one hundred and eighty one days from issuance of the Note under a variable redemption rate premium. After one hundred and eighty days
the holder may convert into shares of common stock at a conversion price of sixty percent of the average lowest five closing bid prices for the common
stock, during the ten trading day period ending on the latest complete trading day prior to the conversion date. The holder has certain rights of first
refusal related to financings of less than seventy five thousand dollars by the Company, and in the event of certain default conditions the Company may
be subject a default premium of fifty percent. 
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F-11



EXHIBIT 31.1
  

OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
  
I, Tom Djokovich, certify that: 
  
1.     I have reviewed this Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 of XsunX, Inc.; 
  
2.     Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report; 
  
3.     Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
  
4.     I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 
  
(a)     Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
  
(b)     Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 
  
(c)     Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
  
(d)     Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most 
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 
  
5.     The registrant’s other certifying officer (s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 
  
(a)     All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
  
(b)     Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal 
control over financial reporting. 
  
Date: December 29, 2011 
  

  

/s/  Tom Djokovich
Name: Tom Djokovich
Titles:Chief Executive Officer, Principal Executive 
Officer, and Principal Financial and 
Accounting Officer, and Director 



EXHIBIT 31.2
  

OFFICER’S CERTIFICATE 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 

OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
  
I, Joe Grimes, certify that: 
  
1.     I have reviewed this Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 of XsunX, Inc.; 
  
2.     Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
covered by this report; 
  
3.     Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
  
4.     I am responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 
  
(a)     Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 
  
(b)     Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 
  
(c)     Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
  
(d)     Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most 
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 
  
5.     The registrant’s other certifying officer (s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 
  
(a)     All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
  
(b)     Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal 
control over financial reporting. 
  
Date: December 29, 2011 
  

/s/  Joe Grimes
Name: Joe Grimes
Titles: President, Chief Operating Officer, and Director



EXHIBIT 32.1
  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

  
In connection with the Annual Report of XsunX, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 as filed with 
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on the date himself (the “Report”), the undersigned hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge: 
  
1.     The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 
  
2.     The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the 
Company. 
  
Date:     December 29, 2011 
  

  
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authentications, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the
signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the
Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request. 
  

/s/  Tom Djokovich
Name: Tom Djokovich
Title: Chief Executive Officer, Principal Executive 
Officer, and Principal Financial and 
Accounting Officer, and Director 



  
EXHIBIT 32.2

  
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
  
In connection with the Annual Report of XsunX, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 as filed with 
the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on the date himself (the “Report”), the undersigned hereby certifies pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to his knowledge: 
  
1.     The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and 
  
2.     The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the 
Company. 
  
Date:     December 29, 2011 
  

  
A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906, or other document authentications, acknowledging, or otherwise adopting the
signature that appears in typed form within the electronic version of this written statement required by Section 906, has been provided to the
Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.

/s/  Joe Grimes
Name: Joe Grimes
Titles: President, Chief Operating Officer, and Director



Exhibit 10.7
 

STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT AND REPRESENTATIONS 
  

This stock purchase agreement ("Agreement"), along with the Signature Page and Questionnaire attached hereto, and by this
reference incorporated herein, is made effective February 23, 2011 by and between XsunX, a Colorado corporation ("XsunX") and
the purchaser(s) signatory hereto (“Private Purchaser”). XsunX has received an offer to purchase certain shares of common voting
stock ("Shares") of XsunX by Private Purchaser, and XsunX and Private Purchaser agree as set forth herein and represent to each
other with regard thereto as follows: 
  
1. XsunX is a duly organized Colorado corporation. The Articles of Incorporation of XsunX were filed on February 25, 1997.
XsunX is authorized by its Articles of Incorporation to issue up to 500,000,000 shares of common voting stock, par value $.00 per
share, of which approximately 214,931,522 shares are outstanding as of the date hereof. 
  
2. Neither XsunX nor any of its officers, directors, employees, agents or representatives have made any representation or statement
of opinion regarding the value of XsunX or the Shares, Private Purchaser is purchasing the Shares purely on a speculative basis and
confirms that Private Purchaser has been given no reason to believe that Private Purchaser will receive any return on the purchase of
Shares. 
  
3. Private Purchaser has offered to purchase the number of Shares at a price per share set forth on the Signature Page and
Questionnaire which is attached hereto, incorporated herein, and made a part hereof, for a total purchase price as set forth on the
Signature Page and Questionnaire. The purchase price shall be payable in cash or cash equivalent representing immediately available
funds to the satisfaction of XsunX. Private Purchaser shall pay the purchase price prior to the issuance of the Shares. The Shares may
be sold from authorized but unissued shares of XsunX, or treasury shares held by XsunX. 
  
4. Private Purchaser understands that Private Purchaser must bear the economic risk of the investment for an indefinite period of
time because the Shares will be restricted and no public market will exist for the Shares. Private Purchaser understands the
speculative nature of investment in XsunX and that Private Purchaser could lose Private Purchaser's entire purchase price payment. 
  
5. Private Purchaser represents that it has been called to Private Purchaser's attention that Private Purchaser's proposed investment in
XsunX involves a high degree of risk which may result in the loss of the total amount of that investment. 
  
6. Private Purchaser acknowledges that XsunX has made available to Private Purchaser or Private Purchaser's personal advisors the
opportunity to obtain any and all information required to evaluate the merits and risks of purchase of the Shares, and that, XsunX
has, prior to the sale of the Shares, accorded Private Purchaser and Private Purchaser's representative, if any, the opportunity to ask
questions and receive answers concerning the terms and conditions of the proposed purchase and to obtain any additional
information necessary to evaluate the merits and risks of the purchase of the Shares. 
  
7. Private Purchaser and (if applicable) Private Purchaser's personal advisors and representatives have had an opportunity to ask
questions of and receive satisfactory answers from XsunX, or any person or persons acting on XsunX's behalf, concerning the terms
and conditions of Private Purchaser's proposed investment in XsunX, and all such questions have been answered to the complete
satisfaction of Private Purchaser. 
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8. Private Purchaser represents that all of the information provided by Private Purchaser or Private Purchaser's representatives to
XsunX is true, correct, accurate and current and that Private Purchaser is not subject to backup withholding. Private Purchaser
specifically represents that all of the information provided on the Signature Page and Questionnaire is true, correct, accurate and
current. 
  
9. The personal, business and financial information of Private Purchaser which may have been provided to XsunX, if any, and in any
form, is complete and accurate, and presents a true statement of Private Purchaser's financial condition. 
  
10. Private Purchaser has adequate means of providing for Private Purchaser's current needs and possible personal contingencies,
and Private Purchaser has no need in the foreseeable future to sell the Shares for which Private Purchaser hereby subscribes. Private
Purchaser is able to bear the economic risks of Private Purchaser's purchase of Shares and, consequently, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, Private Purchaser is able to hold Private Purchaser's Shares for an indefinite period of time, and Private
Purchaser has a sufficient net worth to sustain a loss of Private Purchaser's entire investment in XsunX in the event such loss should
occur. 
  
11. If Private Purchaser is an individual, Private Purchaser is 18 years of age or older. 
  
12. Private Purchaser understands that the Shares will not be transferable except under limited circumstances. 
  
13. Private Purchaser is acquiring the Shares for Private Purchaser's own account for investment with no present intention of
dividing Private Purchaser's interest with others or of reselling or otherwise disposing of all or any portion of the same. Private
Purchaser shall not engage in a distribution of the Shares. 
  
14. Private Purchaser has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that Private Purchaser is capable of
evaluating the merits and risks of an investment in XsunX or (if applicable) Private Purchaser and Private Purchaser's representative,
together, have such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters that Private Purchaser and Private Purchaser's
representative are capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment in XsunX. 
  
15. The Shares will be acquired for Private Purchaser's own account for investment in a manner which would not require registration
pursuant to the provisions of the Act, as amended, and Private Purchaser does not now have any reason to anticipate any change in
Private Purchaser's circumstances or other particular occasion or event which would cause Private Purchaser to sell or otherwise
dispose of the Shares. 
  
16. Private Purchaser understands that the Commissioner of Corporations for the State of California or the State of Colorado, or any
other state ("Commissioner") has not or will not recommend or endorse a purchase of the Shares. 
  
17. Private Purchaser hereby represents and warrants that Private Purchaser's total purchase of Shares shall not exceed 10% of
Private Purchaser's net worth (exclusive of principal residence, mortgage thereon, home furnishings and automobiles). 
  
18. Private Purchaser: (i) has a pre-existing personal or business relationship with XsunX, its officers, directors or its Affiliates or
representatives, and (ii) meets those certain standards involving Private Purchaser's minimum net worth and annual income as
established by the California Commissioner of 
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Corporations relating to Private Purchaser's income and net worth, or is an Accredited Investor as defined in rule 501 (a) of
Regulation D as promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission. The foregoing income and net worth is considered to be
indicative of Private Purchaser's ability to be sophisticated regarding the proposed purchase of Shares. 
  
19. Private Purchaser is not a member of FINRA or other self-regulatory agency which would require prior approval of a purchase of
the Shares. 
  
20. Private Purchaser acknowledges that Private Purchaser understands the meaning and legal consequences of the representations,
warranties, and covenants set forth herein, and that XsunX has relied on such representations, warranties and covenants. 
  
21. Private Purchaser acknowledges and understands that the Shares will be subject to transfer and sale restrictions imposed pursuant
to SEC Rule 144 of the Rules promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933 (“Act”) and the regulations promulgated thereunder. 
Private Purchaser shall comply with Rule 144 and with all policies and procedures established by XsunX with regard to Rule 144
matters. Private Purchaser acknowledges that XsunX or its attorneys or transfer agent may require a restrictive legend on the
certificate or certificates representing the Shares pursuant to the restrictions on transfer of the Shares imposed by Rule 144. 
  
22. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, the undersigned acknowledges that: (i) the Shares are subject to
restrictions on transfer or sale imposed pursuant to Rule 144; (ii) this is a material inducement to the Company with respect to the
sale of Shares hereunder that without the prior written consent of the Company the undersigned will not offer, pledge, sell, transfer,
or grant any option for the sale of the Shares prior to six (6) months from the date of this Agreement; (iii) the Shares are being
purchased in a private transaction which is not part of a distribution of the Shares; (iv) the undersigned intends to hold the Shares for
the account of the undersigned and does not intend to sell the shares as a part of a distribution or otherwise; and (v) neither the
undersigned nor the seller of the Shares is an underwriter for purposes of Rule 144. A legend regarding the foregoing and Rule 144
restrictions may be placed upon the certificate evidencing ownership of the Shares. 
  
23. Private Purchaser acknowledges that Private Purchaser is aware that there are substantial restrictions on the transferability of the
Shares. Because the Shares will not, and Private Purchaser has no right to require that the Shares, be registered pursuant to the
provisions of the Act or otherwise, Private Purchaser agrees not to sell, transfer, assign, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise dispose of
any Shares unless such sale is exempt from such registration pursuant to the provisions of the Act. Private Purchaser further
acknowledges that unless as provided for in this Agreement, XsunX has no obligation to assist Private Purchaser in obtaining any
exemption from any registration requirements imposed by applicable law. Private Purchaser also acknowledges that Private
Purchaser shall be responsible for compliance with all conditions on transfer imposed by the Commissioner or by the Securities and
Exchange Commission (“SEC”). 
  
24. Private Purchaser understands and agrees that the following restrictions and limitations are applicable to Private Purchaser's
purchase and any sale, transfer, assignment, pledge, hypothecation or other disposition of Shares pursuant to Section 4(2) of the Act
and Regulation D promulgated pursuant thereto: 
  

24.1. Private Purchaser agrees that notwithstanding any other restrictions placed on the sale or transfer of the Shares
pursuant to this Agreement, Rule 144, or otherwise, the Shares shall not be sold, 
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pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of unless the Shares are registered pursuant to the Act and applicable state securities
laws or are exempt there from; and 
  

24.2. A legend in substantially the following form may be placed on any certificate(s) or other documents evidencing the
Shares: 
  
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS INSTRUMENT OR DOCUMENT HAVE BEEN ACQUIRED FOR 
INVESTMENT ONLY AND HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE SECURITIES 
ACT OF 1933 AS AMENDED ("ACT”), AND HAVE BEEN OFFERED AND SOLD IN RELIANCE UPON THE EXEMPTION 
SET FORTH IN SECTIONS 4(1) OR 4(2) OF THE ACT AND UPON RULE 504 OF REGULATION D PROMULGATED 
PURSUANT THERETO. WITHOUT SUCH REGISTRATION, SUCH SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED, 
ASSIGNED, PLEDGED, HYPOTHECATED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF, EXCEPT UPON DELIVERY TO XSUNX OF 
AN OPINION OF COUNSEL SATISFACTORY TO XSUNX. 
  

24.3. Contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement, XsunX and the Private Purchaser shall execute and deliver
the Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions, attached as Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, to the transfer
agent of the Company, and such Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions shall be acknowledged and executed by the transfer agent. 
  
25. Private Purchaser may not cancel, terminate, or revoke this Agreement, or any agreement of Private Purchaser made hereunder,
and this Agreement shall survive the death, dissolution, or disability of Private Purchaser and shall be binding upon the heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns of Private Purchaser. 
  
26. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement among the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and may be
amended only by a writing executed by all parties hereto. 
  
27. This Agreement shall be enforced, governed and construed in all respects in accordance with the laws of the State of California
without giving effect to the conflicts of laws provisions. Private Purchaser hereby agrees that any suit, action or proceeding with
respect to this Agreement, any amendments or any replacements hereof, and any transactions relating hereto shall be brought in the
state courts of, or the federal courts in, the State of California, and Private Purchaser hereby irrevocably consents and submits to the
jurisdiction of such courts for the purpose of any such suit, action or proceeding, and Private Purchaser agrees that service of process
on Private Purchaser in such suit, action or proceeding may be made In accordance with the notice provisions of this Agreement, In
any such action, venue shall lie exclusively in Orange County, California. Private Purchaser hereby waives, and agrees not to assert
against XsunX, or any successor assignee thereof, by way of motion, as a defense or otherwise, in any such suit, action or
proceeding, (i) any claim that Private Purchaser is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of the above-named courts or that 
property is exempt or immune from set-off, execution or attachment either prior to judgment or in execution thereof, and (ii) to the
extent permitted by applicable law, any claim that such suit, action or proceeding is brought in an inconvenient forum or that the
venue of suit, action or proceeding is improper or that this Agreement or any amendments or any replacements hereof may not be
enforced in, or by such courts. 
  

THE SHARES OFFERED HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED (THE "ACT"), OR THE SECURITIES LAWS OF CERTAIN STATES, AND ARE BEING OFFERED AND SOLD
IN RELIANCE ON AN EXEMPTION FROM THE 
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REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE ACT AND SUCH LAWS. THE SHARES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR
DISAPPROVED BY THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION OR
OTHER REGULATORY AUTHORITY. 
  

PRIVATE PURCHASER MAY BE REQUIRED TO HOLD THE SHARES INDEFINITELY UNLESS SUCH SHARES
ARE SUBSEQUENTLY REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACTOF 1933 ("ACT") OR AN EXEMPTION FROM SUCH
REGISTRATION IS AVAILABLE. NO SHARES MAY BE SOLD, ASSIGNED OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED UNLESS
XSUNX AND ITS LEGAL COUNSEL HAVE RECEIVED EVIDENCE SATISFACTORY TO BOTH THAT SUCH TRANSFER
DOES NOT INVOLVE A TRANSACTION REQUIRING QUALIFICATION OR REGISTRATION UNDER STATE OR
FEDERAL SECURITIES LAWS AND IS IN COMPLIANCE WITH SUCH LAWS. 

  
(SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGES) 
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SIGNATURE PAGE AND QUESTIONAIRE TO STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT AMONG XSUNX, INC. AND THE 
PRIVATE PURCHASER(S) NAMED BELOW 

  
As applicable, the undersigned further represents and warrants as indicated below by the undersigned's initials: 

  
I. ACCREDITED INVESTOR STATUS 
  

  

  

  

  

(Initial one of the following statements) 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

A. Individual investors: (Initial one or more of the following three statements) 

1. ____ I certify that I am an accredited investor because I have had individual income (exclusive of any income
earned by my spouse) of more than US$200,000 in each of the most recent two years and I reasonably expect to
have an individual income in excess of US$200,000 for the current year. 

2. ____ I certify that I am an accredited investor because I have had joint income with my spouse in excess of
US$300,000 in each of the two most recent years and I reasonably expect to have joint income with my spouse
in excess of $300,000 for the current year. 

3. ____ I certify that I am an accredited investor because I have an individual net worth, or my spouse and I have a
joint net worth, in excess of US$1,000,000. 

B. Partnerships, corporations, trusts or other entities: 

________ 1. The undersigned hereby certifies that it is an accredited investor because it is:     

________ a. an employee benefit plan whose total assets exceed US$5,000,000;   

________ b. an employee benefit plan whose investment decisions are made by a plan fiduciary which is either a
bank, savings and loan association or an insurance company (as defined in Section 3(a) of the Securities
Act) or an investment adviser registered as such under the Investment Advisers Acts of 1940;  

________ c. a self-directed employee benefit plan, including an Individual Retirement Account, with investment 
decisions made solely by persons that are accredited investors;  

________ d. an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
"IRC"), not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Shares with total assets in excess of
US$5,000,000;  

________ e. any corporation, partnership or Massachusetts or similar business trust, not formed for the specific
purpose of acquiring the Shares, with total assets in excess of US$5,000,000; or  

________ f. a trust with total assets in excess of US$5,000,000, not formed for the  
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II. Indemnification. The undersigned agrees, to the fullest extent permitted pursuant by law, to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless
XsunX, Inc. and its agents, representatives and employees from and against all liability, damage, loss, cost and expense (including
reasonable attorneys' fees) which they may incur by reason of the failure of the undersigned to fulfill any of the terms or conditions
of the Agreement or this Signatory Page and Questionnaire, or by reason of any inaccuracy or omission in the information furnished
by the undersigned herein or any breach of the representations and warranties made by the undersigned herein, or in any document
provided by the undersigned, directly or indirectly, to XsunX, Inc. 

  
III. Limitation on Short Sales and Hedging Transactions. Private Purchaser agrees that beginning on the effective date of this
Agreement, the Private Purchaser and its agents, representatives and affiliates shall not in any manner whatsoever enter into or
effect, directly or indirectly, any (i) "short sale" (as such term is defined in Section 242.200 of Regulation SHO of the 1934 Act) of
the Common Stock or (ii) hedging transaction, which establishes a net short position with respect to the Common Stock. 

  
IV. Offer and Purchase Price. Private Purchaser hereby offers to purchase One Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand (1,250,000)
Shares of XsunX common stock at a price per share of Four Cents ($0.04) for a total purchase price of Fifty Thousand Dollars 
($50,000.00 USD), the “Purchase Price”. Upon payment to the account of XsunX as set forth herein, such 1,250,000 Shares shall be, 
validly issued and be fully paid and nonassessable. TheShares shall be issued in certificated form and shall bear the restrictive legend
set forth in Section 24.2 above. 

  
THE FOLLOWING SECTION MUST BE COMPLETED BY PRIVATE PURCHASER 

  

  

 

 specific purpose of acquiring the Shares, whose purchase is directed by a person who has such knowledge
and experience in financial and business matters that he is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of an
investment in the Shares.       

________ 2. The undersigned hereby certifies that it is an accredited investor because it is an entity in which each of the equity
owners qualifies as an accredited investor under items A(1), (2) or (3) or item B(1) above.    

Private Purchaser:
  
Name (please print): 

 

  
Social Security # (or Tax ID #): 

 

  
Address (Including Zip Code): 
  
Phone Number: 

 

  
Fax Number: 

  
Name in which shares should be issued: 
  
Private Purchaser will hold title as follows: 
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{ } Community Property 
{ } Joint Tenants with Right Survivorship 
{ } Tenants in Common 
{ } Individually 
{ } Other: (Corporation, Trust, Etc., please indicate)* 

  
*If Private Purchaser is an entity, the attached Certificate of Signatory must also be completed. 
  
Private Purchaser shall pay the purchase price by wire transfer of immediately available funds to: 
  

Beneficiary Name: XsunX, Inc. 
  

Routing Transit #:  
  

Acct Number:  
  

Bank Name:  
  
Tel:  
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, subject to acceptance by the Company, Private Purchaser has provided the foregoing warranties and
undertaken the foregoing obligations and the parties have executed this Agreement effective as of the date first set forth above. 
  
Private Purchaser: ________________________________ 

  
By: _______________________________ 
  
Print Name: ___________________________________ 
  
  
THIS PURCHASE OFFER IS ACCEPTED THIS _____ DAY OF _____________, 2011. 
  
XsunX, Inc., a Colorado corporation 
  
By:____________________________ 

Tom M. Djokovich 
  

Its: CEO 
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CERTIFICATE OF SIGNATORY 
  

(To be completed if Shares are being subscribed for by an entity) 
  
I, ___________________________., am the ______________________________________ (the “Entity”). 
  
I certify that I am empowered and duly authorized by the Entity to execute and carry out the terms of the Purchase Agreement and to
purchase and hold the Common Stock, and certify further that the Purchase Agreement has been duly and validly executed on behalf
of the Entity and constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Entity. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _________________________. 
  
  
_______________________________________ 
(Signature) 
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EXHIBIT A 
  

IRREVOCABLE TRANSFER AGENT INSTRUCTIONS 
  
Date: February 23, 2011 
  
Mountain Share Transfer, Inc. 
1625 Abilene Dr. 
Broomfield, CO 80020 
Tel: 303-460-1149 
Fax: 303-438-9243 
  
RE: XsunX, Inc. 
  
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
  

Reference is made to that certain Stock Purchase Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated February 23, 2011 by and between 
XsunX, Inc., a Colorado corporation (the “Company”), and _____________________ (the “Private Purchaser”). Pursuant to the 
Agreement, the Company issued to the Private Purchaser 1,250,000 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Common Stock”). 
This letter shall serve as our irrevocable authorization and direction to you relating to the Common Stock. 
  

The Company hereby confirms, and the Transfer Agent hereby acknowledges, that in the event legal counsel to the
Company fails or refuses to issue an opinion of counsel as required to issue the Common Stock free of restrictive legend within five
(5) days from submittal to the Company by Private Purchaser for such legend modification as provided for within the terms of the
Agreement, the Company irrevocably and expressly authorizes counsel to the Private Purchaser to render such opinion. The Transfer
Agent shall accept and shall be entitled to rely on such opinion, and shall have no liability for relying on such opinion, for the
purposes of issuing the Common Stock without restrictive legend. 
  

The Company hereby confirms to the Transfer Agent and the Private Purchaser that no instructions other than as
contemplated herein will be given to the Transfer Agent by the Company with respect to the Common Stock. The Company hereby
authorizes the Transfer Agent, and the Transfer Agent shall be obligated, to disregard any contrary instructions received by or on
behalf of the Company. The Company hereby agrees that it shall not replace Transfer Agent as the Company’s transfer agent without 
the prior written consent of the Private Purchaser, or that a suitable replacement has agreed to serve as transfer agent and to be bound
by the terms and conditions of these Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions. 
  

Any attempt by Transfer Agent to resign as the Company’s transfer agent hereunder shall not be effective until such time as
the Company provides to the Transfer Agent written notice that a suitable replacement has agreed to serve as transfer agent and to be
bound by the terms and conditions of these Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions. 
  

The Company and the Transfer Agent hereby acknowledge and confirm that complying with the terms of these instructions
does not and shall not prohibit the Transfer Agent from satisfying any and all fiduciary responsibilities and duties it may owe to the
Company. 
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The Company and the Transfer Agent acknowledge that the Private Purchaser is relying on the representations and
covenants made by the Company and the Transfer Agent herein, which are a material inducement to the Private Purchaser in
entering into the Agreement. The Company and the Transfer Agent further acknowledge that without such representations and
covenants of the Company and the Transfer Agent made herein, the Private Purchaser would not have entered into the Agreement.
Therefore, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by a party hereto, including, without limitation, the attempted termination of
the agency relationship created by this instrument, the Private Purchaser shall be entitled, in addition to all other rights or remedies,
to an injunction restraining such breach, without being required to show any actual damage or to post any bond or other security,
and/or to a decree for specific performance of the provisions of these Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions. 
  

All provisions of these instructions assume compliance by all Parties with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and
regulations. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this letter agreement regarding Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions to be
duly executed and delivered as of the date first written above. 
  

  
  
THE FOREGOING INSTRUCTIONS ARE ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO BY THE TRANSFER AGENT: 
  
Mountain Share Transfer, Inc. 
  

  
  

  

 

THE COMPANY: THE PURCHASER:
 
XsunX, INC.,
 
 
 
By: Tom M. Djokovich By:
Its: CEO Its:

  Dated:
By:   
Its:  



Exhibit 10.8
  

XSUNX, INC. 
SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

  
This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) made as of _____________________

between XsunX, Inc., a Colorado corporation (the “Company”), and _______________________ (the “Purchaser”). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
WHEREAS, the Company desires to issue and sell to the Purchaser, and the Purchaser desires to purchase

from the Company, Units of the Company (the number of which is set forth on the signature page hereof), each Unit
consisting of one (1) share of common stock (the “Shares”), no par value per share, of the Company (the “Common 
Stock”) and a five-year warrant to purchase two (2) shares of Common Stock, substantially in the form attached hereto as
Exhibit A, upon the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth. Each warrant included in the Units shall be exercisable to
purchase two (2) shares of Common Stock at $0.04 per share (the “Warrants” and together with the Shares, the 
“Securities”). 

WHEREAS, the Company and the Purchaser are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon
the exemption from securities registration afforded by the provisions of Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”), as promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) 
under the Securities Act. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual representations and covenants
hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows: 

I.                   PURCHASE OF UNITS AND REPRESENTATIONS BY PURCHASER 

The Purchaser hereby irrevocably agrees to purchase from the Company such number of Units, and the Company
agrees to sell to the Purchaser, as is set forth on the signature page hereof, at a price equal to $0.04 per Unit. The purchase
price is payable by wire transfer of immediately available funds to: 

  
  

Wire instructions: 
 

Name: XsunX, Inc. 
 

Bank: 
  
Account: 
  
  
ABA: 
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1.1              The Purchaser recognizes that the purchase of the Securities involves a high degree of risk including, but

not limited to, the following: (a) the Company remains a development stage business with limited operating history and
requires substantial funds in addition to the proceeds from this purchase; (b) an investment in the Company is highly
speculative, and only investors who can afford the loss of their entire investment should consider investing in the
Company and the Securities; (c) the Purchaser may not be able to liquidate its investment; (d) transferability of the
Securities is extremely limited; (e) in the event of a disposition, the Purchaser could sustain the loss of its entire
investment; (f) the Company has not paid any dividends on its Common Stock since its inception and does not anticipate
paying any dividends in the foreseeable future; and (g) the Company may issue additional securities in the future which
have rights and preferences that are senior to those of the Shares being subscribed to hereunder. 

1.2              The Purchaser represents that the Purchaser is an “accredited investor” as such term is defined in Rule 501 
of Regulation D (“Regulation D”) promulgated under the Securities Act, as indicated by the Purchaser’s responses to the 
questions contained in Article VII hereof, and that the Purchaser is able to bear the economic risk of an investment in the
Units. 

1.3              The Purchaser hereby acknowledges and represents that (a) the Purchaser has knowledge and experience
in business and financial matters, prior investment experience, including investment in securities that are non-listed, 
unregistered and/or not traded on a national securities exchange nor on NASDAQ, or the Purchaser has employed the
services of a “purchaser representative” (as defined in Rule 501 of Regulation D), attorney and/or accountant to read all
of the documents furnished or made available by the Company both to the Purchaser and to all other prospective investors
in the Securities to evaluate the merits and risks of such an investment on the Purchaser’s behalf; (b) the Purchaser
recognizes the highly speculative nature of this investment; and (c) the Purchaser is able to bear the economic risk that the
Purchaser hereby assumes. 

1.4              The Purchaser hereby acknowledges receipt and careful review of this Agreement, the Company’s filings 
with the SEC (the “Company Filings”), and any documents which may have been made available upon request as
reflected therein (collectively referred to as the “Offering Materials”) and hereby represents that the Purchaser has been 
furnished by the Company during the course of the purchase with all information regarding the Company, the terms and
conditions of the purchase and any additional information that the Purchaser has requested or desired to know, and has
been afforded the opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from duly authorized officers or other
representatives of the Company concerning the Company and the terms and conditions of the purchase. 

1.5              (a) In making the decision to invest in the Securities, the Purchaser has relied solely upon the information
provided by the Company in the Offering Materials. To the extent necessary, the Purchaser has retained, at its own
expense, and relied upon appropriate professional advice regarding the investment, tax and legal merits and consequences
of this Agreement and the purchase of the Units hereunder. The Purchaser disclaims reliance on any statements made or
information provided by any person or entity in the course of Purchaser’s consideration of an investment in the Units 
other than the Offering Materials. 
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(b) The Purchaser represents that (i) the Purchaser was contacted regarding the sale of the Securities by the
Company (or an authorized agent or representative thereof) with whom the Purchaser had a prior substantial pre-existing 
relationship and (ii) no Securities were offered or sold to it by means of any form of general solicitation or general
advertising, and in connection therewith, the Purchaser did not (A) receive or review any advertisement, article, notice or
other communication published in a newspaper or magazine or similar media or broadcast over television or radio,
whether closed circuit, or generally available; or (B) attend any seminar meeting or industry investor conference whose
attendees were invited by any general solicitation or general advertising. 

1.6              The Purchaser hereby represents that the Purchaser, either by reason of the Purchaser’s business or 
financial experience or the business or financial experience of the Purchaser’s professional advisors (who are unaffiliated 
with and not compensated by the Company or any affiliate or selling agent of the Company, directly or indirectly), has
the capacity to protect the Purchaser’s own interests in connection with the transaction contemplated hereby. 

1.7              The Purchaser hereby acknowledges that this Agreement has not been reviewed by the SEC nor any state
regulatory authority since the purchase is intended to be exempt from the registration requirements of Section 5 of the
Securities Act, pursuant to Regulation D. The Purchaser understands that the Units have not been registered under the
Securities Act or under any state securities or “blue sky” laws and agrees not to sell, pledge, assign or otherwise transfer
or dispose of the Securities unless they are registered under the Securities Act and under any applicable state securities or
“blue sky” laws or unless an exemption from such registration is available. 

1.8              The Purchaser understands that the Securities have not been registered under the Securities Act by reason
of a claimed exemption under the provisions of the Securities Act that depends, in part, upon the Purchaser’s investment 
intention. In this connection, the Purchaser hereby represents that the Purchaser is purchasing the Units for the
Purchaser’s own account for investment and not with a view toward the resale or distribution to others. The Purchaser, if
an entity, further represents that it was not formed for the purpose of purchasing the Units. 

1.9              The Purchaser consents to the placement of a legend on any certificate or other document evidencing the
Securities that such Securities have not been registered under the Securities Act or any state securities or “blue sky” laws 
and setting forth or referring to the restrictions on transferability and sale thereof contained in this Agreement. The
Purchaser is aware that the Company will make a notation in its appropriate records with respect to the restrictions on the
transferability of such Securities. The legend to be placed on each certificate shall be in form substantially similar to the
following: 

“The securities represented by this certificate have not been registered under the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended and may not be sold, transferred, pledged, hypothecated or otherwise disposed of 
in the absence of (i) an effective registration statement for such securities under said act or (ii) an 
opinion of company counsel that such registration is not required.” 
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1.10          The Purchaser understands that the Company will review this Agreement and is hereby given authority by

the Purchaser to call Purchaser’s bank or place of employment or otherwise review the financial standing of the
Purchaser; and it is further agreed that the Company, at its sole discretion, reserves the unrestricted right, without further
documentation or agreement on the part of the Purchaser, to reject or limit any purchase, to accept purchases for
fractional Units and to withdraw the offer to the Purchaser at any time and that the Company will issue stop transfer
instructions to its transfer agent with respect to the Shares. 

1.11          The Purchaser hereby represents that the address of the Purchaser furnished by Purchaser on the signature
page hereof is the Purchaser’s principal residence if Purchaser is an individual or its principal business address if it is a
corporation or other entity. 

1.12          The Purchaser represents that the Purchaser has full power and authority (corporate, statutory and
otherwise) to execute and deliver this Agreement and to purchase the Units. This Agreement constitutes the legal, valid
and binding obligation of the Purchaser, enforceable against the Purchaser in accordance with its terms. 

1.13          If the Purchaser is a corporation, partnership, limited liability company, trust, employee benefit plan,
individual retirement account, Keogh Plan, or other tax-exempt entity, it is authorized and qualified to invest in the
Company and the person signing this Agreement on behalf of such entity has been duly authorized by such entity to do
so. 

1.14          The Purchaser acknowledges that if he or she is a Registered Representative of an FINRA member firm,
he or she must give such firm the notice required by the FINRA’s Rules of Fair Practice, receipt of which must be 
acknowledged by such firm in Section 7.4 below. 

1.15          The Purchaser acknowledges that at such time, if ever, as the Shares and the Common Stock underlying
the Warrants are registered pursuant to the Securities Act, sales of the Securities will be subject to state securities laws. 

1.16          The Purchaser and the Company agree not to issue any public statement with respect to the Purchaser’s 
investment or proposed investment in the Company or the terms of any agreement or covenant between them and the
Company without the other party’s prior written consent, except such disclosures as may be required under applicable law
or under any applicable order, rule or regulation. The Company agrees not to disclose the Purchaser by name in any of the
Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, except such disclosures as may be required under
applicable law or under any applicable order, rule or regulation. 

1.17          The Purchaser agrees to hold the Company and its directors, officers, employees, affiliates, controlling
persons and agents and their respective heirs, representatives, successors and assigns harmless and to indemnify them
against all liabilities, costs and expenses incurred by them as a result of (a) any sale or distribution of the Securities by the
Purchaser in violation of the Securities Act or any applicable state securities or “blue sky” laws; or (b) any false 
representation or warranty or any breach or failure by the Purchaser to comply with any 
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covenant made by the Purchaser in this Agreement (including the Confidential Investor Questionnaire contained in 
Article VII herein) or any other document furnished by the Purchaser to any of the foregoing in connection with this 
transaction. 

II.                REPRESENTATIONS BY AND COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY 

The Company hereby represents and warrants to the Purchaser that: 

2.1              Organization, Good Standing and Qualification. The Company is a corporation duly organized, validly
existing and in good standing under the laws of the State of Colorado and has full corporate power and authority to 
conduct its business. 

2.2              Capitalization and Voting Rights. The authorized capital stock of the Company consists of 500,000,000
shares of common stock of which 211,067,886 shares are issued and outstanding. The shares of issued and outstanding
capital stock of the Company have been duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and are nonassessable. Except as
described in the Offering Materials and Company Filings, there are no outstanding options, warrants, agreements,
convertible securities, preemptive rights or other rights to subscribe for or to purchase any shares of capital stock of the
Company. Except as otherwise required by law, there are no restrictions upon the voting or transfer of any of the shares of
capital stock of the Company pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation (the “Articles of Incorporation”), 
Bylaws or other governing documents or any agreement or other instruments to which the Company is a party or by
which the Company is bound. 

2.3              Authorization; Enforceability. The Company has all corporate right, power and authority to enter into this
Agreement and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby. All corporate action on the part of the Company, its
directors and stockholders necessary for the (a) authorization execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement by
the Company; and (b) authorization, sale, issuance and delivery of the Units contemplated hereby and the performance of
the Company’s obligations hereunder has been taken. This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the
Company and constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in
accordance with its terms, subject to laws of general application relating to bankruptcy, insolvency and the relief of
debtors and rules of law governing specific performance, injunctive relief or other equitable remedies, and to limitations
of public policy. The Securities, when issued and fully paid for in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, will be
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable. The issuance and sale of the Shares contemplated hereby will not give rise to
any preemptive rights or rights of first refusal on behalf of any person which have not been waived in connection with
this offering. 

2.4              No Conflict; Governmental Consents. 

(a)                The execution and delivery by the Company of this Agreement and the consummation of the
transactions contemplated hereby will not result in the violation of any material law, statute, rule, regulation, order, writ,
injunction, judgment or decree of any court or governmental authority to or by which the Company is bound, or of any
provision of the Articles of Incorporation or Bylaws of the Company, and will not conflict with, or result in a material 
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breach or violation of, any of the terms or provisions of, or constitute (with due notice or lapse of time or both) a default 
under, any lease, loan agreement, mortgage, security agreement, trust indenture or other agreement or instrument to which 
the Company is a party or by which it is bound or to which any of its properties or assets is subject, nor result in the 
creation or imposition of any lien upon any of the properties or assets of the Company. 

(b)               No consent, approval, authorization or other order of any governmental authority is required to be
obtained by the Company in connection with the authorization, execution and delivery of this Agreement or with the
authorization, issue and sale of the Securities, except such filings as may be required to be made with the SEC, FINRA,
NASDAQ and with any state or foreign blue sky or securities regulatory authority. 

2.5              Licenses. Except as disclosed in the Company Filings, , the Company has sufficient licenses, permits and
other governmental authorizations currently required for the conduct of its business or ownership of properties and is in
all material respects in compliance therewith. 

2.6              Litigation. Except as disclosed within Company filings with the United States Securities Exchange
Commission the Company knows of no pending or threatened legal or governmental proceedings against the Company
which could materially adversely affect the business, property, financial condition or operations of the Company or which
materially and adversely questions the validity of this Agreement or any agreements related to the transactions
contemplated hereby or the right of the Company to enter into any of such agreements, or to consummate the transactions
contemplated hereby or thereby. The Company is not a party or subject to the provisions of any order, writ, injunction,
judgment or decree of any court or government agency or instrumentality which could materially adversely affect the
business, property, financial condition or operations of the Company. There is no action, suit, proceeding or investigation
by the Company currently pending in any court or before any arbitrator or that the Company intends to initiate. 

2.7              Disclosure. The information set forth in the Offering Materials as of the date hereof contains no untrue
statement of a material fact nor omits to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements contained therein,
in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. 

2.8              Investment Company. The Company is not an “investment company” within the meaning of such term 
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, and the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder. 

2.9              Brokers. Neither the Company nor any of the Company's officers, directors, employees or stockholders
has employed or engaged any broker or finder in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and no
fee or other compensation is or will be due and owing to any broker, finder, underwriter, placement agent or similar
person in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. The Company is not party to any agreement,
arrangement or understanding whereby any person has an exclusive right to raise funds and/or place or purchase any debt
or equity securities for or on behalf of the Company. 
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III.             TERMS OF PURCHASE 

3.1              All funds paid hereunder shall be deposited with the Company in the account identified in Section 1.1
hereof. 

3.2              Certificates representing the Securities purchased by the Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement will be
prepared for delivery to the Purchaser within 15 business days following the closing at which such purchase takes place.
The Purchaser hereby authorizes and directs the Company to deliver the certificates representing the Securities purchased
by the Purchaser pursuant to this Agreement directly to the Purchaser’s residential or business address indicated on the 
signature page hereto. 

IV.             CONDITIONS TO OBLIGATIONS OF THE PURCHASERS 

4.1              The Purchaser’s obligation to purchase the Units at the closing at which such purchase is to be
consummated is subject to the fulfillment on or prior to such closing of the following conditions, which conditions may
be waived at the option of each Purchaser to the extent permitted by law: 

(a)                Covenants. All covenants, agreements and conditions contained in this Agreement to be
performed by the Company on or prior to the date of such closing shall have been performed or complied with in all
material respects. 

(b)               No Legal Order Pending. There shall not then be in effect any legal or other order enjoining or
restraining the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

(c)                No Law Prohibiting or Restricting Such Sale. There shall not be in effect any law, rule or 
regulation prohibiting or restricting such sale or requiring any consent or approval of any person, which shall not have
been obtained, to issue the Securities (except as otherwise provided in this Agreement). 

V.                REGISTRATION RIGHTS 

If at any time after the date of this Agreement, the Company shall decide to prepare and file with the SEC
a registration statement relating to an offering for its own account or the account of others under the Securities Act of any
of its equity securities, other than on Form S-4 or Form S-8 (each as promulgated under the Securities Act) or their then
equivalents relating to equity securities to be issued solely in connection with any acquisition of any entity or business or
equity securities issuable in connection with the stock option or other employee benefit plans, then the Company shall
send to the Purchaser a written notice of such determination and, if within fifteen days after the date of such notice, the
Purchaser shall so request in writing, the Company shall include in such registration statement, all or any part of the
Shares and the Common Stock underlying the Warrants that the Purchaser request to be registered; provided, however,
that, the Company shall not be required to register any shares of 
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Common Stock that are eligible for resale pursuant to Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act or that are the 
subject of a then effective registration statement; provided, further, however, if the registration so proposed by the 
Company involves an underwritten offering of the securities so being registered for the account of the Company, to be 
distributed by or through one or more underwriters of recognized standing, and the managing underwriter of such 
underwritten offering shall advise the Company in writing that, in its opinion, the distribution of all or a specified portion 
of the Securities which the Purchaser has requested the Company to register and otherwise concurrently with the 
securities being distributed by such underwriters will materially and adversely affect the distribution of such securities by 
such underwriters (such opinion to state the reasons therefor), then the Company will promptly furnish the Purchaser with 
a copy of such opinion, and by providing such written notice to the Purchaser, such Purchaser may be denied the 
registration of all or a specified portion of such Securities (in case of such a denial as to a portion of such shares of 
Common Stock); provided, however, shares to be registered by the Company for issuance by the Company shall have 
first priority, the Purchaser hereunder shall have second priority, and any other shares being registered on account of 
other third parties shall have third priority. 
  
VI.              MISCELLANEOUS 

6.1              Any notice or other communication given hereunder shall be deemed sufficient if in writing and sent by
registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or delivered by hand against written receipt therefor, addressed as
follows: 

if to the Company, to it at: 

XsunX, Inc. 
65 Enterprise 
Aliso Viejo, CA 92656 
Attn: Tom Djokovich, CEO 

  
With a copy to (which shall not constitute notice): 
  
Kirkpatrick & Lockhart 
Miami Center, 20th Floor 
201 South Biscayne Blvd. 
Miami, FL 33131-2399 
Attn: Clayton Parker 
  
if to the Purchaser, to the Purchaser’s address indicated on the signature page of this Agreement. 

Notices shall be deemed to have been given or delivered on the date of mailing, except notices of change of address,
which shall be deemed to have been given or delivered when received. 

6.2              Except as otherwise provided herein, this Agreement shall not be changed, modified or amended except
by a writing signed by the parties to be charged, and this Agreement 
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may not be discharged except by performance in accordance with its terms or by a writing signed by the party to be 
charged. 

6.3              Subject to the provisions of Section 6.1, this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
the parties hereto and to their respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns. This Agreement sets forth the
entire agreement and understanding between the parties as to the subject matter hereof and merges and supersedes all
prior discussions, agreements and understandings of any and every nature among them. 

6.4              Upon the execution and delivery of this Agreement by the Purchaser, this Agreement shall become a
binding obligation of the Purchaser with respect to the purchase of Units as herein provided, subject, however, to the right
hereby reserved by the Company to enter into the same agreements with other Purchasers and to add and/or delete other
persons as Purchasers. 

6.5              NOTWITHSTANDING THE PLACE WHERE THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE EXECUTED BY ANY
OF THE PARTIES HERETO, THE PARTIES EXPRESSLY AGREE THAT ALL THE TERMS AND PROVISIONS
HEREOF SHALL BE CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE LAWS OF THE STATE
OF CALIFORNIA WITHOUT REGARD TO SUCH STATE’S PRINCIPLES OF CONFLICTS OF LAW. IN THE
EVENT THAT A JUDICIAL PROCEEDING IS NECESSARY, THE SOLE FORUM FOR RESOLVING DISPUTES
ARISING OUT OF OR RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT IS THE COURTS STATE OF CALIFORNIA IN AND
FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES OR THE FEDERAL COURTS FOR SUCH STATE AND COUNTY, AND
ALL RELATED APPELLATE COURTS, THE PARTIES HEREBY IRREVOCABLY CONSENT TO THE
JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURTS AND AGREE TO SAID VENUE. 

6.6              In order to discourage frivolous claims the parties agree that unless a claimant in any proceeding arising
out of this Agreement succeeds in establishing his claim and recovering a judgment against another party (regardless of
whether such claimant succeeds against one of the other parties to the action), then the other party shall be entitled to
recover from such claimant all of its/their reasonable legal costs and expenses relating to such proceeding and/or incurred
in preparation therefor. 

6.7              The holding of any provision of this Agreement to be invalid or unenforceable by a court of competent
jurisdiction shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement, which shall remain in full force and effect. If any
provision of this Agreement shall be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or incapable of
being enforced in whole or in part, such provision shall be interpreted so as to remain enforceable to the maximum extent
permissible consistent with applicable law and the remaining conditions and provisions or portions thereof shall
nevertheless remain in full force and effect and enforceable to the extent they are valid, legal and enforceable, and no
provisions shall be deemed dependent upon any other covenant or provision unless so expressed herein. 

6.8              It is agreed that a waiver by either party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate,
or be construed, as a waiver of any subsequent breach by that same party. 
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6.9              The parties agree to execute and deliver all such further documents, agreements and instruments and take 
such other and further action as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the purposes and intent of this Agreement. 

  
6.10              This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts each of which shall be deemed an

original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same instrument. 

6.11              Nothing in this Agreement shall create or be deemed to create any rights in any person or entity not a
party to this Agreement. 

  
  
  

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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VII.              CONFIDENTIAL INVESTOR QUESTIONNAIRE 

7.1              The Purchaser represents and warrants that he, she or it comes within one category marked below, and
that for any category marked, he, she or it has truthfully set forth, where applicable, the factual basis or reason the
Purchaser comes within that category. ALL INFORMATION IN RESPONSE TO THIS SECTION WILL BE KEPT
STRICTLY CONFIDENTIAL. The undersigned agrees to furnish any additional information which the Company deems
necessary in order to verify the answers set forth below. 

  

 

Category A ___ The undersigned is an individual (not a partnership, corporation, etc.) whose individual net worth, or 
joint net worth with his or her spouse, presently exceeds $1,000,000, exclusive of the value of his or her 
primary residence. 
  

Category B ___ The undersigned is an individual (not a partnership, corporation, etc.) who had an income in excess of 
$200,000 in each of the two most recent years, or joint income with his or her spouse in excess of 
$300,000 in each of those years (in each case including foreign income, tax exempt income and full 
amount of capital gains and losses but excluding any income of other family members and any 
unrealized capital appreciation) and has a reasonable expectation of reaching the same income level in 
the current year. 
  

Category C ___ The undersigned is a director or executive officer of the Company which is issuing and selling the 
Units. 
  

Category D ___ The undersigned is a bank; a savings and loan association; insurance company; registered investment 
company; registered business development company; licensed small business investment company 
(“SBIC”); or employee benefit plan within the meaning of Title 1 of ERISA and (a) the investment 
decision is made by a plan fiduciary which is either a bank, savings and loan association, insurance 
company or registered investment advisor, or (b) the plan has total assets in excess of $5,000,000 or (c) 
is a self directed plan with investment decisions made solely by persons that are accredited investors. 
(describe entity) 

______________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________ 
  

Category E ___ The undersigned is a private business development company as defined in section 202(a)(22) of the 
Investment Advisors Act of 1940. (describe entity) 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________  
  

Category F ___ The undersigned is a corporation, partnership, Massachusetts business trust, or non-profit organization 
within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code, in each case not formed for the 
specific purpose of acquiring the Shares and with total assets in excess of $5,000,000. (describe entity) 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
________________________________________________________________________________  
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7.2              SUITABILITY (please answer each question) 

(a) For an individual Purchaser, please describe your current employment, including the company by which you are
employed and its principal business: 

______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

  
(b) For an individual Purchaser, please describe any college or graduate degrees held by you: 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

  
(c) For all Purchasers, please list types of prior investments: 

Stocks, options, private placements, mutual funds, penny stocks______________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

  
(d) For all Purchasers, please state whether you have participated in other private placements before: 

YES___X____ NO_______ 

  

(e) If your answer to question (d) above was “YES”, please indicate frequency of such prior participation in private 
placements of: 

 

Category G ___ The undersigned is a trust with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, not formed for the specific purpose 
of acquiring the Units, where the purchase is directed by a “sophisticated investor” as defined in 
Regulation 506(b)(2)(ii) under the Act. 
  

Category H _X_ The undersigned is an entity (other than a trust) in which all of the equity owners are “accredited 
investors” within one or more of the above categories. If relying upon this Category alone, each equity 
owner must complete a separate copy of this Agreement. (describe entity) 

__Corporation_______________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________ 
  

Category I ___ The undersigned is not within any of the categories above and is therefore not an accredited investor.

The undersigned agrees that the undersigned will notify the Company at any time on or prior to the 
closing in the event that the representations and warranties in this Agreement shall cease to be true, 
accurate and complete. 
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(f) For individual Purchasers, do you expect your current level of income to significantly decrease in the foreseeable future: 

YES_______ NO_______ 

(g) For trust, corporate, partnership and other institutional Purchasers, do you expect your total assets to significantly
decrease in the foreseeable future: 

YES_______ NO___X____ 

(h) For all Purchasers, do you have any other investments or contingent liabilities which you reasonably anticipate could
cause you to need sudden cash requirements in excess of cash readily available to you: 

YES_______ NO___X____ 

(i) For all Purchasers, are you familiar with the risk aspects and the non-liquidity of investments such as the securities for 
which you seek to subscribe? 

YES____X___ NO_______ 

(j) For all Purchasers, do you understand that there is no guarantee of financial return on this investment and that you run the
risk of losing your entire investment? 

YES____X___ NO_______ 

  
7.3              MANNER IN WHICH TITLE IS TO BE HELD. (circle one) 

(a) Individual Ownership 
(b) Community Property 
(c) Joint Tenant with Right of 

 Survivorship (both parties 
 must sign) 

(d) Partnership* 
(e) Tenants in Common 
(f) Company* 
(g) Trust* 

(h) Other* 

  

*If Securities are being subscribed for by an entity, the attached Certificate of Signatory must also be
completed. 

 

   
Public 
Companies 

Private 
Companies 

Public or Private Companies
with no, or insignificant, 
assets and operations 

Frequently             X                               X                               X                    
Occasionally                                                                                                        
Never                                                                                                        
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7.4              FINRA AFFILIATION. 

Are you affiliated or associated with a FINRA member firm (please check one): 

  

Yes _________ No ____X______ 

  
If Yes, please describe: 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
  
*If Purchaser is a Registered Representative with a FINRA member firm, have the following acknowledgment signed by the
appropriate party: 

The undersigned FINRA member firm acknowledges receipt of the notice required by Article 3, Sections 28(a) and (b) of the Rules
of Fair Practice. 

_________________________________ 
Name of FINRA Member Firm 
  
By: ______________________________ 

Authorized Officer 
  
Date: ____________________________ 
  

7.5              The undersigned is informed of the significance to the Company of the foregoing representations and
answers contained in the Confidential Investor Questionnaire contained in this Article VI and such answers have been
provided under the assumption that the Company will rely on them. 

  

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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1,250,000 Units X $0.04/Unit = $50,000.00 (the “Purchase Price”), representing a total of 1,250,000 shares of 
common stock and 2,500,000 warrant shares 
  

  
  
Dated: _____________________ 
  

This Stock Purchase Agreement is agreed to and accepted as of _______________, 2011. 

XsunX, Inc. 
  
By:____________________________________ 
Name: Tom Djokovich 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 

  

 

  
Signature  Signature (if purchasing jointly)
 
  
Name Typed or Printed Name Typed or Printed
 
  
Title (if Purchaser is an Entity) Title (if Purchaser is an Entity)
 
  
Entity Name (if applicable) Entity Name (if applicable)
 
  
Address Address
 
  
City, State and Zip Code City, State and Zip Code
 
  
Telephone-Business Telephone-Business
 
  
Telephone-Residence Telephone-Residence
 
  
Facsimile-Business Facsimile-Business
 
  
Facsimile-Residence Facsimile-Residence
 
  
Tax ID # or Social Security # Tax ID # or Social Security #
 
 
Name in which securities should be issued:
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CERTIFICATE OF SIGNATORY 
  
  

(To be completed if Units are 
being subscribed for by an entity) 

  
  
I, ________________________, am the _______________ of ___________________ (the “Entity”). 
  
I certify that I am empowered and duly authorized by the Entity to execute and carry out the terms of the Subscription Agreement
and to purchase and hold the Securities, and certify further that the Subscription Agreement has been duly and validly executed on
behalf of the Entity and constitutes a legal and binding obligation of the Entity. 
  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____day of ______________ 
  
  

  
  

_______________________________________ 
(Signature) 
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Exhibit “A” 

THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “SEC”) OR THE 
SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD 
EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN
AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE
SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AND, UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO
RULE 144 UNDER SAID ACT, AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE TRANSFEROR AND REASONABLY
ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY TO SUCH EFFECT, THE FORM AND SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY
SATISFACTORY TO THE COMPANY. THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN
ACCOUNT WITH A REGISTERED BROKER-DEALER OR OTHER BONA FIDE LOAN WITH A FINANCIAL INSTITUTION THAT IS
AN “ACCREDITED INVESTOR”AS DEFINED IN RULE 501(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT. 

XSUNX, INC.  

COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT 

Warrant Number: _______ Issuance Date: _______________ 

THIS COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT (the “Warrant”) certifies that, for value received, ________________(the 
“Holder”) is entitled, upon the terms and subject to the limitations on exercise and the conditions hereinafter set forth, at any time on
or after _________________ (the “Initial Exercise Date”) and on or prior to the close of business on the five (5) year anniversary of
the Initial Exercise Date but not thereafter (the “Termination Date”), to subscribe for and purchase from XsunX, Inc., a Colorado
corporation (the “Company”), up to 2,500,000 shares of Common Stock, subject to adjustment hereunder (the “Warrant Shares”). 
The purchase price of one share of Common Stock under this Warrant shall be equal to $0.04, subject to adjustment hereunder (the 
“Exercise Price”). 

Section 1. Exercise of Warrant.  

(a) Exercise of Warrant. Exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant may be made, in whole or in part, at any
time or times on or after the Initial Exercise Date and on or before the Termination Date by delivery to the Company (or such other
office or agency of the Company as it may designate by notice in writing to the registered Holder at the address of the Holder
appearing on the books of the Company) of a duly executed facsimile copy of the Notice of Exercise Form annexed hereto; and,
within three (3) Trading Days of the date said Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company, the Company shall have received
payment of the aggregate Exercise Price of the shares thereby purchased by wire transfer or, if available, pursuant to the cashless
exercise procedure specified in Section 1(b) below. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Holder shall not be required
to physically surrender this Warrant to the Company until the Holder has purchased all of the Warrant Shares available hereunder
and the Warrant has been exercised in full, in which case, the Holder shall surrender this Warrant to the Company for cancellation
within three (3) Trading Days of the date the final Notice of Exercise is delivered to the Company. Partial exercises of this Warrant
resulting in purchases of a portion of the total number of Warrant Shares available hereunder shall have the effect of lowering the
outstanding number of Warrant Shares purchasable hereunder in an amount equal to the applicable number of Warrant Shares
purchased. The Holder may not exercise this Warrant more than ten times. The Holder and the Company shall maintain records
showing the number of Warrant Shares purchased and the date of such purchases. The Company shall deliver any objection to any
Notice of Exercise Form within one (1) Business Day of receipt of such notice. In the event of any dispute or discrepancy, the
records of the Holder shall be controlling and determinative in the absence of manifest error. The Holder and any assignee, by 
acceptance of this Warrant, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this paragraph,  
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following the purchase of a portion of the Warrant Shares hereunder, the number of Warrant Shares available for purchase
hereunder at any given time may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof. 

(b) Cashless Exercise. Notwithstanding any provisions herein to the contrary, if the Fair Market Value (as defined
below) of one share of Common Stock is greater than the Exercise Price (at the date of calculation as set forth below), to
the extent the Holder does not elect to pay cash upon the deemed exercise of this Warrant, the Holder shall be deemed to
have elected to receive shares equal to the value (as determined below) of this Warrant (or the portion thereof being
cancelled) in which event the Company shall issue to the holder a number of shares of Common Stock computed using
the following formula: 

  
X=Y (A-B) 

A 
Where X= the number of shares of Common Stock to be issued to the holder 

  
Y= the number of shares of Common Stock deemed purchased under the Warrant for which the Holder is

not paying cash 

A= the Fair Market Value of one share of the Company’s Common Stock (at the date of such calculation) 

B= Purchase Price (as adjusted to the date of such calculation) 

For purposes of Rule 144 promulgated under the 1933 Act, it is intended, subject to applicable interpretations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission, that the Warrant Shares issued in a cashless exercise transaction shall be deemed to have been
acquired by the Holder, and the holding period for the Warrant Shares shall be deemed to have commenced, on the date this Warrant
was originally issued. 

Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock as of a particular date (the "Determination Date") shall mean: 
(i) If the Company's Common Stock is traded on registered national securities exchange such as NASDAQ, AMEX

or NYSE, then the closing or last sale price, respectively, reported for the last business day immediately preceding the
Determination Date; 

(ii) If the Company's Common Stock is not traded on a registered national securities exchange, but is traded in the
over-the-counter market, then the average of the closing bid and ask prices reported for the last business day immediately
preceding the Determination Date; 

(iii) Except as provided in clause (iv) below, if the Company's Common Stock is not publicly traded, then as the
Holder and the Company agree, or in the absence of such an agreement, by arbitration in accordance with the rules then
standing of the American Arbitration Association, before a single arbitrator to be chosen from a panel of persons qualified
by education and training to pass on the matter to be decided; or 

(iv) If the Determination Date is the date of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up, or any event deemed to be a
liquidation, dissolution or winding up pursuant to the Company's articles of incorporation, then all amounts to be payable per
share to holders of the Common Stock pursuant to the articles of incorporation in the event of such liquidation, dissolution or
winding up, plus all other amounts to be payable per share in respect of the Common Stock in liquidation under the articles
of incorporation, assuming for the purposes of this clause (iv) that all of the shares of Common Stock then issuable upon
exercise of all of the Warrants are outstanding at the Determination Date. 
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(c) Mechanics of Exercise. 

(i) Delivery of Certificates Upon Exercise. Certificates for shares purchased hereunder shall be transmitted by the
Company’s transfer agent to the Holder by crediting the account of the Holder’s prime broker with the Depository Trust Company 
through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission (“DWAC”) system if the Company is then a participant in such system and
either (A) there is an effective Registration Statement permitting the resale of the Warrant Shares by the Holder or (B) the shares are
eligible for resale by the Holder without volume or manner-of-sale limitations pursuant to Rule 144, and otherwise by physical
delivery to the address specified by the Holder in the Notice of Exercise by the date that is three (3) Trading Days after the latest of
(A) the delivery to the Company of the Notice of Exercise Form, (B) surrender of this Warrant (if required), and (C) payment of the
aggregate Exercise Price as set forth above (including by cashless exercise, if permitted) (such date, the “Warrant Share Delivery 
Date”). This Warrant shall be deemed to have been exercised on the first date on which all of the foregoing have been delivered to
the Company. The Warrant Shares shall be deemed to have been issued, and Holder or any other person so designated to be named
therein shall be deemed to have become a holder of record of such shares for all purposes, as of the date the Warrant has been
exercised, with payment to the Company of the Exercise Price (or by cashless exercise, if permitted) and all taxes required to be paid
by the Holder, if any, having been paid. 

(ii) Delivery of New Warrants Upon Exercise. If this Warrant shall have been exercised in part, the Company shall, at the
request of a Holder and upon surrender of this Warrant certificate, at the time of delivery of the certificate or certificates representing
Warrant Shares, deliver to Holder a new Warrant evidencing the rights of Holder to purchase the unpurchased Warrant Shares called
for by this Warrant, which new Warrant shall in all other respects be identical with this Warrant. 

(iii) No Fractional Shares or Scrip. No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the
exercise of this Warrant. As to any fraction of a share which the Holder would otherwise be entitled to purchase upon such exercise,
the Company shall, at its election, either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction
multiplied by the Exercise Price or round up to the next whole share. 

(iv) Charges, Taxes and Expenses. Issuance of certificates for Warrant Shares shall be made without charge to the Holder for
any issue or transfer tax or other incidental expense in respect of the issuance of such certificate, all of which taxes and expenses
shall be paid by the Company, and such certificates shall be issued in the name of the Holder or in such name or names as may be
directed by the Holder; provided, however, that in the event certificates for Warrant Shares are to be issued in a name other than the
name of the Holder, this Warrant when surrendered for exercise shall be accompanied by the Assignment Form attached hereto duly
executed by the Holder and the Company may require, as a condition thereto, the payment of a sum sufficient to reimburse it for any
transfer tax incidental thereto. 

(d) Holder’s Exercise Limitations. The Company shall not effect any exercise of this Warrant, and a Holder shall not have
the right to exercise any portion of this Warrant, pursuant to Section 1 or otherwise, to the extent that after giving effect to such
issuance after exercise as set forth on the applicable Notice of Exercise, the Holder (together with the Holder’s Affiliates, and any 
other Persons acting as a group together with the Holder or any of the Holder’s Affiliates), would beneficially own in excess of the 
Beneficial Ownership Limitation (as defined below). For purposes of the foregoing sentence, the number of shares of Common
Stock beneficially owned by the Holder and its Affiliates shall include the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon
exercise of this Warrant with respect to which such determination is being made, but shall exclude the number of shares of Common
Stock which would be issuable upon (i) exercise of the remaining, nonexercised portion of this Warrant beneficially owned by the
Holder or any of its Affiliates and (ii) exercise or conversion of the unexercised or nonconverted portion of any other securities of
the Company (including, without limitation, any other Common Stock Equivalents) subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise
analogous to the limitation contained herein beneficially owned by the Holder or any of its Affiliates. Except as 
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set forth in the preceding sentence, for purposes of this Section 1(d), beneficial ownership shall be calculated in accordance with
Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, it being acknowledged by the Holder that
the Company is not representing to the Holder that such calculation is in compliance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the
Holder is solely responsible for any schedules required to be filed in accordance therewith. To the extent that the limitation contained
in this Section 1(d) applies, the determination of whether this Warrant is exercisable (in relation to other securities owned by the
Holder together with any Affiliates) and of which portion of this Warrant is exercisable shall be in the sole discretion of the Holder,
and the submission of a Notice of Exercise shall be deemed to be the Holder’s determination of whether this Warrant is exercisable 
(in relation to other securities owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates) and of which portion of this Warrant is exercisable,
in each case subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation, and the Company shall have no obligation to verify or confirm the
accuracy of such determination. In addition, a determination as to any group status as contemplated above shall be determined in
accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. For purposes of this
Section 1(d), in determining the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock, a Holder may rely on the number of outstanding
shares of Common Stock as reflected in (A) the Company’s most recent periodic or annual report filed with the Commission, as the
case may be, (B) a more recent public announcement by the Company or (C) a more recent written notice by the Company or the
Transfer Agent setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding. Upon the written or oral request of a Holder, the
Company shall within two Trading Days confirm orally and in writing to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock then
outstanding. In any case, the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect to the
conversion or exercise of securities of the Company, including this Warrant, by the Holder or its Affiliates since the date as of which
such number of outstanding shares of Common Stock was reported. The “Beneficial Ownership Limitation” shall be 4.99%, or 
9.99% if the Company does not have any class of securities registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act, of the number of
shares of the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of Common Stock issuable upon
exercise of this Warrant. The Holder may decrease or, upon not less than 61 days’ prior notice to the Company, may increase the 
Beneficial Ownership Limitation provisions of this Section 1(d). Any such increase will not be effective until the 61st day after such
notice is delivered to the Company. The provisions of this paragraph shall be construed and implemented in a manner otherwise than
in strict conformity with the terms of this Section 1(d) to correct this paragraph (or any portion hereof) which may be defective or
inconsistent with the intended Beneficial Ownership Limitation herein contained or to make changes or supplements necessary or
desirable to properly give effect to such limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall apply to a successor holder of
this Warrant. 

Section 2. Certain Adjustments. 

(a) Stock Dividends and Splits. If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding: (i) pays a stock dividend or
otherwise makes a distribution or distributions on shares of its Common Stock or any other equity or equity equivalent securities
payable in shares of Common Stock (which, for avoidance of doubt, shall not include any shares of Common Stock issued by the
Company upon exercise of this Warrant), (ii) subdivides outstanding shares of Common Stock into a larger number of shares, (iii)
combines (including by way of reverse stock split) outstanding shares of Common Stock into a smaller number of shares or (iv)
issues by reclassification of shares of the Common Stock any shares of capital stock of the Company, then in each case the Exercise
Price shall be multiplied by a fraction of which the numerator shall be the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury
shares, if any) outstanding immediately before such event and of which the denominator shall be the number of shares of Common
Stock outstanding immediately after such event, and the number of shares issuable upon exercise of this Warrant shall be
proportionately adjusted such that the aggregate Exercise Price of this Warrant shall remain unchanged. Any adjustment made
pursuant to this Section 2(a) shall become effective immediately after the record date for the determination of stockholders entitled
to receive such dividend or distribution and shall become effective immediately after the effective date in the case of a subdivision,
combination or re-classification. 
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(b) Subsequent Equity Sales. If the Company or any Subsidiary thereof, as applicable, at any time while this Warrant is
outstanding, shall sell or grant any option to purchase, or sell or grant any right to reprice, or otherwise dispose of or issue (or
announce any offer, sale, grant or any option to purchase or other disposition) any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents
entitling any Person to acquire shares of Common Stock, or adjust, whether by operation of purchase price adjustment, reset
provision, floating conversion or otherwise, any outstanding warrant, option or other right to acquire Common Stock or outstanding
Common Stock Equivalents, at an effective price per share less than the then Exercise Price (such lower price, the “Base Share 
Price” and such issuances collectively, a “Dilutive Issuance”), then until this Warrant is no longer outstanding, the Exercise Price
shall be reduced to the Base Share Price. The Company shall notify the Holder, in writing, no later than the Trading Day following
the issuance of any Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents subject to this Section 2(b), indicating therein the applicable
issuance price, or applicable reset price, exchange price, conversion price and other pricing terms (such notice, the “Dilutive 
Issuance Notice”). For purposes of clarification, whether or not the Company provides a Dilutive Issuance Notice pursuant to this
Section 2(b), upon the occurrence of any Dilutive Issuance, after the date of such Dilutive Issuance the Holder is entitled to receive
the benefit of the adjusted Exercise Price regardless of whether the Holder accurately refers to the adjusted Exercise Price in the
Notice of Exercise. 

“Exempt Issuance” means the issuance of (a) shares of Common Stock or options to employees, officers or directors of the
Company pursuant to any existing stock or option plan or any future stock option plan duly adopted for such purpose, by a majority
of the non-employee members of the Board of Directors or a majority of the members of a committee of non-employee directors 
established for such purpose, (b) securities upon the exercise or exchange of or conversion of any securities issued hereunder and/or
other securities exercisable or exchangeable for or convertible into shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the date
hereof, provided that such securities have not been amended since the date hereof to increase the number of such securities or to
decrease the exercise price, exchange price or conversion price of such securities and (c) securities issued pursuant to acquisitions or
strategic transactions, provided that any such issuance shall only be to a Person (or to the equity holders of a Person) which is, itself
or through its subsidiaries, an operating company or an owner of assets in or used in a business synergistic with the business of the
Company and such acquisition or strategic transaction shall be likely to provide to the Company additional benefits other than the
investment of funds, and shall not include a transaction in which the Company is issuing securities primarily for the purpose of
raising capital or to an entity whose primary business is investing in securities. 

(c) Pro Rata Distributions. If the Company, at any time while this Warrant is outstanding, shall distribute to all holders of
Common Stock (and not to the Holders) evidences of its indebtedness or assets (including cash and cash dividends) or rights or
warrants to subscribe for or purchase any security other than the Common Stock (which shall be subject to Section 2(b)), then in
each such case the Exercise Price shall be adjusted by multiplying the Exercise Price in effect immediately prior to the record date
fixed for determination of stockholders entitled to receive such distribution by a fraction of which the denominator shall be the
VWAP determined as of the record date mentioned above, and of which the numerator shall be such VWAP on such record date less
the then per share fair market value at such record date of the portion of such assets or evidence of indebtedness or rights or warrants
so distributed applicable to one outstanding share of the Common Stock as determined by the Board of Directors in good faith.
Additionally, the number of Warrant Shares issuable hereunder shall be increased such that the aggregate Exercise Price payable
hereunder, after taking into account the decrease in the Exercise Price, shall be equal to the aggregate Exercise Price prior to such
adjustment. In either case the adjustments shall be described in a statement provided to the Holder of the portion of assets or
evidences of indebtedness so distributed or such subscription rights applicable to one share of Common Stock. Such adjustment shall
be made whenever any such distribution is made and shall become effective immediately after the record date mentioned above. 

“VWAP” means, for any date, (i) the daily volume weighted average price of the Common Stock for such date on 
the OTC Bulletin Board or a registered national securities exchange, as reported by Bloomberg Financial L.P. (based on a Trading 
Day from 9:30 a.m. Eastern Time to 4:02 p.m. Eastern Time);  
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(ii) if the Common Stock is not then listed or quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board and if prices for the Common Stock are then 
reported in the “Pink Sheets” published by the Pink Sheets, LLC (or a similar organization or agency succeeding to its functions of 
reporting prices), the most recent bid price per share of the Common Stock so reported; or (iii) in all other cases, the fair market 
value of a share of Common Stock as determined by an independent appraiser selected in good faith by the Holder and reasonably 
acceptable to the Maker. 

(d) Calculations. All calculations under this Section 2 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as
the case may be. For purposes of this Section 2, the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a
given date shall be the sum of the number of shares of Common Stock (excluding treasury shares, if any) issued and outstanding. 

(e) Notice to Holder. Whenever the Exercise Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 2, the Company shall
promptly mail to the Holder a notice setting forth the Exercise Price after such adjustment and setting forth a brief statement of the
facts requiring such adjustment. 

Section 3. Transfer of Warrant. 

(a) Transferability. Subject to compliance with any applicable securities laws and the conditions set forth in Section 3(d)
hereof, this Warrant and all rights hereunder (including, without limitation, any registration rights) are transferable, in whole or in
part, upon five (5) days written notice to the Company and the surrender of this Warrant at the principal office of the Company or its
designated agent, together with a written assignment of this Warrant substantially in the form attached hereto duly executed by the
Holder or its agent or attorney and funds sufficient to pay any transfer taxes payable upon the making of such transfer. Upon such
surrender and, if required, such payment, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in the name of the
assignee or assignees, as applicable, and in the denomination or denominations specified in such instrument of assignment, and shall
issue to the assignor a new Warrant evidencing the portion of this Warrant not so assigned, and this Warrant shall promptly be
cancelled. The Warrant, if properly assigned in accordance herewith, may be exercised by a new holder for the purchase of Warrant
Shares without having a new Warrant issued. 

(b) New Warrants. This Warrant may be divided or combined with other Warrants upon presentation hereof at the aforesaid
office of the Company, together with a written notice specifying the names and denominations in which new Warrants are to be
issued, signed by the Holder or its agent or attorney. Subject to compliance with Section 3(a), as to any transfer which may be
involved in such division or combination, the Company shall execute and deliver a new Warrant or Warrants in exchange for the
Warrant or Warrants to be divided or combined in accordance with such notice. All Warrants issued on transfers or exchanges shall
be dated the Issuance Date and shall be identical with this Warrant except as to the number of Warrant Shares issuable pursuant
thereto. 

(c) Warrant Register. The Company shall register this Warrant, upon records to be maintained by the Company for that
purpose, in the name of the record Holder hereof from time to time. The Company may deem and treat the registered Holder of this
Warrant as the absolute owner hereof for the purpose of any exercise hereof or any distribution to the Holder, and for all other
purposes, absent actual notice to the contrary. 

(d) Compliance with Securities Laws. 

(i) The Holder of this Warrant, by acceptance hereof, acknowledges that this Warrant and the shares of Warrant
Stock to be issued upon exercise hereof are being acquired solely for the Holder’s own account and not as a nominee for any 
other party, and for investment, and that the Holder will not offer, sell or otherwise dispose of this Warrant or any shares of
Warrant Stock to be issued upon 
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exercise hereof except pursuant to an effective registration statement, or an exemption from registration, under the Securities
Act and any applicable state securities laws. 

(ii) Except as provided in paragraph (iii) below, this Warrant and all certificates representing shares of Warrant
Stock issued upon exercise hereof shall be stamped or imprinted with a legend in substantially the following form: 
  

THIS WARRANT AND THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK ISSUABLE UPON 
EXERCISE HEREOF HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 
1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”) OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS 
AND MAY NOT BE SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF UNLESS 
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND UNDER APPLICABLE STATE 
SECURITIES LAWS OR XSUNX, INC. SHALL HAVE RECEIVED AN OPINION OF 
COUNSEL THAT REGISTRATION OF SUCH SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT 
AND UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS IS NOT 
REQUIRED. 

(iii) The restrictions imposed by this subsection (d) upon the transfer of this Warrant or the shares of Warrant Stock
to be purchased upon exercise hereof shall terminate (A) when such securities shall have been resold pursuant to an effective
registration statement under the Securities Act, (B) upon the Company’s receipt of an opinion of counsel, in form and 
substance reasonably satisfactory to the Company, addressed to the Company to the effect that such restrictions are no
longer required to ensure compliance with the Securities Act and state securities laws or (C) upon the Company’s receipt of 
other evidence reasonably satisfactory to the Company that such registration and qualification under the Securities Act and
state securities laws are not required. Whenever such restrictions shall cease and terminate as to any such securities, the
Holder thereof shall be entitled to receive from the Company (or its transfer agent and registrar), without expense (other than
applicable transfer taxes, if any), new Warrants (or, in the case of shares of Warrant Stock, new stock certificates) of like
tenor not bearing the applicable legend required by paragraph (ii) above relating to the Securities Act and state securities
laws. 

(e) Representation by the Holder. The Holder, by the acceptance hereof, represents and warrants that it is acquiring this
Warrant and, upon any exercise hereof, will acquire the Warrant Shares issuable upon such exercise, for its own account and not
with a view to or for distributing or reselling such Warrant or Warrant Shares; provided that this representation shall not be breached
by any act of the Holder that complies with the Securities Act and any applicable state securities law. 

Section 4. Registration Rights. 

If at any time during the term of this Warrant, the Company shall decide to prepare and file with the SEC a registration
statement relating to an offering for its own account or the account of others under the Securities Act of any of its equity securities,
other than on Form S-4 or Form S-8 (each as promulgated under the Securities Act) or their then equivalents relating to equity
securities to be issued solely in connection with any acquisition of any entity or business or equity securities issuable in connection
with the stock option or other employee benefit plans, then the Company shall send to the Holder a written notice of such
determination and, if within fifteen days after the date of such notice, the Holder shall so request in writing, the Company shall
include in such registration statement, all or any part of the and the Common Stock underlying the Warrants that the Holder request
to be registered; provided, however, that, the Company shall not be required to register any shares of Common Stock that are eligible
for resale pursuant to Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act 
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or that are the subject of a then effective registration statement; provided, further, however, if the registration so proposed by the
Company involves an underwritten offering of the securities so being registered for the account of the Company, to be distributed by
or through one or more underwriters of recognized standing, and the managing underwriter of such underwritten offering shall
advise the Company in writing that, in its opinion, the distribution of all or a specified portion of the shares of Common Stock which
the Holder has requested the Company to register and otherwise concurrently with the securities being distributed by such
underwriters will materially and adversely affect the distribution of such securities by such underwriters (such opinion to state the
reasons therefor), then the Company will promptly furnish the Holder of shares of Common Stock hereto with a copy of such
opinion, and by providing such written notice to the Holder, such Holder may be denied the registration of all or a specified portion
of such shares of Common Stock (in case of such a denial as to a portion of such shares of Common Stock); provided, however,
shares to be registered by the Company for issuance by the Company shall have first priority, the Holder hereunder shall have
second priority, and any other shares being registered on account of other third parties shall have third priority. 

Section 5. Miscellaneous. 

(a) No Rights as Stockholder Until Exercise. This Warrant does not entitle the Holder to any voting rights, dividends or
other rights as a stockholder of the Company prior to the exercise hereof as set forth in Section 1(c)(i). 

(b) Loss, Theft, Destruction or Mutilation of Warrant. The Company covenants that upon receipt by the Company of
evidence reasonably satisfactory to it of the loss, theft, destruction or mutilation of this Warrant or any stock certificate relating to
the Warrant Shares, and in case of loss, theft or destruction, of indemnity or security reasonably satisfactory to it (which, in the case
of the Warrant, shall not include the posting of any bond), and upon surrender and cancellation of such Warrant or stock certificate,
if mutilated, the Company will make and deliver a new Warrant or stock certificate of like tenor and dated as of such cancellation, in
lieu of such Warrant or stock certificate. 

(c) Saturdays, Sundays, Holidays, etc. If the last or appointed day for the taking of any action or the expiration of any right
required or granted herein shall not be a Business Day, then, such action may be taken or such right may be exercised on the next
succeeding Business Day. 

(d) Authorized Shares. The Company covenants that, during the period the Warrant is outstanding, it will reserve from its
authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares to provide for the issuance of the Warrant Shares upon the
exercise of any purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company further covenants that its issuance of this Warrant shall constitute
full authority to its officers who are charged with the duty of executing stock certificates to execute and issue the necessary
certificates for the Warrant Shares upon the exercise of the purchase rights under this Warrant. The Company will take all such
reasonable action as may be necessary to assure that such Warrant Shares may be issued as provided herein without violation of any
applicable law or regulation, or of any requirements of the trading market upon which the Common Stock may be listed. The
Company covenants that all Warrant Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the purchase rights represented by this
Warrant will, upon exercise of the purchase rights represented by this Warrant, be duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and
nonassessable and free from all taxes, liens and charges created by the Company in respect of the issue thereof (other than taxes in
respect of any transfer occurring contemporaneously with such issue). 

(e) Governing Law; Consent to Jurisdiction. This Warrant shall be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the
internal laws of the State of Nevada, without reference to the choice of law provisions thereof. The Company and, by accepting this
Warrant, the Holder, each irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Nevada located in Nevada
and the United States District Court situated therein for the purpose of any suit, action, proceeding or judgment relating to or arising
out of this Warrant and the transactions contemplated hereby. Service of process in connection with any such suit, action or
proceeding 
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may be served on each party hereto anywhere in the world by the same methods as are specified for the giving of notices under this
Warrant. The Company and, by accepting this Warrant, the Holder, each irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction of any such court in
any such suit, action or proceeding and to the laying of venue in such court. The Company and, by accepting this Warrant, the
Holder, each irrevocably waives any objection to the laying of venue of any such suit, action or proceeding brought in such courts
and irrevocably waives any claim that any such suit, action or proceeding brought in any such court has been brought in an
inconvenient forum.. 

(f) Restrictions. The Holder acknowledges that the Warrant Shares acquired upon the exercise of this Warrant, if not
registered, will have restrictions upon resale imposed by state and federal securities laws. 

(g) Nonwaiver and Expenses. No course of dealing or any delay or failure to exercise any right hereunder on the part of
Holder shall operate as a waiver of such right or otherwise prejudice Holder’s rights, powers or remedies, notwithstanding the fact 
that all rights hereunder terminate on the Termination Date. If the Company willfully and knowingly fails to comply with any
provision of this Warrant, which results in any material damages to the Holder, the Company shall pay to Holder such amounts as
shall be sufficient to cover any costs and expenses including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees, including those of 
appellate proceedings, incurred by Holder in collecting any amounts due pursuant hereto or in otherwise enforcing any of its rights,
powers or remedies hereunder. 

(h) Notices. Unless otherwise provided, any notice required or permitted under this Warrant shall be given in writing and
shall be deemed effectively given as hereinafter described (i) if given by personal delivery, then such notice shall be deemed given
upon such delivery, (ii) if given by telex or facsimile, then such notice shall be deemed given upon receipt of confirmation of
complete transmittal, (iii) if given by mail, then such notice shall be deemed given upon the earlier of (A) receipt of such notice by
the recipient or (B) three days after such notice is deposited in first class mail, postage prepaid, and (iv) if given by an internationally
recognized overnight air courier, then such notice shall be deemed given one business day after delivery to such carrier. All notices
shall be addressed as follows: if to the Holder, at its address as set forth in the Company’s books and records and, if to the Company, 
at the address as follows, or at such other address as the Holder or the Company may designate by ten days’ advance written notice 
to the other.(i) Limitation of Liability. No provision hereof, in the absence of any affirmative action by Holder to exercise this
Warrant to purchase Warrant Shares, and no enumeration herein of the rights or privileges of Holder, shall give rise to any liability
of Holder for the purchase price of any Common Stock or as a stockholder of the Company, whether such liability is asserted by the
Company or by creditors of the Company. 

(j) Remedies. The Holder, in addition to being entitled to exercise all rights granted by law, including recovery of damages,
will be entitled to specific performance of its rights under this Warrant. The Company agrees that monetary damages would not be
adequate compensation for any loss incurred by reason of a breach by it of the provisions of this Warrant and hereby agrees to waive
and not to assert the defense in any action for specific performance that a remedy at law would be adequate. 

(k) Successors and Assigns. Subject to applicable securities laws, this Warrant and the rights and obligations evidenced
hereby shall inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and permitted assigns of the Company and the successors and
permitted assigns of Holder. The provisions of this Warrant are intended to be for the benefit of any Holder from time to time of this
Warrant and shall be enforceable by the Holder or holder of Warrant Shares. 

(l) Amendment. This Warrant may be modified or amended or the provisions hereof waived with the written consent of the
Company and the Holder. 

(m) Severability. Wherever possible, each provision of this Warrant shall be interpreted in such manner as to be effective
and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Warrant shall be prohibited 
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by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without
invalidating the remainder of such provisions or the remaining provisions of this Warrant. 

(n) Headings. The headings used in this Warrant are for the convenience of reference only and shall not, for any purpose, be
deemed a part of this Warrant. 

******************** 

(Signature Pages Follow) 
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SIGNATURE PAGE 
TO 

XSUNX, INC. 
COMMON STOCK PURCHASE WARRANT 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Warrant Number: ________to be executed in its name by its duly 
authorized officer, and to be dated as of the date first above written. 

  
XSUNX, INC.  

  
  

  
  

By:______________________________ 
Tom Djokovich, CEO 
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NOTICE OF EXERCISE TO XSUNX, INC. 
WARRANT NUMBER: ________ 

  
(1) THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY ELECTS TO PURCHASE ___________ WARRANT SHARES OF THE COMPANY PURSUANT TO THE TERMS OF THE 
ATTACHED WARRANT (ONLY IF EXERCISED IN FULL), AND TENDERS HEREWITH PAYMENT OF THE EXERCISE PRICE IN FULL, TOGETHER WITH ALL 
APPLICABLE TRANSFER TAXES, IF ANY. 

□ THE UNDERSIGNED REPRESENTS THAT THIS PURCHASE WILL EXCEED THE BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP LIMITATION DESCRIBED IN SECTION 1
(D) AND HEREBY PROVIDES THE REQUIRED 61 DAYS PRIOR NOTICE. THE COMPANY IS HEREBY INSTRUCTED TO ISSUE THE WARRANT SHARES 61 DAYS 
AFTER THE DATE OF THIS NOTICE. 
  

(2) PAYMENT SHALL TAKE THE FORM OF (CHECK APPLICABLE BOX): 

□ IN LAWFUL MONEY OF THE UNITED STATES; OR 
□ THE CANCELLATION OF SUCH NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES AS IS NECESSARY, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE FORMULA SET FORTH

IN SECTION 1(B), TO EXERCISE THIS WARRANT WITH RESPECT TO THE MAXIMUM NUMBER OF WARRANT SHARES PURCHASABLE PURSUANT TO THE 
CASHLESS EXERCISE PROCEDURE SET FORTH IN SECTION 1(B). 

  

(3) PLEASE ISSUE A CERTIFICATE OR CERTIFICATES REPRESENTING SAID WARRANT SHARES IN THE NAME OF THE UNDERSIGNED OR IN SUCH OTHER 
NAME AS IS SPECIFIED BELOW: _______________________________ 
  
THE WARRANT SHARES SHALL BE DELIVERED TO THE FOLLOWING DWAC ACCOUNT NUMBER, ISSUED AS DRS SHARES BY THE TRANSFER AGENT 
DIRECTLY TO HOLDER, OR BY PHYSICAL DELIVERY OF A CERTIFICATE TO: 

_______________________________ 

_______________________________ 

(4) ACCREDITED INVESTOR. UNLESS THE UNDERSIGNED EXERCISES THIS WARRANT BY CASHLESS EXERCISE PURSUANT TO SECTION 1(B) OF THE 
WARRANT, THE UNDERSIGNED HEREBY REPRESENTS AND WARRANTS THAT IT IS AN “ACCREDITED INVESTOR” AS DEFINED IN REGULATION D 
PROMULGATED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, AND SATISFIES THE CRITERIA SET FORTH IN RULE 501(A) THEREIN. 
  
(5) LEGEND. UNLESS OTHERWISE PERMITTED UNDER AND EACH PURCHASER SIGNATORY THERETO, THE CERTIFICATES REPRESENTING THESE 
SECURITIES WILL BEAR A LEGEND RESTRICTING TRANSFER UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT AND APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. IN THE CASE OF A
CASHLESS EXERCISE 12 MONTHS AFTER THE INITIAL EXERCISE DATE, THE COMPANY SHALL CONTEMPORANEOUSLY DELIVER THE APPROPRIATE 
RULE 144 OPINION LETTER TO ITS TRANSFER AGENT WITH INSTRUCTIONS TO ISSUE THE WARRANT SHARES WITHOUT A RESTRICTIVE LEGEND, 
UNLESS APPLICABLE LAW, ORDER OR REGULATIONS PROHIBIT SUCH ISSUANCE. 
  

[SIGNATURE OF HOLDER] 

NAME OF INVESTING ENTITY:_____________________________________________________________ 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY OF INVESTING ENTITY:______________________________ 

NAME OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY:_______________________________________________________ 

TITLE OF AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY:_______________________________________________________ 

DATE:_________________________________________________________________________________ 
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ASSIGNMENT FORM 

XSUNX, INC. 

WARRANT NUMBER: _________ 

  

(TO ASSIGN THE FOREGOING WARRANT, EXECUTE THIS FORM AND SUPPLY REQUIRED INFORMATION. 

DO NOT USE THIS FORM TO EXERCISE THE WARRANT.) 

  

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, [_] ALL OF OR [__________] SHARES OF THE FOREGOING WARRANT AND ALL RIGHTS 
EVIDENCED THEREBY ARE HEREBY ASSIGNED TO 

_______________________________________________ WHOSE ADDRESS IS 

_______________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________________________________. 

DATED: ______________, _______ 

HOLDER’S SIGNATURE: ______________________  

HOLDER’S ADDRESS: ______________________________________________ 

________________________________________________  

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: ___________________________________________  

  

NOTE: THE SIGNATURE TO THIS ASSIGNMENT FORM MUST CORRESPOND WITH THE NAME AS IT APPEARS ON THE FACE OF
THE WARRANT, WITHOUT ALTERATION OR ENLARGEMENT OR ANY CHANGE WHATSOEVER. OFFICERS OF CORPORATIONS 
AND THOSE ACTING IN A FIDUCIARY OR OTHER REPRESENTATIVE CAPACITY SHOULD FILE PROPER EVIDENCE OF 
AUTHORITY TO ASSIGN THE FOREGOING WARRANT. 

 



Exhibit 10.9

Form of Exchange Agreement and Exchange Note 

EXCHANGE AGREEMENT  

This EXCHANGE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”), dated as of November 3,2011, is entered into by and betweenXSUNX, 
INC., a Colorado corporation having its principal address at 65 Enterprise, Aliso Viejo, CA 92656 (the “Company”), 
and________________________, having an address at ________________________________________________ (the “Holder”).  

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS,the Holder is the holder of that certain Promissory Note (“Original Note”) issued by the Company to Via 
systems Corporation, formerly known as Merix Corporation (“Original Holder”),on or about August 27, 2009 in the original 
principal amount of $456,920.66; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to that certain Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of March 30, 2011 between the Holder and the
Original Holder, the Original Holder sold, assigned and conveyed all of its right, title and interest in and to the Original Note to the
Holder; 

WHEREAS, the Original Note was due on September 1, 2011 but the Company has failed to repay and is not able to repay
the Original Note; 

WHEREAS, the amount of accrued and unpaid interest under the Note as of October 24, 2011was$98,644.79 (“Accrued 
Interest”); and 

WHEREAS, the Company and the Holder desire to exchange the Original Note solely for securities consisting of (i) a new
promissory note in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto (“Exchange Note”), and (ii) 7,000,000 shares (“Shares”)of common stock 
of the Company, no par value (“Common Stock”); 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants contained herein, and for other good and
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows: 

  
1.      Acknowledgement. The Company acknowledges and agrees that (a) no consent of the Company is or was required

in connection with the transfer and assignment of the Original Note from the Original Holder to the Holder, (b) the Holder is
currently the record holder of all right, title and interest in and to the Original Note, and (c) the outstanding balance under the
Original Note due to the Holder as of the date hereof is equal to the $555,565.45 balance due as of October 24, 2011 plus accrued
interest since such date. 

2.      Exchange of Original Note.In exchange for the surrender and cancellation of the Original Note, the Company shall
issue to the Holder, and the Holder shall accept from the Company (a) the Exchange Note dated as of the date hereof with a principal
amount equal to$350,000.00, and (b) the Shares. The Exchange Note is being issued in substitution for part of, and not in satisfaction
of, the Original Note. As soon as reasonably practicable following the execution hereof, the Company shall deliver to the 
Holder the original Exchange Note and a stock certificate evidencing the Shares, and upon 
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the Holder’s receipt thereof it shall promptly surrender and return the Original Note to the Company. 

3.      Representations and Warranties. The Company hereby makes the following representations and warranties to the
Holder: 

a.       Authorization; Enforcement. The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and
to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the Exchange Note and otherwise to carry out its obligations
hereunder and thereunder. The execution and delivery of this Agreement and the Exchange Note by the Company and the
consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby have been duly authorized by all necessary action on the
part of the Company and no further action is required by the Company, its board of directors or its stockholders in connection
therewith. This Agreement and the Exchange Note have been duly executed by the Company and, when delivered in accordance
with the terms hereof will constitute the valid and binding obligations of the Company enforceable against the Company in
accordance with their terms. 

b.      No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement andthe Exchange Note by the
Company and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby do not and will not: (i) conflict with or
violate any provision of the Company’s certificate of incorporation, bylaws or other organizational or charter documents, or (ii)
conflict with, or constitute a default (or an event that with notice or lapse of time or both would become a default) under, result in the
creation of any lien or encumbrance upon any of the properties or assets of the Company, or give to others any rights of termination,
amendment, acceleration or cancellation (with or without notice, lapse of time or both) of, any material agreement, credit facility,
debt or other material instrument or other material understanding to which the Company is a party or by which any property or asset
of the Company is bound or affected, or(iii) conflict with or result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment,
injunction, decree or other restriction of any court or governmental authority to which the Company is subject or by which any
property or asset of the Company is bound or affected, except, in the case of clauses (ii) and (iii) above, such as could not have or
reasonably be expected to result in a material adverse effect. 

c.       Filings, Consents and Approvals. Except for the filing of Form 8-K with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (“SEC”) as may be required, the Company is not required to obtain any approval, consent, waiver, authorization or
order of, give any notice to, or make any filing, qualification or registration with, any court or other federal, state, local, foreign or
other governmental authority or other person or entity in connection with the execution, delivery and performance by the Company
of this Agreement or the Exchange Note. No further approval or authorization of any stockholder, the Board of Directors or others is
required for the exchange for and the issuance of the Exchange Note and the issuance of the Shares as contemplated hereby. 

  
d.      Valid Issuance. The Exchange Note and the Shares are duly authorized. The Shares will be duly and validly

issued, fully paid and nonassessable, free and clear of all liens, claims and encumbrances.  
  
e.       No Inside Information. Neither the Company nor any person acting on its behalf has provided the Holder or

its counsel with any information that constitutes or might constitute material, non-public information concerning the Company. 

f.       No Additional Consideration.Except as otherwise set forth herein, no consideration has been offered or paid
to any person to amend or consent to a waiver, modification,  
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forbearance, exchange or otherwise of any provision of the Original Note or to issue the Exchange Note and the Shares. 

g.       Survival. All of the Company’s warranties and representations contained in this Agreement shall survive
the execution, delivery and acceptance of this Agreement by the parties hereto. 

4.      Holding Period for Exchange Note and Shares. 
  

a.       Rule 144. Pursuant to Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities 
Act”), the holding period of the Exchange Note and the Share stack back to August 27, 2009 (the original issue date of the Original
Note). The Company agrees not to take a position contrary to this paragraph. The Company is not currently, and has never been, an
issuer of the type described in Rule 144(i) under the Securities Act. The Exchange Note is being issued in partial substitution and
exchange for the Original Note and not in satisfaction of the Original Note or any portion thereof. The Exchange Note shall not
constitute a novation or satisfaction and accord of any of such portion of the Original Note. The Company hereby acknowledges and
agrees that such new Exchange Note shall amend, restate, modify, extend, renew and continue the terms and provisions contained in
the Original Note and shall not extinguish or release the Company or any of its subsidiaries under any agreements with the Holder or
otherwise constitute a novation of its obligations thereunder. 

  
b.      Not Affiliate. The Company representsand warrants to the Holder that (i) the Holder is not, as of the

date of this representation, and has not been for the last one hundred twenty (120) days, an employee, officer, director or,
to the Company’s knowledge, a direct beneficial owner of more than ten percent (10%) of any class of equity security of
the Company, or otherwise been an “affiliate” as that term is used in Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act, (ii)
no consideration has been offered or paid by the Holder to amend or consent to a waiver, modification, forbearance,
exchange or otherwise of any provision of the Original Note, (iii) the Holder has not, directly or indirectly, controlled,
been controlled by or been under common control with the Company, and (iv) the Original Note has been outstanding for
in excess of one year and the Original Note has not been amended since the issuance date thereof. 

5.      Public Information. So long as the Exchange Note is outstanding, the Company shall timely file (or timely obtain
extensions in respect thereof and file within the applicable grace period) all reports and definitive proxy or information statements
required to be filed by the Company under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”), and shall not 
terminate its status as an issuer required to file reports under the Exchange Act (even if the Exchange Act or the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder would otherwise permit such termination). 

  
6.      Volume Restriction. During any Trading Day that the VWAP for the Common Stock is below $0.10, the Holder

shall use commercially reasonable efforts to sell no more than such number of Shares as is equal to 10% of the trading volume for
the Common Stock on such Trading Day. 

  
7.      Miscellaneous. 

  
a.       The Holder shall have the right to approve before issuance any press release, SEC filing or any other public

disclosure made by or on behalf of the Company whatsoever with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby. If the transactions
contemplated hereby constitute material non-public information concerning the Company, then the Company shall, prior to 8:30AM
on the trading day following such request, issue a current report on Form 8-K disclosing the material terms of the transactions 
contemplated hereby and attaching this Agreement and all other related agreements thereto, including without limitation the
Exchange Note. If the Company does not so file a Form 8-K, then the Company represents and warrants that the transactions
contemplated hereby do not constitute material  
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non-public information concerning the Company. The Company shall not at any time furnish any material non-public information to 
the Holder without the Holder’s prior written consent. 

  
b.      This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts and by facsimile signature, delivery of PDF

images of executed signature pages by email or otherwise, and each of such counterparts shall be deemed an original and all of such
counterparts together shall constitute one and the same agreement. 

  
c.       This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with laws of the State of New York,

excluding its choice of law rules. The parties hereto hereby waive the right to a jury trial in any litigation resulting from or related to
this Agreement. The parties hereto consent to exclusive jurisdiction and venue in the federal and state courts sitting in the County of
New York, State of New York. Each party waives all defenses of lack of personal jurisdiction and forum non conveniens. Process
may be served on any party hereto in the manner authorized by applicable law or court rule. 

  
d.      Each of the Holder and the Company hereby agrees and provides further assurances that it will, in the

future, execute and deliver any and all further agreements, certificates, instruments and documents and do and perform or cause to be
done and performed, all acts and things as may be necessary or appropriate to carry out the intent and accomplish the purposes of
this Agreement. 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is executed as of the date first set forth above. 

  
COMPANY: 
  
XSUNX, INC. 
  
  

By:_____________________  
Name: Tom Djokovich 
Title: CEO 

  
  
HOLDER: 
  
  

By: _____________________ 
Name:  
Title:  
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Exhibit “A” 

THIS 10% PROMISSORY NOTE, IS BEING ISSUED IN EXCHANGE FOR THE PROMISSORY NOTE DUE SEPTMEBER
1, 2011 ORIGINALLY ISSUED ON AUGUST 27, 2009 IN THE ORIGINAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF $456,920.66
(“ORIGINAL NOTE”). FOR PURPOSES OF RULE 144, THIS NOTE SHALL BE DEEMED TO HAVE BEEN ISSUED ON
AUGUST 27, 2009. 

  

XSUNX, INC.10% PROMISSORY NOTE 

  

Issuance Date: November 3, 2011  

Issuance Date of Original Note: August 27, 2009 

Original Principal Amount: $350,000.00  

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, XSUNX, INC., a Colorado corporation having its principal place of business at 65 Enterprise,
Aliso Viejo, CA 92656 (the “Company”), promises to pay to the order of __________________________ or its assigns or
successors-in-interest (the “Holder”), the principal sum of Three Hundred Fifty Thousand U.S. Dollars (US$350,000.00) and any
additional sums due pursuant to the terms hereof on September 30, 2012 (the “Maturity Date”) or such earlier date as this Note is
required to be repaid as provided hereunder, and to pay accrued and unpaid interest to the Holder on the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of this Note in accordance with the provisions hereof to the extent provided herein. 

1.             Issuance; Incorporation by Reference. 

(a)           Issuance. This 10% Promissory Note (“Note”) is issued pursuant to that certain Exchange Agreement, dated on or about the
date hereof, by and between the Company and the Holder (the “Exchange Agreement”). 

(b)          Incorporation. This Note incorporates by reference, as if set forth herein in its entirety and including without limitation all
terms, conditions and provisions set forth therein, the PipeFund Services Organization Standard Transaction Document
labeled CN 8-11 (Standard Note Terms) available and accessible at www.pipefund.com (“PST Document CN”); provided, 
however, that to the extent any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this Note (without such incorporation) contradict or
conflict with the terms, conditions or provisions of PST Document CN, this Note shall control. 

2.             Definitions. For purposes hereof, in addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Note: 

(a)           each initially capitalized term used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in the
Exchange Agreement or PST Document CN, including without limitation definitions incorporated therein by reference to
PipeFund Services Organization Standard Transaction Document labeled DEF 8-11 (Definitions), a PipeFund Standard 
Transaction Document available and accessible at www.pipefund.com), provided that the term “Securities Purchase 
Agreement” as used therein shall refer to the Exchange Agreement; 

(b)          “Event of Default” shall also include, in addition to those events set forth in PST Document CN, any Change of Control; and

(c)           “Defaulted Debt Limit” shall mean $200,000. 
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3.             Interest. Interest on the unpaid principal balance of this Note shall: 
(a)           Rate. Accrue daily at the rate of 10% per annum, commencing on the Issuance Date and compounding on the Maturity Date,

provided that from and after the occurrence and during the continuance of an Event of Default interest shall accrue hereunder
at the Default Rate; 

(b)          Calculation. Be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months and the actual number of days elapsed for 
any partial months; and 

(c)           Payment. Be due and payable in arrears on the Maturity Date in cash only.  

4.             No Conversion. This Note is not convertible into shares of the Company’s Common Stock.  

5.             Restrictive Covenants. So long as this Note remains outstanding, the Company shall not, and shall not permit any Subsidiary
(whether or not a Subsidiary on the Closing Date) to, directly or indirectly: 

(a)           Impairment. Amend any of its Organizational Documents in any manner that materially and adversely affects any rights of
the Holder; 

(b)          Redemptions/Prepayments. Redeem, repay, repurchase, offer to repay or repurchase, defease, make payments in respect of, or
otherwise acquire any shares of its Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities or any Indebtedness, other than
regularly scheduled principal and interest payments as such terms are in effect as of the date hereof, provided that the 
Company shall not in any event or manner repay or redeem any Indebtedness or advances outstanding from any Company
shareholder, officer or director. 

(c)           Dividends. Declare, set aside or pay cash dividends or distributions on any equity securities of the Company (whether in cash,
equity securities or property); or 

(d)          Affiliates. Enter into any transaction with any Affiliate of the Company which would be required to be disclosed in any public
filing with the Commission, except in the ordinary course of the Company’s or any Subsidiary’s business and upon fair and 
reasonable terms that are no less favorable to the Company and its Subsidiaries than the Company and its Subsidiaries would
obtain in a comparable arms’ length transaction with a Person not an Affiliate of the Company and provided that such
transaction is expressly approved by a majority of the directors of the Company other than the Affiliate who is a party to the
transaction (even if less than a quorum is otherwise required for board approval); 

6.             Prepayment. At any time the Company may deliver to the Holder an irrevocable written notice (“Prepayment Notice”) 
electing to prepay the entire outstanding principal amount of this Note in cash, which Prepayment Notice shall be delivered at least
five (5) Business Days before the date set forth in the Prepayment Notice as the date for such Prepayment (“Prepayment Date”). On 
the Prepayment Date the Company shall pay to the Holder all outstanding principal and accrued but unpaid interest under this Note.  
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly executed as of the Issuance Date set forth above. 

XSUNX, INC. 
  
  
By: ______________________________________ 
Name: Tom M. Djokovich 
Title:CEO 

 



Exhibit 10.10
  
Form of Securities Purchase Agreement and Convertible Promissory Note used for October 27, 2011 $53,000, and
December 7, 2011 $42,500 sale of convertible note.  
  

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 

This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of October 27, 2011, by and 
between XSUNX, INC., a Colorado corporation, with headquarters located at 65 Enterprise, Aliso Viejo, CA 92656(the
“Company”), and ____________________, a __________________ corporation, with its address at
___________________________________ (the “Buyer”). 

  
WHEREAS: 

  
A.                The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption

from securities registration afforded by the rules and regulations as promulgated by the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “1933 Act”); 

  
B.                 Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions set

forth in this Agreement an 8% convertible note of the Company, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, in the
aggregate principal amount of $53,000.00 (and $42,500 for the December 7th Note) (together with any note(s) issued in 
replacement thereof or as a dividend thereon or otherwise with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the
“Note”), convertible into shares of common stock, no par value per share, of the Company (the “Common Stock”), upon 
the terms and subject to the limitations and conditions set forth in such Note. 

  
C.                 The Buyer wishes to purchase, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, such principal

amount of Note as is set forth immediately below its name on the signature pages hereto; and 
  

NOW THEREFORE, the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows: 
  

1.                  Purchase and Sale of Note. 
  

a.                   Purchase of Note. On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue and
sell to the Buyer and the Buyer agrees to purchase from the Company such principal amount of Note as is set forth
immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto. 
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b.                  Form of Payment. On the Closing Date (as defined below), (i) the Buyer shall pay the 

purchase price for the Note to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as defined below) (the “Purchase Price”) by wire 
transfer of immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions,
against delivery of the Note in the principal amount equal to the Purchase Price as is set forth immediately below the
Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto, and (ii) the Company shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of the
Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of such Purchase Price.  

  
c.                   Closing Date. Subject to the satisfaction (or written waiver) of the conditions thereto set

forth in Section 6 and Section 7 below, the date and time of the issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this Agreement
(the “Closing Date”) shall be 12:00 noon, Eastern Standard Time on or aboutOctober 31, 2011 (and December 12, 2011 
for the $42,500 Note), or such other mutually agreed upon time. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this
Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date at such location as may be agreed to by the parties. 

  
2.                  Buyer’s Representations and Warranties. The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company that: 
  

a.                   Investment Purpose. As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and the shares
of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note (including, without limitation, such
additional shares of Common Stock, if any, as are issuable (i) on account of interest on the Note, (ii) as a result of the 
events described in Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) of the Note or (iii) in payment of the Standard Liquidated Damages Amount
(as defined in Section 2(f) below) pursuant to this Agreement, such shares of Common Stock being collectively referred
to herein as the “Conversion Shares” and, collectively with the Note,the “Securities”) for its own account and not with a 
present view towards the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to sales registered or exempted from
registration under the 1933 Act; provided, however, that by making the representations herein, the Buyer does not agree
to hold any of the Securities for any minimum or other specific term and reserves the right to dispose of the Securities at
any time in accordance with or pursuant to a registration statement or an exemption under the 1933 Act. 

  
b.                  Accredited Investor Status. The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in 

Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an “Accredited Investor”). 
  

c.                   Reliance on Exemptions. The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered and
sold to it in reliance upon specific exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state
securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of, and the Buyer’s compliance with, the 
representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to
determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities. 

 

2



  
d.                  Information. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note

remain outstanding will continue to be, furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the
Company and materials relating to the offer and sale of the Securities which have been requested by the Buyer or its
advisors. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remain outstanding will continue to
be, afforded the opportunity to ask questions of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company has not
disclosed to the Buyer any material nonpublic information and will not disclose such information unless such information
is disclosed to the public prior to or promptly following such disclosure to the Buyer. Neither such inquiries nor any other
due diligence investigation conducted by Buyer or any of its advisors or representatives shall modify, amend or affect
Buyer’s right to rely on the Company’s representations and warranties contained in Section 3 below. The Buyer
understands that its investment in the Securities involves a significant degree of risk. The Buyer is not aware of any facts
that may constitute a breach of any of the Company's representations and warranties made herein. 

  
e.                   Governmental Review. The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state

agency or any other government or governmental agency has passed upon or made any recommendation or endorsement
of the Securities. 

  
f.                   Transfer or Re-sale. The Buyer understands that (i) the sale or re-sale of the Securities has 

not been and is not being registered under the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities laws, and the Securities may not
be transferred unless (a) the Securities are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 1933 Act, (b) the 
Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions to the effect that the Securities to be
sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration, which opinion shall be
accepted by the Company, (c) the Securities are sold or transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in Rule 144 promulgated 
under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”)) of the Buyer who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the Securities
only in accordance with this Section 2(f) and who is an Accredited Investor, (d) the Securities are sold pursuant to Rule 
144, or (e) the Securities are sold pursuant to Regulation S under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Regulation S”), and 
the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in corporate transactions, which opinion shall be accepted by the
Company; (ii) any sale of such Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be made only in accordance with the terms
of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable, any re-sale of such Securities under circumstances in which the
seller (or the person through whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be an underwriter (as that term is defined in the
1933 Act) may require compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC
thereunder; and (iii) neither the Company nor any other person is under any obligation to register such Securities under
the 1933 Act or any state securities laws or to comply with the terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder (in each
case).  
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g.                  Legends. The Buyer understands that the Note and, until such time as the Conversion

Shares have been registered under the 1933 Act may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction
as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, the Conversion Shares may bear a
restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer of the 
certificates for such Securities): 

  
“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY 
THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE 
EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, 
AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY 
NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE 
ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE 
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN 
OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE 
HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT 
REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR 
RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE 
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN 
ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE 
SECURITIES.” 
  

The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to the
holder of any Security upon which it is stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a) such
Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed under the 1933 Act or otherwise may be sold
pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can
then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in form, substance and
scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such
Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company so that
the sale or transfer is effected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those represented by a certificate(s) from
which the legend has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any. In the event
that the Company does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities
pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144 or Regulation S, at the Deadline, it will be considered an
Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Note. 

  
h.                  Authorization; Enforcement. This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This

Agreement has been duly executed and delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and
binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms. 
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i.                    Residency. The Buyer is a resident of the jurisdiction set forth immediately below the

Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto.  
  
3.                  Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company represents and warrants to the 

Buyer that: 
  

a.                   Organization and Qualification. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries (as defined
below), if any, is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in
which it is incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to own, lease, use and operate its properties
and to carry on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. Schedule 3(a) sets forth a list
of all of the Subsidiaries of the Company and the jurisdiction in which each is incorporated. The Company and each of its
Subsidiaries is duly qualified as a foreign corporation to do business and is in good standing in every jurisdiction in which
its ownership or use of property or the nature of the business conducted by it makes such qualification necessary except
where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing would not have a Material Adverse Effect. “Material Adverse 
Effect” means any material adverse effect on the business, operations, assets, financial condition or prospects of the
Company or its Subsidiaries, if any, taken as a whole, or on the transactions contemplated hereby or by the agreements or
instruments to be entered into in connection herewith. “Subsidiaries” means any corporation or other organization, 
whether incorporated or unincorporated, in which the Company owns, directly or indirectly, any equity or other
ownership interest. 

  
b.                  Authorization; Enforcement. (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and

authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby
and thereby and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery of
this Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby (including without limitation, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the
Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion or exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of 
Directors and no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors, or its shareholders is required,
(iii) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative, and such
authorized representative is the true and official representative with authority to sign this Agreement and the other
documents executed in connection herewith and bind the Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement constitutes, and
upon execution and delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute, a legal, valid and
binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms. 

  
c.                   Capitalization. As of the date hereof, the authorized capital stock of the Company consists

of: (i) 500,000,000 shares of Common Stock, no par value per share, of which 224,998,637shares are issued and
outstanding; and (ii) 50,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, $0.001 par value per share, of which no shares are issued and
outstanding; other then the grant of stock options or warrants disclosed on Schedule 3(c) no shares are reserved for
issuance  
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pursuant to the Company’s stock option plans, no shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to securities (other than the 
Note) exercisable for, or convertible into or exchangeable for shares of Common Stock and 7,694,541shares are reserved 
for issuance upon conversion of the Note (another 14,303,000 shares were reserved for potential issuance under the 
December 7th $42,500 Note). All of such outstanding shares of capital stock are, or upon issuance will be, duly 
authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. No shares of capital stock of the Company are subject to 
preemptive rights or any other similar rights of the shareholders of the Company or any liens or encumbrances imposed 
through the actions or failure to act of the Company. As of the effective date of this Agreement, (i) there are no 
outstanding options, warrants, scrip, rights to subscribe for, puts, calls, rights of first refusal, agreements, understandings, 
claims or other commitments or rights of any character whatsoever relating to, or securities or rights convertible into or 
exchangeable for any shares of capital stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or arrangements by which the 
Company or any of its Subsidiaries is or may become bound to issue additional shares of capital stock of the Company or 
any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) other than a current agreement with Lincoln Park Capital there are no agreements or 
arrangements under which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is obligated to register the sale of any of its or their 
securities under the 1933 Act and (iii) there are no anti-dilution or price adjustment provisions contained in any security 
issued by the Company (or in any agreement providing rights to security holders) that will be triggered by the issuance of 
the Note or the Conversion Shares. The Company has furnished to the Buyer true and correct copies of the Company’s 
Certificate of Incorporation as in effect on the date hereof (“Certificate of Incorporation”), the Company’s By-laws, as in 
effect on the date hereof (the “By-laws”), and the terms of all securities convertible into or exercisable for Common Stock 
of the Company and the material rights of the holders thereof in respect thereto. The Company shall provide the Buyer 
with a written update of this representation signed by the Company’s Chief Executive on behalf of the Company as of the 
Closing Date. 

  
d.                  Issuance of Shares. The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for issuance

and, upon conversion of the Note in accordance with its respective terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-
assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be
subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability
upon the holder thereof. 

  
e.                   Acknowledgment of Dilution. The Company understands and acknowledges the

potentially dilutive effect to the Common Stock upon the issuance of the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note.
The Company further acknowledges that its obligation to issue Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note in
accordance with this Agreement, the Note is absolute and unconditional regardless of the dilutive effect that such
issuance may have on the ownership interests of other shareholders of the Company. 

  
f.                   No Conflicts. The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement, the Note by the

Company and the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including,
without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares) will not (i) conflict with or result
in a violation of any  
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provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or result in a breach of any 
provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default) under, 
or give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture, patent, 
patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of any 
law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws and regulations and 
regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the 
Company or any of its Subsidiaries or by which any property or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound 
or affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments, accelerations, cancellations and violations as 
would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect). Neither the Company nor any of its 
Subsidiaries is in violation of its Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws or other organizational documents and neither the 
Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in default (and no event has occurred which with notice or lapse of time or both 
could put the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in default) under, and other than as disclosed within this Agreement and 
any attachments incorporated herein neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has taken any action or failed to take 
any action that would give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, 
indenture or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any property or assets of 
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or affected, except for possible defaults as would not, individually or in 
the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect. The businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries, if any, are not being 
conducted, and shall not be conducted so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, in violation of any law, ordinance 
or regulation of any governmental entity. Except as specifically contemplated by this Agreement and as required under 
the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws, the Company is not required to obtain any consent, authorization or 
order of, or make any filing or registration with, any court, governmental agency, regulatory agency, self regulatory 
organization or stock market or any third party in order for it to execute, deliver or perform any of its obligations under 
this Agreement, the Note in accordance with the terms hereof or thereof or to issue and sell the Note in accordance with 
the terms hereof and to issue the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note. All consents, authorizations, orders, 
filings and registrations which the Company is required to obtain pursuant to the preceding sentence have been obtained 
or effected on or prior to the date hereof. The Company is not in violation of the listing requirements of the Over-the-
Counter Bulletin Board (the “OTCBB”) and does not reasonably anticipate that the Common Stock will be delisted by the 
OTCBB in the foreseeable future. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which 
might give rise to any of the foregoing. 

  
g.                  SEC Documents; Financial Statements. The Company has timely filed all reports, 

schedules, forms, statements and other documents required to be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting
requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) (all of the foregoing filed prior to the 
date hereof and all exhibits included therein and financial statements and schedules thereto and documents (other than
exhibits to such documents) incorporated by reference therein, being hereinafter referred to herein as the “SEC 
Documents”). Upon written request the Company will deliver to the Buyer  
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true and complete copies of the SEC Documents, except for such exhibits and incorporated documents. As of their 
respective dates, the SEC Documents complied in all material respects with the requirements of the 1934 Act and the 
rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder applicable to the SEC Documents, and none of the SEC 
Documents, at the time they were filed with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state 
a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the 
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. None of the statements made in any such SEC Documents is, 
or has been, required to be amended or updated under applicable law (except for such statements as have been amended 
or updated in subsequent filings prior the date hereof). As of their respective dates, the financial statements of the 
Company included in the SEC Documents complied as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting 
requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect thereto. Such financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, during the 
periods involved and fairly present in all material respects the consolidated financial position of the Company and its 
consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates thereof and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for the 
periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end audit adjustments). Except as set 
forth in the financial statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents, the Company has no liabilities, 
contingent or otherwise, other than (i) liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business subsequent to June 30, 2011, 
and (ii) obligations under contracts and commitments incurred in the ordinary course of business and not required under 
generally accepted accounting principles to be reflected in such financial statements, which, individually or in the 
aggregate, are not material to the financial condition or operating results of the Company. The Company is subject to the 
reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. 

  
h.                  Absence of Certain Changes. Since June 30, 2011, other than an unsecured debt which

became due on September 1, 2011 which is currently being renegotiated, there has been no material adverse change and
no material adverse development in the assets, liabilities, business, properties, operations, financial condition, results of
operations, prospects or 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries. 

  
i.                    Absence of Litigation. There is no action, suit, claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation

before or by any court, public board, government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending or, to the 
knowledge of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, threatened against or affecting the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a Material Adverse Effect. Schedule 3
(i) contains a complete list and summary description of any pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened
proceeding against or affecting the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, without regard to whether it would have a
Material Adverse Effect. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give
rise to any of the foregoing. 

  
j.                    Patents, Copyrights, etc. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries owns or possesses the

requisite licenses or rights to use all patents, patent  
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applications, patent rights, inventions, know-how, trade secrets, trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, 
service names, trade names and copyrights (“Intellectual Property”) necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now 
operated (and, as presently contemplated to be operated in the future); there is no claim or action by any person pertaining 
to, or proceeding pending, or to the Company’s knowledge threatened, which challenges the right of the Company or of a 
Subsidiary with respect to any Intellectual Property necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now operated (and, as 
presently contemplated to be operated in the future); to the best of the Company’s knowledge, the Company’s or its 
Subsidiaries’ current and intended products, services and processes do not infringe on any Intellectual Property or other 
rights held by any person; and the Company is unaware of any facts or circumstances which might give rise to any of the 
foregoing. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries have taken reasonable security measures to protect the secrecy, 
confidentiality and value of their Intellectual Property. 

  
k.                  No Materially Adverse Contracts, Etc. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is 

subject to any charter, corporate or other legal restriction, or any judgment, decree, order, rule or regulation which in the
judgment of the Company’s officers has or is expected in the future to have a Material Adverse Effect. Other than as
disclosed within this Agreement and any attachments incorporated herein. Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries is a party to any contract or agreement which in the judgment of the Company’s officers has or is expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect. 

  
l.                    Tax Status. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has made or filed all federal, state

and foreign income and all other tax returns, reports and declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject
(unless and only to the extent that the Company and each of its Subsidiaries has set aside on its books provisions
reasonably adequate for the payment of all unpaid and unreported taxes) and has paid all taxes and other governmental
assessments and charges that are material in amount, shown or determined to be due on such returns, reports and
declarations, except those being contested in good faith and has set aside on its books provisions reasonably adequate for
the payment of all taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations apply. There
are no unpaid taxes in any material amount claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the officers
of the Company know of no basis for any such claim. The Company has not executed a waiver with respect to the statute
of limitations relating to the assessment or collection of any foreign, federal, state or local tax. None of the Company’s 
tax returns is presently being audited by any taxing authority. 

  
m.                Certain Transactions. Except for arm’s length transactions pursuant to which the Company 

or any of its Subsidiaries makes payments in the ordinary course of business upon terms no less favorable than the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries could obtain from third parties and other than the grant of stock options disclosed on
Schedule 3(c), none of the officers, directors, or employees of the Company is presently a party to any transaction with
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries (other than for services as employees, officers and directors), including any
contract, agreement or other arrangement providing for the furnishing of services to or by, providing for rental of real or
personal property to or from, or otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director or such employee or, to the 
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knowledge of the Company, any corporation, partnership, trust or other entity in which any officer, director, or any such 
employee has a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee or partner. 

  
n.                  Disclosure. All information relating to or concerning the Company or any of its

Subsidiaries set forth in this Agreement and provided to the Buyer pursuant to Section 2(d) hereof and otherwise in
connection with the transactions contemplated hereby is true and correct in all material respects and the Company has not
omitted to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made herein or therein, in light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. No event or circumstance has occurred or exists with respect
to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or its or their business, properties, prospects, operations or financial conditions,
which, under applicable law, rule or regulation, requires public disclosure or announcement by the Company but which
has not been so publicly announced or disclosed (assuming for this purpose that the Company’s reports filed under the 
1934 Act are being incorporated into an effective registration statement filed by the Company under the 1933 Act). 

  
o.                  Acknowledgment Regarding Buyer’ Purchase of Securities. The Company acknowledges

and agrees that the Buyer is acting solely in the capacity of arm’s length purchasers with respect to this Agreement and
the transactions contemplated hereby. The Company further acknowledges that the Buyer is not acting as a financial
advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the transactions
contemplated hereby and any statement made by the Buyer or any of its respective representatives or agents in connection
with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby is not advice or a recommendation and is merely incidental
to the Buyer’ purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to the Buyer that the Company’s decision to 
enter into this Agreement has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the Company and its representatives. 

  
p.                  No Integrated Offering. Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person

acting on its or their behalf, has directly or indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to
buy any security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933 Act of the issuance of the Securities
to the Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s 
securities (past, current or future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its
securities. 

  
q.                  No Brokers. The Company has taken no action which would give rise to any claim by any

person for brokerage commissions, transaction fees or similar payments relating to this Agreement or the transactions
contemplated hereby.  

  
r.                    Permits; Compliance. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is in possession of all

franchises, grants, authorizations, licenses, permits, easements, variances, exemptions, consents, certificates, approvals
and orders necessary to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its business as it is now being conducted
(collectively, the “Company  
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Permits”), and there is no action pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened regarding suspension or 
cancellation of any of the Company Permits. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in conflict with, or in 
default or violation of, any of the Company Permits, except for any such conflicts, defaults or violations which, 
individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect. Since June 30, 
2011, neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notification with respect to possible conflicts, 
defaults or violations of applicable laws, except for notices relating to possible conflicts, defaults or violations, which 
conflicts, defaults or violations would not have a Material Adverse Effect. 

  
s.                   Environmental Matters. 

  
(i)                       There are, to the Company’s knowledge, with respect to the Company or any of 

its Subsidiaries or any predecessor of the Company, no past or present violations of Environmental Laws (as defined
below), releases of any material into the environment, actions, activities, circumstances, conditions, events, incidents, or
contractual obligations which may give rise to any common law environmental liability or any liability under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 or similar federal, state, local or
foreign laws and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notice with respect to any of the
foregoing, nor is any action pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened in connection with any of the foregoing.
The term “Environmental Laws” means all federal, state, local or foreign laws relating to pollution or protection of
human health or the environment (including, without limitation, ambient air, surface water, ground water, land surface or
subsurface strata), including, without limitation, laws relating to emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of
chemicals, pollutants contaminants, or toxic or hazardous substances or wastes (collectively, “Hazardous Materials”) into 
the environment, or otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal,
transport or handling of Hazardous Materials, as well as all authorizations, codes, decrees, demands or demand letters,
injunctions, judgments, licenses, notices or notice letters, orders, permits, plans or regulations issued, entered,
promulgated or approved thereunder. 

  
(ii)                     Other than those that are or were stored, used or disposed of in compliance with

applicable law, no Hazardous Materials are contained on or about any real property currently owned, leased or used by
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and no Hazardous Materials were released on or about any real property
previously owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries during the period the property was owned,
leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, except in the normal course of the Company’s or any of its 
Subsidiaries’ business. 

  
(iii)                   There are no underground storage tanks on or under any real property owned,

leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries that are not in compliance with applicable law. 
  

t.                    Title to Property. The Company and its Subsidiaries have good  
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and marketable title in fee simple to all real property and good and marketable title to all personal property owned by 
them which is material to the business of the Company and its Subsidiaries, in each case free and clear of all liens, 
encumbrances and defects except such as are described in Schedule 3(t) or such as would not have a Material Adverse 
Effect. Any real property and facilities held under lease by the Company and its Subsidiaries are held by them under 
valid, subsisting and enforceable leases with such exceptions as would not have a Material Adverse Effect. 

  
u.                  Insurance. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries are insured by insurers of recognized

financial responsibility against such losses and risks and in such amounts as management of the Company believes to be
prudent and customary in the businesses in which the Company and its Subsidiaries are engaged. Neither the Company
nor any such Subsidiary has any reason to believe that it will not be able to renew its existing insurance coverage as and
when such coverage expires or to obtain similar coverage from similar insurers as may be necessary to continue its
business at a cost that would not have a Material Adverse Effect. Upon written request the Company will provide to the
Buyer true and correct copies of all policies relating to directors’ and officers’ liability coverage, errors and omissions 
coverage, and commercial general liability coverage. 

v.                  Internal Accounting Controls. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries maintain a
system of internal accounting controls sufficient, in the judgment of the Company’s board of directors, to provide 
reasonable assurance that (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general or specific 
authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in
accordance with management’s general or specific authorization and (iv) the recorded accountability for assets is
compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences. 

  
w.                Foreign Corrupt Practices. Neither the Company, nor any of its Subsidiaries, nor any

director, officer, agent, employee or other person acting on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary has, in the course of
his actions for, or on behalf of, the Company, used any corporate funds for any unlawful contribution, gift, entertainment
or other unlawful expenses relating to political activity; made any direct or indirect unlawful payment to any foreign or
domestic government official or employee from corporate funds; violated or is in violation of any provision of the U.S.
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, or made any bribe, rebate, payoff, influence payment, kickback or
other unlawful payment to any foreign or domestic government official or employee. 

  
x.                  [INTENTIONALLY DELETED]. 

  
y.                  No Investment Company. The Company is not, and upon the issuance and sale of the

Securities as contemplated by this Agreement will not be an “investment company” required to be registered under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940 (an “Investment Company”). The Company is not controlled by an Investment 
Company. 
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z.                   Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company. If the Company breaches any

of the representations or warranties set forth in this Section 3, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer
pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of default under Section 3.4 of the Note. 

  
4.                  COVENANTS. 
  

a.                   Best Efforts. The parties shall use their best efforts to satisfy timely each of the conditions
described in Section 6 and 7 of this Agreement.  

  
b.                  Form D; Blue Sky Laws. The Company agrees to file a Form D with respect to the

Securities as required under Regulation D and to provide a copy thereof to the Buyer promptly after such filing. The
Company shall, on or before the Closing Date, take such action as the Company shall reasonably determine is necessary
to qualify the Securities for sale to the Buyer at the applicable closing pursuant to this Agreement under applicable
securities or “blue sky” laws of the states of the United States (or to obtain an exemption from such qualification), and
shall provide evidence of any such action so taken to the Buyer on or prior to the Closing Date. 
  

c.                   Use of Proceeds. The Company shall use the proceeds for general working capital
purposes. 

  
d.                  Right of First Refusal. Unless it shall have first delivered to the Buyer, at least seventy two

(72) hours prior to the closing of such Future Offering (as defined herein), written notice describing the proposed Future
Offering, including the terms and conditions thereof and proposed definitive documentation to be entered into in
connection therewith, and providing the Buyer an option during the seventy two (72) hour period following delivery of
such notice to purchase the securities being offered in the Future Offering on the same terms as contemplated by such
Future Offering (the limitations referred to in this sentence and the preceding sentence are collectively referred to as the
“Right of First Refusal”) (and subject to the exceptions described below), the Company will not conduct any equity
financing (including debt with an equity component) (“Future Offerings”) during the period that the Note has not been 
either fully converted by the Buyer or repaid in full by the Company. In the event the terms and conditions of a proposed
Future Offering are amended in any respect after delivery of the notice to the Buyer concerning the proposed Future
Offering, the Company shall deliver a new notice to the Buyer describing the amended terms and conditions of the
proposed Future Offering and the Buyer thereafter shall have an option during the seventy two (72) hour period following
delivery of such new notice to purchase its pro rata share of the securities being offered on the same terms as
contemplated by such proposed Future Offering, as amended. The foregoing sentence shall apply to successive
amendments to the terms and conditions of any proposed Future Offering. The Right of First Refusal shall not apply to
any transaction involving (i) issuances of securities in a firm commitment underwritten public offering (excluding a
continuous offering pursuant to Rule 415 under the 1933 Act) or (ii) issuances of securities as consideration for a merger,
consolidation or purchase of assets, or in connection  
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with any strategic partnership or joint venture (the primary purpose of which is not to raise equity capital), or in 
connection with the disposition or acquisition of a business, product or license by the Company. The Right of First 
Refusal also shall not apply to the issuance of securities upon exercise or conversion of the Company’s options, warrants 
or other convertible securities outstanding as of the date hereof or to the grant of additional options or warrants, or the 
issuance of additional securities, under any Company stock option or restricted stock plan approved by the shareholders 
of the Company. The Right of First Refusal also shall not apply to Future Offerings in excess of $75,000.00 as well as 
future drawdowns on the Company's current equity line of financing with Lincoln Park Capital. 
  

e.                   Expenses. At the Closing, the Company shall reimburse Buyer for expenses incurred by
them in connection with the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the
other agreements to be executed in connection herewith (“Documents”), including, without limitation, reasonable 
attorneys’ and consultants’ fees and expenses, transfer agent fees, fees for stock quotation services, fees relating to any
amendments or modifications of the Documents or any consents or waivers of provisions in the Documents, fees for the
preparation of opinions of counsel, escrow fees, and costs of restructuring the transactions contemplated by the
Documents. When possible, the Company must pay these fees directly, otherwise the Company must make immediate
payment for reimbursement to the Buyer for all fees and expenses immediately upon written notice by the Buyer or the
submission of an invoice by the Buyer. The Company’s obligation with respect to the October 27th transaction was to 
reimburse Buyer’ expenses of$3,000, (and the Company’s obligation with respect to the December 7th transaction was to 
reimburse Buyer’ expenses of $2,500). 

  
f.                   Financial Information. Upon written request the Company agrees to send or make

available the following reports to the Buyer until the Buyer transfers, assigns, or sells all of the Securities: (i) within ten 
(10) days after the filing with the SEC, a copy of its Annual Report on Form 10-K its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q 
and any Current Reports on Form 8-K; (ii) within one (1) day after release, copies of all press releases issued by the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries; and (iii) contemporaneously with the making available or giving to the shareholders
of the Company, copies of any notices or other information the Company makes available or gives to such shareholders. 

  
g.                  [INTENTIONALLY DELETED] 

  
h.                  Listing. The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the Conversion Shares upon

each national securities exchange or automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of Common Stock are then
listed (subject to official notice of issuance) and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, shall maintain, so long
as any other shares of Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all Conversion Shares from time to time issuable
upon conversion of the Note. The Company will obtain and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, maintain the
listing and trading of its Common Stock on the OTCBB or any equivalent replacement exchange, the Nasdaq National
Market (“Nasdaq”), the NasdaqSmallCap Market (“NasdaqSmallCap”), the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”), or the 
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American Stock Exchange (“AMEX”) and will comply in all respects with the Company’s reporting, filing and other 
obligations under the bylaws or rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and such exchanges, as 
applicable. The Company shall promptly provide to the Buyer copies of any notices it receives from the OTCBB and any 
other exchanges or quotation systems on which the Common Stock is then listed regarding the continued eligibility of the 
Common Stock for listing on such exchanges and quotation systems. 

  
i.                    Corporate Existence. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns any Note, the Company shall

maintain its corporate existence and shall not sell all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, except in the event of a
merger or consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, where the surviving or successor entity 
in such transaction (i) assumes the Company’s obligations hereunder and under the agreements and instruments entered
into in connection herewith and (ii) is a publicly traded corporation whose Common Stock is listed for trading on the
OTCBB, Nasdaq, NasdaqSmallCap, NYSE or AMEX. 

  
j.                    No Integration. The Company shall not make any offers or sales of any security (other

than the Securities) under circumstances that would require registration of the Securities being offered or sold hereunder
under the 1933 Act or cause the offering of the Securities to be integrated with any other offering of securities by the
Company for the purpose of any stockholder approval provision applicable to the Company or its securities. 

  
k.                  Breach of Covenants. If the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this

Section 4, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered
an event of default under Section 3.4 of the Note. 

  
l.                    Failure to Comply with the 1934 Act. So long as the Buyer beneficially owns the Note, the 

Company shall comply with the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act; and the Company shall continue to be subject to
the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. 

  
m.                Trading Activities. Neither the Buyer nor its affiliates has an open short position in the

common stock of the Company and the Buyer agree that it shall not, and that it will cause its affiliates not to, engage in
any short sales of or hedging transactions with respect to the common stock of the Company.  

  
5.                  Transfer Agent Instructions. The Company shall issue irrevocable instructions to its transfer agent

to issue certificates, registered in the name of the Buyer or its nominee, for the Conversion Shares in such amounts as
specified from time to time by the Buyer to the Company upon conversion of the Note in accordance with the terms
thereof (the “Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions”).  In the event that the Borrower proposes to replace its transfer
agent, the Borrower shall provide, prior to the effective date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer
Agent Instructions in a form as initially delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (including but not limited to the
provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common Stock in the Reserved Amount) signed by the successor transfer agent
to Borrower  
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and the Borrower. Prior to registration of the Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion 
Shares may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of Securities as of a particular date that 
can then be immediately sold, all such certificates shall bear the restrictive legend specified in Section 2(g) of this 
Agreement.  The Company warrants that: (i) no instruction other than the Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions referred 
to in this Section 5, and stop transfer instructions to give effect to Section 2(f) hereof (in the case of the Conversion 
Shares, prior to registration of the Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion Shares may 
be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of Securities as of a particular date that can then be 
immediately sold), will be given by the Company to its transfer agent and that the Securities shall otherwise be freely 
transferable on the books and records of the Company as and to the extent provided in this Agreement and the Note; (ii) it 
will not direct its transfer agent not to transfer or delay, impair, and/or hinder its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing)
(electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for Conversion Shares to be issued to the Buyer upon conversion of 
or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and this Agreement; and (iii) it will not fail to remove 
(or directs its transfer agent not to remove or impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any 
restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate for any Conversion 
Shares issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and 
this Agreement.  Nothing in this Section shall affect in any way the Buyer’s obligations and agreement set forth in 
Section 2(g) hereof to comply with all applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any, upon re-sale of the Securities.  
If the Buyer provides the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, with (i) an opinion of counsel in form, substance and scope 
customary for opinions in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Securities may be 
made without registration under the 1933 Act and such sale or transfer is effected or (ii) the Buyer provides reasonable 
assurances that the Securities can be sold pursuant to Rule 144, the Company shall permit the transfer, and, in the case of 
the Conversion Shares, promptly instruct its transfer agent to issue one or more certificates, free from restrictive legend, 
in such name and in such denominations as specified by the Buyer.  The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its 
obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transactions 
contemplated hereby.  Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations 
under this Section 5 may be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the 
provisions of this Section, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction 
restraining any breach and requiring immediate transfer, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any 
bond or other security being required. 

  
6.                  Conditions to the Company’s Obligation to Sell. The obligation of the Company hereunder to 

issue and sell the Note to the Buyer at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of
the following conditions thereto, provided that these conditions are for the Company’s sole benefit and may be waived by 
the Company at any time in its sole discretion: 

  
a.                   The Buyer shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Company. 
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b.                  The Buyer shall have delivered the Purchase Price in accordance with Section 1(b) above. 

  
c.                   The representations and warranties of the Buyer shall be true and correct in all material

respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at that time (except for representations and
warranties that speak as of a specific date), and the Buyer shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all material
respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or complied
with by the Buyer at or prior to the Closing Date.  

  
d.                  No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall

have been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent
jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated hereby which prohibits the
consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

  
7.                  Conditions to The Buyer’s Obligation to Purchase. The obligation of the Buyer hereunder to 

purchase the Note at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following
conditions, provided that these conditions are for the Buyer’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Buyer at any time in
its sole discretion: 

  
a.                   The Company shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Buyer. 

  
b.                  The Company shall have delivered to the Buyer the duly executed Note (in such

denominations as the Buyer shall request) in accordance with Section 1(b) above. 
  

c.                   The Irrevocable Transfer Agent Instructions, in form and substance satisfactory to a
majority-in-interest of the Buyer, shall have been delivered to and acknowledged in writing by the Company’s Transfer 
Agent. 

  
d.                  The representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct in all material

respects as of the date when made and as of the Closing Date as though made at such time (except for representations and
warranties that speak as of a specific date) and the Company shall have performed, satisfied and complied in all material
respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or complied
with by the Company at or prior to the Closing Date. The Buyer shall have received a certificate or certificates, executed
by the chief executive officer of the Company, dated as of the Closing Date, to the foregoing effect and as to such other
matters as may be reasonably requested by the Buyer including, but not limited to certificates with respect to the
Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws and Board of Directors’ resolutions relating to the transactions 
contemplated hereby. 

  
e.                   No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree,  
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ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated or endorsed by or in any court or governmental 
authority of competent jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated 
hereby which prohibits the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

  
f.                   No event shall have occurred which could reasonably be expected to have a Material

Adverse Effect on the Company including but not limited to a change in the 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or
the failure of the Company to be timely in its 1934 Act reporting obligations. 

  
g.                  The Conversion Shares shall have been authorized for quotation on the OTCBB and

trading in the Common Stock on the OTCBB shall not have been suspended by the SEC or the OTCBB. 
  

h.                  The Buyer shall have received an officer’s certificate described in Section 3(c) above, 
dated as of the Closing Date. 

  
8.                  Governing Law; Miscellaneous. 
  

a.                   Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with
the laws of the State of New York without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party
against the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be brought only in the state courts of
New York or in the federal courts located in the state and county of Nassau. The parties to this Agreement hereby
irrevocably waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any
defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based upon forum non conveniens. The Company and Buyer waive trial 
by jury. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In
the event that any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or
unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent
that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such
provision which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any
other provision of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to
process being served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction
Document by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to
such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good
and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any
right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law. 

  
b.                  Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which

shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and shall become effective when
counterparts have been signed by each party and delivered to the other party.  
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c.                   Headings. The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall

not form part of, or affect the interpretation of, this Agreement. 
  
d.                  Severability. In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable

under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may
conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any provision hereof which
may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision
hereof. 

  
e.                   Entire Agreement; Amendments. This Agreement and the instruments referenced herein

contain the entire understanding of the parties with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except as
specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any representation, warranty, covenant
or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other than by an
instrument in writing signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer. 

  
f.                   Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications

required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served,
(ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air
courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile, addressed as set forth
below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or other
communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand delivery or delivery
by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the address or number
designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received), or the
first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal business hours where
such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by express courier service,
fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The addresses
for such communications shall be:  

  
If to the Company, to: 
  

XSUNX, INC. 
65 Enterprise 
Aliso Viejo, CA 92656 
Attn: TOM M. DJOKOVICH, Chief Executive Officer 
facsimile: 949-266-5823 

  
With a copy by fax only to (which copy shall not constitute notice): 

  
If to the Buyer: 
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With a copy by fax only to (which copy shall not constitute notice): 

  
Each party shall provide notice to the other party of any change in address. 
  

g.                  Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
the parties and their successors and assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any rights
or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other. Notwithstanding the foregoing, subject to
Section 2(f), the Buyer may assign its rights hereunder to any person that purchases Securities in a private transaction
from the Buyer or to any of its “affiliates,” as that term is defined under the 1934 Act, without the consent of the
Company. 

  
h.                  Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto

and their respective permitted successors and assigns, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be
enforced by, any other person. 

  
i.                    Survival. The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and

covenants set forth in this Agreement shall survive the closing hereunder notwithstanding any due diligence investigation
conducted by or on behalf of the Buyer. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all their
officers, directors, employees and agents for loss or damage arising as a result of or related to any breach or alleged
breach by the Company of any of its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of its
covenants and obligations under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred. 

  
j.                    Publicity. The Company, and the Buyer shall have the right to review a reasonable period

of time before issuance of any press releases, SEC, OTCBB or FINRA filings, or any other public statements with respect
to the transactions contemplated hereby; provided, however, that the Company shall be entitled, without the prior
approval of the Buyer, to make any press release or SEC, OTCBB (or other applicable trading market) or FINRA filings
with respect to such transactions as is required by applicable law and regulations (although the Buyer shall be consulted
by the Company in connection with any such press release prior to its release and shall be provided with a copy thereof
and be given an opportunity to comment thereon). 

  
k.                  Further Assurances. Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed,

all such further acts and things, and shall execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and
documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent and accomplish the purposes of this
Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

  
l.                    No Strict Construction. The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the

language chosen by the parties to express their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against
any party. 
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m.                Remedies. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will

cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby.
Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Agreement will
be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this
Agreement, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition
to the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this
Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss
and without any bond or other security being required. 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly

executed as of the date first above written. 
  
  
XSUNX, INC. 

  
By:________________________________ 

TOM M. DJOKOVICH 
Chief Executive Officer 

  
Buyer 
  
  
By:_________________________________ 
Name: 
Title: 
  

  
  
AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT for October 27, 2011 sale was: 
  

  
  
AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT for December 7, 2011 sale was: 
  

 

Aggregate Principal Amount of Note: $53,000.00 

Aggregate Purchase Price: $53,000.00 

Aggregate Principal Amount of Note: $42,500.00

Aggregate Purchase Price: $42,500.00 
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Schedule 3 (c) 
Capitalization 

  
Option and Warrants 

  
Outstanding Options  
  
20,950,000 as of the Closing Date. 
  
  

Outstanding Warrants 

8,583,332 as of the Closing Date. 
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Schedule 3 (i) 

Litigation 
  
  

We are currently not aware of any legal proceedings or claims that we believe will have, individually or in the
aggregate, a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or operating results except as set forth below. 
  

During the year ended September 30, 2009, the Company converted an account payable to an unsecured
promissory note. The note, including all principal and interest was due September 1, 2011. The Company and the note
holder are negotiating an extension and restructure to the note. 
  
(The above statement was modified to state “none” at the December 7, 2011 transaction and sale as the promissory note 
negotiation discussed above had been completed) 
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Schedule 3 (t) 

Title to Property 
  
  
None 
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Exhibit “A” 

  
NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE
NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN
REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR
ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE
SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL
(WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM,
THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO
RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR
OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES. 

  

  
  

CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE 
  
FOR VALUE RECEIVED, XSUNX, INC., a Colorado corporation (hereinafter called the “Borrower”), hereby 

promises to pay to the order of __________________, a __________ corporation, or registered assigns (the “Holder”) the 
sum of $53,000.00 together with any interest as set forth herein, on July 31, 2012 (the “Maturity Date”), and to pay 
interest on the unpaid principal balance hereof at the rate of eight percent (8%) (the “Interest Rate”) per annum from the 
date hereof (the “Issue Date”) until the same becomes due and payable, whether at maturity or upon acceleration or by
prepayment or otherwise. This Note may not be prepaid in whole or in part except as otherwise explicitly set forth herein.
Any amount of principal or interest on this Note which is not paid when due shall bear interest at the rate of twenty two
percent (22%) per annum from the due date thereof until the same is paid (“Default Interest”). Interest shall commence 
accruing on the date that the Note is fully paid and shall be computed on the basis of a 365-day year and the actual 
number of days elapsed. All payments due hereunder (to the extent not converted into common stock, no par value per
share (the “Common Stock”) in accordance with the terms hereof) shall be made in lawful money of the United States of
America. All payments shall be made at such address as the Holder shall hereafter give to the Borrower by written notice
made in accordance with the provisions of this Note. Whenever any amount expressed to be due by the terms of this Note
is due on any day which is not a business 

 

Principal Amount: $53,000.00 Issue Date: October 27, 2011
Purchase Price: $53,000.00 Maturity Date: July 31, 2012
 
And second note sold December 7, 2011 under the same terms.
Principal Amount: $42,500.00 Issue Date: December 7, 2011
Purchase Price: $42,500.00 Issue Date: December 7, 2011
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day, the same shall instead be due on the next succeeding day which is a business day and, in the case of any interest
payment date which is not the date on which this Note is paid in full, the extension of the due date thereof shall not be
taken into account for purposes of determining the amount of interest due on such date. As used in this Note, the term
“business day” shall mean any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or a day on which commercial banks in the city of New
York, New York are authorized or required by law or executive order to remain closed. Each capitalized term used
herein, and not otherwise defined, shall have the meaning ascribed thereto in that certain Securities Purchase Agreement
dated the date hereof, pursuant to which this Note was originally issued (the “Purchase Agreement”). 

  
This Note is free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to the issue thereof and shall not be

subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Borrower and will not impose personal liability
upon the holder thereof. 

  
The following terms shall apply to this Note: 
  

ARTICLE I. CONVERSION RIGHTS 
  
1.1              Conversion Right. The Holder shall have the right from time to time, and at any time during the

period beginning on the date which is one hundred eighty (180) days following the date of this Note and ending on the
later of: (i) the Maturity Date and (ii) the date of payment of the Default Amount (as defined in Article III) pursuant to
Section 1.6(a) or Article III, each in respect of the remaining outstanding principal amount of this Note to convert all or
any part of the outstanding and unpaid principal amount of this Note into fully paid and non- assessable shares of 
Common Stock, as such Common Stock exists on the Issue Date, or any shares of capital stock or other securities of the
Borrower into which such Common Stock shall hereafter be changed or reclassified at the conversion price (the
“Conversion Price”) determined as provided herein (a “Conversion”); provided, however, that in no event shall the
Holder be entitled to convert any portion of this Note in excess of that portion of this Note upon conversion of which the
sum of (1) the number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder and its affiliates (other than shares
of Common Stock which may be deemed beneficially owned through the ownership of the unconverted portion of the
Notes or the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other security of the Borrower subject to a limitation on
conversion or exercise analogous to the limitations contained herein) and (2) the number of shares of Common Stock
issuable upon the conversion of the portion of this Note with respect to which the determination of this proviso is being
made, would result in beneficial ownership by the Holder and its affiliates of more than 4.99% of the outstanding shares
of Common Stock. For purposes of the proviso to the immediately preceding sentence, beneficial ownership shall be
determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), 
and Regulations 13D-G thereunder, except as otherwise provided in clause (1) of such proviso, provided, further, 
however, that the limitations on conversion may be waived by the Holder upon, at the election of the Holder, not less than
61 days’ prior notice to the Borrower, and the provisions of the conversion limitation shall continue to apply until such
61st day (or such later date, as determined by the Holder, as may be specified in such notice of waiver). The number of
shares of Common Stock to be issued upon each 
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conversion of this Note shall be determined by dividing the Conversion Amount (as defined below) by the applicable
Conversion Price then in effect on the date specified in the notice of conversion, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A
(the “Notice of Conversion”), delivered to the Borrower by the Holder in accordance with Section 1.4 below; provided
that the Notice of Conversion is submitted by facsimile or e-mail (or by other means resulting in, or reasonably expected
to result in, notice) to the Borrower before 6:00 p.m., New York, New York time on such conversion date (the
“Conversion Date”). The term “Conversion Amount” means, with respect to any conversion of this Note, the sum of (1)
the principal amount of this Note to be converted in such conversion plus (2) at the Borrower’s option, accrued and 
unpaid interest, if any, on such principal amount at the interest rates provided in this Note to the Conversion Date, plus
(3) at the Borrower’s option, Default Interest, if any, on the amounts referred to in the immediately preceding clauses (1)
and/or (2) plus (4) at the Holder’s option, any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) hereof. 

  
1.2              Conversion Price. 
  

(a)                Calculation of Conversion Price. The conversion price (the “Conversion Price”) shall 
equal the Variable Conversion Price (as defined herein) (subject to equitable adjustments for stock splits, stock dividends
or rights offerings by the Borrower relating to the Borrower’s securities or the securities of any subsidiary of the
Borrower, combinations, recapitalization, reclassifications, extraordinary distributions and similar events). The "Variable 
Conversion Price" shall mean 60% multiplied by the Market Price (as defined herein) (representing a discount rate of
40%). “Market Price” means the average of the lowest five (5) Trading Prices (as defined below) for the Common Stock
during the ten (10) Trading Day period ending on the latest complete Trading Day prior to the Conversion Date. “Trading 
Price” means, for any security as of any date, the closing bid price on the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board, or applicable 
trading market (the “OTCBB”) as reported by a reliable reporting service (“Reporting Service”) designated by the Holder 
(i.e. Bloomberg) or, if the OTCBB is not the principal trading market for such security, the closing bid price of such
security on the principal securities exchange or trading market where such security is listed or traded or, if no closing bid
price of such security is available in any of the foregoing manners, the average of the closing bid prices of any market
makers for such security that are listed in the “pink sheets” by the National Quotation Bureau, Inc. If the Trading Price
cannot be calculated for such security on such date in the manner provided above, the Trading Price shall be the fair
market value as mutually determined by the Borrower and the holders of a majority in interest of the Notes being
converted for which the calculation of the Trading Price is required in order to determine the Conversion Price of such
Notes. “Trading Day” shall mean any day on which the Common Stock is tradable for any period on the OTCBB, or on
the principal securities exchange or other securities market on which the Common Stock is then being traded. 

  
(b)               Conversion Price During Major Announcements. Notwithstanding anything contained in 

Section 1.2(a) to the contrary, in the event the Borrower (i) makes a public announcement that it intends to consolidate or
merge with any other corporation (other than a merger in which the Borrower is the surviving or continuing corporation
and its capital stock is unchanged) or sell or transfer all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower or (ii) any 
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person, group or entity (including the Borrower) publicly announces a tender offer to purchase 50% or more of the
Borrower’s Common Stock (or any other takeover scheme) (the date of the announcement referred to in clause (i) or (ii)
is hereinafter referred to as the “Announcement Date”), then the Conversion Price shall, effective upon the
Announcement Date and continuing through the Adjusted Conversion Price Termination Date (as defined below), be
equal to the lower of (x) the Conversion Price which would have been applicable for a Conversion occurring on the
Announcement Date and (y) the Conversion Price that would otherwise be in effect. From and after the Adjusted
Conversion Price Termination Date, the Conversion Price shall be determined as set forth in this Section 1.2(a). For
purposes hereof, “Adjusted Conversion Price Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to any proposed transaction or
tender offer (or takeover scheme) for which a public announcement as contemplated by this Section 1.2(b) has been
made, the earlier of the date upon which the Borrower (in the case of clause (i) above) or the person, group or entity (in
the case of clause (ii) above) consummates or publicly announces the termination or abandonment of the proposed
transaction or tender offer (or takeover scheme) which caused this Section 1.2(b) to become operative. 

  
1.3              Authorized Shares. The Borrower covenants that during the period the conversion right exists, the

Borrower will reserve from its authorized and unissued Common Stock a sufficient number of shares, free from
preemptive rights, to provide for the issuance of Common Stock upon the full conversion of this Note issued pursuant to
the Purchase Agreement. The Borrower is required at all times to have authorized and reserved five times the number of
shares that is actually issuable upon full conversion of the Note (based on the Conversion Price of the Notes in effect
from time to time)(the “Reserved Amount”). The Reserved Amount shall be increased from time to time in accordance
with the Borrower’s obligations pursuant to Section 4(g) of the Purchase Agreement. The Borrower represents that upon
issuance, such shares will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable. In addition, if the Borrower shall 
issue any securities or make any change to its capital structure which would change the number of shares of Common
Stock into which the Notes shall be convertible at the then current Conversion Price, the Borrower shall at the same time
make proper provision so that thereafter there shall be a sufficient number of shares of Common Stock authorized and
reserved, free from preemptive rights, for conversion of the outstanding Notes. The Borrower (i) acknowledges that it has
irrevocably instructed its transfer agent to issue certificates for the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note,
and (ii) agrees that its issuance of this Note shall constitute full authority to its officers and agents who are charged with
the duty of executing stock certificates to execute and issue the necessary certificates for shares of Common Stock in
accordance with the terms and conditions of this Note. 

  
If, at any time the Borrower does not maintain the Reserved Amount it will be considered an Event of

Default under Section 3.2 of the Note. 
  
1.4              Method of Conversion. 
  

(a)                Mechanics of Conversion. Subject to Section 1.1, this Note may be converted by the
Holder in whole or in part at any time from time to time after the Issue Date, by (A) submitting to the Borrower a Notice
of Conversion (by facsimile, e-mail or other reasonable 
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means of communication dispatched on the Conversion Date prior to 6:00 p.m., New York, New York time) and
(B) subject to Section 1.4(b), surrendering this Note at the principal office of the Borrower. 

  
(b)               Surrender of Note Upon Conversion. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth 

herein, upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms hereof, the Holder shall not be required to physically
surrender this Note to the Borrower unless the entire unpaid principal amount of this Note is so converted. The Holder
and the Borrower shall maintain records showing the principal amount so converted and the dates of such conversions or
shall use such other method, reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and the Borrower, so as not to require physical
surrender of this Note upon each such conversion. In the event of any dispute or discrepancy, such records of the
Borrower shall, primafacie, be controlling and determinative in the absence of manifest error. Notwithstanding the
foregoing, if any portion of this Note is converted as aforesaid, the Holder may not transfer this Note unless the Holder
first physically surrenders this Note to the Borrower, whereupon the Borrower will forthwith issue and deliver upon the
order of the Holder a new Note of like tenor, registered as the Holder (upon payment by the Holder of any applicable
transfer taxes) may request, representing in the aggregate the remaining unpaid principal amount of this Note. The Holder
and any assignee, by acceptance of this Note, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of the provisions of this paragraph,
following conversion of a portion of this Note, the unpaid and unconverted principal amount of this Note represented by
this Note may be less than the amount stated on the face hereof. 

  
(c)                Payment of Taxes. The Borrower shall not be required to pay any tax which may be

payable in respect of any transfer involved in the issue and delivery of shares of Common Stock or other securities or
property on conversion of this Note in a name other than that of the Holder (or in street name), and the Borrower shall not
be required to issue or deliver any such shares or other securities or property unless and until the person or persons (other
than the Holder or the custodian in whose street name such shares are to be held for the Holder’s account) requesting the 
issuance thereof shall have paid to the Borrower the amount of any such tax or shall have established to the satisfaction of
the Borrower that such tax has been paid. 

  
(d)               Delivery of Common Stock Upon Conversion. Upon receipt by the Borrower from the 

Holder of a facsimile transmission or e-mail (or other reasonable means of communication) of a Notice of Conversion
meeting the requirements for conversion as provided in this Section 1.4, the Borrower shall issue and deliver or cause to
be issued and delivered to or upon the order of the Holder certificates for the Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion within four (4) business days after such receipt (the “Deadline”) (and, solely in the case of conversion of the 
entire unpaid principal amount hereof, surrender of this Note) in accordance with the terms hereof and the Purchase
Agreement. 

  
(e)                Obligation of Borrower to Deliver Common Stock. Upon receipt by the Borrower of a 

Notice of Conversion, the Holder shall be deemed to be the holder of record of the Common Stock issuable upon such
conversion, the outstanding principal amount and the amount of accrued and unpaid interest on this Note shall be reduced
to reflect such conversion, and, unless the Borrower defaults on its obligations under this Article I, all rights with respect
to 
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the portion of this Note being so converted shall forthwith terminate except the right to receive the Common Stock or
other securities, cash or other assets, as herein provided, on such conversion. If the Holder shall have given a Notice of
Conversion as provided herein, the Borrower’s obligation to issue and deliver the certificates for Common Stock shall be
absolute and unconditional, irrespective of the absence of any action by the Holder to enforce the same, any waiver or
consent with respect to any provision thereof, the recovery of any judgment against any person or any action to enforce
the same, any failure or delay in the enforcement of any other obligation of the Borrower to the holder of record, or any
setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or any breach or alleged breach by the Holder of any
obligation to the Borrower, and irrespective of any other circumstance which might otherwise limit such obligation of the
Borrower to the Holder in connection with such conversion. The Conversion Date specified in the Notice of Conversion
shall be the Conversion Date so long as the Notice of Conversion is received by the Borrower before 6:00 p.m., New
York, New York time, on such date. 

  
(f)                Delivery of Common Stock by Electronic Transfer. In lieu of delivering physical 

certificates representing the Common Stock issuable upon conversion, provided the Borrower is participating in the
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) Fast Automated Securities Transfer (“FAST”) program, upon request of the Holder 
and its compliance with the provisions contained in Section 1.1 and in this Section 1.4, the Borrower shall use its best
efforts to cause its transfer agent to electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable upon conversion to the Holder by
crediting the account of Holder’s Prime Broker with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent Commission (“DWAC”) 
system. 

  
(g)               Failure to Deliver Common Stock Prior to Deadline. Without in any way limiting the 

Holder’s right to pursue other remedies, including actual damages and/or equitable relief, the parties agree that if delivery
of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note is not delivered by the Deadline (other than as the result of
Acts of God that disrupt delivery or communications, or a failure due to the circumstances described in Section 1.3 above,
which failure shall be governed by such Section) the Borrower shall pay to the Holder $2,000 per day in cash, for each
day beyond the Deadline that the Borrower fails to deliver such Common Stock. Such cash amount shall be paid to
Holder by the fifth day of the month following the month in which it has accrued or, at the option of the Holder (by
written notice to the Borrower by the first day of the month following the month in which it has accrued), shall be added
to the principal amount of this Note, in which event interest shall accrue thereon in accordance with the terms of this Note
and such additional principal amount shall be convertible into Common Stock in accordance with the terms of this Note.
The Borrower agrees that the right to convert is a valuable right to the Holder. The damages resulting from a failure,
attempt to frustrate, interference with such conversion right are difficult if not impossible to qualify. Accordingly the
parties acknowledge that the liquidated damages provision contained in this Section 1.4(g) are justified. 

  
1.5              Concerning the Shares. The shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note may

not be sold or transferred unless (i) such shares are sold pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Act or
(ii) the Borrower or its transfer agent shall 
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have been furnished with an opinion of counsel (which opinion shall be in form, substance and scope customary for
opinions of counsel in comparable transactions) to the effect that the shares to be sold or transferred may be sold or
transferred pursuant to an exemption from such registration or (iii) such shares are sold or transferred pursuant to Rule
144 under the Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”) or (iv) such shares are transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in 
Rule 144) of the Borrower who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the shares only in accordance with this Section 1.5 and
who is an Accredited Investor (as defined in the Purchase Agreement). Except as otherwise provided in the Purchase
Agreement (and subject to the removal provisions set forth below), until such time as the shares of Common Stock
issuable upon conversion of this Note have been registered under the Act or otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144
without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, each
certificate for shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note that has not been so included in an effective
registration statement or that has not been sold pursuant to an effective registration statement or an exemption that
permits removal of the legend, shall bear a legend substantially in the following form, as appropriate: 

  
“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS 
CERTIFICATE NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE 
HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR 
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, 
SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION 
STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR (B) 
AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A 
GENERALLY ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT 
OR (II) UNLESS SOLD PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. 
NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION 
WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR FINANCING ARRANGEMENT 
SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.” 

  
The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Borrower shall issue to the Holder a new certificate

therefore free of any transfer legend if (i) the Borrower or its transfer agent shall have received an opinion of counsel, in
form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or
transfer of such Common Stock may be made without registration under the Act, which opinion shall be accepted by the
Company so that the sale or transfer is effected or (ii) in the case of the Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this
Note, such security is registered for sale by the Holder under an effective registration statement filed under the Act or
otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date
that can then be immediately sold. In the event that the Company does not accept the opinion of counsel provided by the
Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144 or
Regulation S, at the Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Note. 
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1.6              Effect of Certain Events. 
  

(a)                Effect of Merger, Consolidation, Etc. At the option of the Holder, the sale, conveyance or 
disposition of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower, the effectuation by the Borrower of a transaction or
series of related transactions in which more than 50% of the voting power of the Borrower is disposed of, or the
consolidation, merger or other business combination of the Borrower with or into any other Person (as defined below) or
Persons when the Borrower is not the survivor shall either: (i) be deemed to be an Event of Default (as defined in Article
III) pursuant to which the Borrower shall be required to pay to the Holder upon the consummation of and as a condition
to such transaction an amount equal to the Default Amount (as defined in Article III) or (ii) be treated pursuant to Section
1.6(b) hereof. “Person” shall mean any individual, corporation, limited liability company, partnership, association, trust or
other entity or organization. 

  
(b)               Adjustment Due to Merger, Consolidation, Etc. If, at any time when this Note is issued and 

outstanding and prior to conversion of all of the Notes, there shall be any merger, consolidation, exchange of shares,
recapitalization, reorganization, or other similar event, as a result of which shares of Common Stock of the Borrower shall
be changed into the same or a different number of shares of another class or classes of stock or securities of the Borrower
or another entity, or in case of any sale or conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower other than in
connection with a plan of complete liquidation of the Borrower, then the Holder of this Note shall thereafter have the
right to receive upon conversion of this Note, upon the basis and upon the terms and conditions specified herein and in
lieu of the shares of Common Stock immediately theretofore issuable upon conversion, such stock, securities or assets
which the Holder would have been entitled to receive in such transaction had this Note been converted in full
immediately prior to such transaction (without regard to any limitations on conversion set forth herein), and in any such
case appropriate provisions shall be made with respect to the rights and interests of the Holder of this Note to the end that
the provisions hereof (including, without limitation, provisions for adjustment of the Conversion Price and of the number
of shares issuable upon conversion of the Note) shall thereafter be applicable, as nearly as may be practicable in relation
to any securities or assets thereafter deliverable upon the conversion hereof. The Borrower shall not affect any transaction
described in this Section 1.6(b) unless (a) it first gives, to the extent practicable, thirty (30) days prior written notice (but
in any event at least fifteen (15) days prior written notice) of the record date of the special meeting of shareholders to
approve, or if there is no such record date, the consummation of, such merger, consolidation, exchange of shares,
recapitalization, reorganization or other similar event or sale of assets (during which time the Holder shall be entitled to
convert this Note) and (b) the resulting successor or acquiring entity (if not the Borrower) assumes by written instrument
the obligations of this Section 1.6(b). The above provisions shall similarly apply to successive consolidations, mergers,
sales, transfers or share exchanges. 

  
(c)                Adjustment Due to Distribution. If the Borrower shall declare or make any distribution of

its assets (or rights to acquire its assets) to holders of Common Stock as a 
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dividend, stock repurchase, by way of return of capital or otherwise (including any dividend or distribution to the
Borrower’s shareholders in cash or shares (or rights to acquire shares) of capital stock of a subsidiary (i.e., a spin-off)) (a 
“Distribution”), then the Holder of this Note shall be entitled, upon any conversion of this Note after the date of record for
determining shareholders entitled to such Distribution, to receive the amount of such assets which would have been
payable to the Holder with respect to the shares of Common Stock issuable upon such conversion had such Holder been
the holder of such shares of Common Stock on the record date for the determination of shareholders entitled to such
Distribution. 

  
(d)               Purchase Rights. If, at any time when this Note is outstanding, the Borrower issues any

convertible securities or rights to purchase stock, warrants, securities or other property (the “Purchase Rights”) pro rata to 
the record holders of any class of Common Stock, then the Holder of this Note will be entitled to acquire, upon the terms
applicable to such Purchase Rights, the aggregate Purchase Rights which such Holder could have acquired if such Holder
had held the number of shares of Common Stock acquirable upon complete conversion of this Note (without regard to
any limitations on conversion contained herein) immediately before the date on which a record is taken for the grant,
issuance or sale of such Purchase Rights or, if no such record is taken, the date as of which the record holders of Common
Stock are to be determined for the grant, issue or sale of such Purchase Rights. 

  
(e)                Notice of Adjustments. Upon the occurrence of each adjustment or readjustment of the

Conversion Price as a result of the events described in this Section 1.6, the Borrower, at its expense, shall promptly
compute such adjustment or readjustment and prepare and furnish to the Holder a certificate setting forth such adjustment
or readjustment and showing in detail the facts upon which such adjustment or readjustment is based. The Borrower shall,
upon the written request at any time of the Holder, furnish to such Holder a like certificate setting forth (i) such
adjustment or readjustment, (ii) the Conversion Price at the time in effect and (iii) the number of shares of Common Stock
and the amount, if any, of other securities or property which at the time would be received upon conversion of the Note. 

  
1.7              Trading Market Limitations. Unless permitted by the applicable rules and regulations of the

principal securities market on which the Common Stock is then listed or traded, in no event shall the Borrower issue upon
conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note and the other Notes issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement more
than the maximum number of shares of Common Stock that the Borrower can issue pursuant to any rule of the principal
United States securities market on which the Common Stock is then traded (the “Maximum Share Amount”), which shall 
be 4.99% of the total shares outstanding on the Closing Date (as defined in the Purchase Agreement), subject to equitable
adjustment from time to time for stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, capital reorganizations and similar events
relating to the Common Stock occurring after the date hereof. Once the Maximum Share Amount has been issued, if the
Borrower fails to eliminate any prohibitions under applicable law or the rules or regulations of any stock exchange,
interdealer quotation system or other self-regulatory organization with jurisdiction over the Borrower or any of its
securities on the Borrower’s ability to issue shares of Common Stock in excess of the Maximum Share Amount, in lieu of
any further right to convert this Note, this will be considered an Event of Default under Section 3.3  
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of the Note. The Borrower is required to give notice to the Holder of such event described above, and afterwards the
Borrower shall be granted a reasonable period of time to cure such Event of Default specified in Section 1.7. 

  
1.8              Status as Shareholder. Upon submission of a Notice of Conversion by a Holder, (i) the shares

covered thereby (other than the shares, if any, which cannot be issued because their issuance would exceed such Holder’s 
allocated portion of the Reserved Amount or Maximum Share Amount) shall be deemed converted into shares of
Common Stock and (ii) the Holder’s rights as a Holder of such converted portion of this Note shall cease and terminate,
excepting only the right to receive certificates for such shares of Common Stock and to any remedies provided herein or 
otherwise available at law or in equity to such Holder because of a failure by the Borrower to comply with the terms of
this Note. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if a Holder has not received certificates for all shares of Common Stock prior to
the tenth (10th) business day after the expiration of the Deadline with respect to a conversion of any portion of this Note
for any reason, then (unless the Holder otherwise elects to retain its status as a holder of Common Stock by so notifying
the Borrower) the Holder shall regain the rights of a Holder of this Note with respect to such unconverted portions of this
Note and the Borrower shall, as soon as practicable, return such unconverted Note to the Holder or, if the Note has not
been surrendered, adjust its records to reflect that such portion of this Note has not been converted. In all cases, the
Holder shall retain all of its rights and remedies (including, without limitation, (i) the right to receive Conversion Default
Payments pursuant to Section 1.3 to the extent required thereby for such Conversion Default and any subsequent
Conversion Default and (ii) the right to have the Conversion Price with respect to subsequent conversions determined in
accordance with Section 1.3) for the Borrower’s failure to convert this Note. 

  
1.9              Prepayment. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note, at any time during

the period beginning on the Issue Date and ending on the date which is ninety (90) days following the issue date, the
Borrower shall have the right, exercisable on not less than three (3) Trading Days prior written notice to the Holder of the
Note to prepay the outstanding Note (principal and accrued interest), in full, in accordance with this Section 1.9. Any
notice of prepayment hereunder (an “Optional Prepayment Notice”) shall be delivered to the Holder of the Note at its 
registered addresses and shall state: (1) that the Borrower is exercising its right to prepay the Note, and (2) the date of
prepayment which shall be not more than three (3) Trading Days from the date of the Optional Prepayment Notice. On
the date fixed for prepayment (the “Optional Prepayment Date”), the Borrower shall make payment of the Optional 
Prepayment Amount (as defined below) to or upon the order of the Holder as specified by the Holder in writing to the
Borrower at least one (1) business day prior to the Optional Prepayment Date. If the Borrower exercises its right to prepay
the Note, the Borrower shall make payment to the Holder of an amount in cash (the “Optional Prepayment Amount”) 
equal to 130%, multiplied by the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and 
unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note to the Optional Prepayment Date plus (y) Default Interest, if 
any, on the amounts referred to in clauses (w) and (x) plus (z) any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.3
and 1.4(g) hereof. If the Borrower delivers an Optional Prepayment Notice and fails to pay the Optional Prepayment
Amount due to the Holder of the Note within two (2) business days following the Optional Prepayment Date, the
Borrower  
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shall forever forfeit its right to prepay the Note pursuant to this Section 1.9. 
  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note, at any time during the period beginning

on the date which is ninety-one (91) days following the issue date and ending on the date which is one hundred twenty
(120) days following the issue date, the Borrower shall have the right, exercisable on not less than three (3) Trading Days
prior written notice to the Holder of the Note to prepay the outstanding Note (principal and accrued interest), in full, in
accordance with this Section 1.9. Any Optional Prepayment Notice shall be delivered to the Holder of the Note at its
registered addresses and shall state: (1) that the Borrower is exercising its right to prepay the Note, and (2) the date of
prepayment which shall be not more than three (3) Trading Days from the date of the Optional Prepayment Notice. On
the Optional Prepayment Date, the Borrower shall make payment of the Second Optional Prepayment Amount (as defined
below) to or upon the order of the Holder as specified by the Holder in writing to the Borrower at least one (1) business
day prior to the Optional Prepayment Date. If the Borrower exercises its right to prepay the Note, the Borrower shall
make payment to the Holder of an amount in cash (the “Second Optional Prepayment Amount”) equal to 140%, 
multiplied by the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on 
the unpaid principal amount of this Note to the Optional Prepayment Date plus (y) Default Interest, if any, on the amounts 
referred to in clauses (w) and (x) plus (z) any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) hereof. If
the Borrower delivers an Optional Prepayment Notice and fails to pay the Second Optional Prepayment Amount due to
the Holder of the Note within two (2) business days following the Optional Prepayment Date, the Borrower shall forever
forfeit its right to prepay the Note pursuant to this Section 1.9. 

  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note, at any time during the period beginning

on the date which is one hundred twenty-one (121) days following the issue date and ending on the date which is one
hundred fifty (150) days following the issue date, the Borrower shall have the right, exercisable on not less than three (3)
Trading Days prior written notice to the Holder of the Note to prepay the outstanding Note (principal and accrued
interest), in full, in accordance with this Section 1.9. Any Optional Prepayment Notice shall be delivered to the Holder of
the Note at its registered addresses and shall state: (1) that the Borrower is exercising its right to prepay the Note, and (2)
the date of prepayment which shall be not more than three (3) Trading Days from the date of the Optional Prepayment
Notice. On the Optional Prepayment Date, the Borrower shall make payment of the Third Optional Prepayment Amount
(as defined below) to or upon the order of the Holder as specified by the Holder in writing to the Borrower at least one (1)
business day prior to the Optional Prepayment Date. If the Borrower exercises its right to prepay the Note, the Borrower
shall make payment to the Holder of an amount in cash (the “Third Optional Prepayment Amount”) equal to 145%, 
multiplied by the sum of: (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on 
the unpaid principal amount of this Note to the Optional Prepayment Date plus (y) Default Interest, if any, on the amounts 
referred to in clauses (w) and (x) plus (z) any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) hereof. If
the Borrower delivers an Optional Prepayment Notice and fails to pay the Third Optional Prepayment Amount due to the
Holder of the Note within two (2) business days following the Optional Prepayment Date, the Borrower shall forever
forfeit its right to prepay the Note pursuant to this Section 1.9. 
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Notwithstanding any to the contrary stated elsewhere herein, at any time during the period beginning on

the date that is one hundred fifty-one (151) day from the issue date and ending one hundred eighty (180) days following
the issue date, the Borrower shall have the right, exercisable on not less than three (3) Trading Days prior written notice
to the Holder of the Note to prepay the outstanding Note (principal and accrued interest), in full, in accordance with this
Section 1.9. Any Optional Prepayment Notice shall be delivered to the Holder of the Note at its registered addresses and
shall state: (1) that the Borrower is exercising its right to prepay the Note, and (2) the date of prepayment which shall be
not more than three (3) Trading Days from the date of the Optional Prepayment Notice. On the Optional Prepayment
Date, the Borrower shall make payment of the Fourth Optional Prepayment Amount (as defined below) to or upon the
order of the Holder as specified by the Holder in writing to the Borrower at least one (1) business day prior to the
Optional Prepayment Date. If the Borrower exercises its right to prepay the Note, the Borrower shall make payment to the
Holder of an amount in cash (the “Fourth Optional Prepayment Amount”) equal to 150%, multiplied by the sum of: (w) 
the then outstanding principal amount of this Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of
this Note to the Optional Prepayment Date plus (y) Default Interest, if any, on the amounts referred to in clauses (w) and
(x) plus (z) any amounts owed to the Holder pursuant to Sections 1.3 and 1.4(g) hereof. If the Borrower delivers an
Optional Prepayment Notice and fails to pay the Fourth Optional Prepayment Amount due to the Holder of the Note
within two (2) business days following the Optional Prepayment Date, the Borrower shall forever forfeit its right to
prepay the Note pursuant to this Section 1.9. 

After the expiration of one hundred eighty (180) following the date of the Note, the Borrower shall have
no right of prepayment. 

  
ARTICLE II. CERTAIN COVENANTS 

  
2.1              Distributions on Capital Stock. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note,

the Borrower shall not without the Holder’s written consent (a) pay, declare or set apart for such payment, any dividend
or other distribution (whether in cash, property or other securities) on shares of capital stock other than dividends on
shares of Common Stock solely in the form of additional shares of Common Stock or (b) directly or indirectly or through
any subsidiary make any other payment or distribution in respect of its capital stock except for distributions pursuant to
any shareholders’ rights plan which is approved by a majority of the Borrower’s disinterested directors. 

  
2.2              Restriction on Stock Repurchases. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this

Note, the Borrower shall not without the Holder’s written consent redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire (whether for
cash or in exchange for property or other securities or otherwise) in any one transaction or series of related transactions
any shares of capital stock of the Borrower or any warrants, rights or options to purchase or acquire any such shares. 

  
2.3              Borrowings. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this  
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Note, the Borrower shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, (a) create, incur, assume guarantee, endorse,
contingently agree to purchase or otherwise become liable upon the obligation of any other person, firm, partnership, joint
venture or corporation, except by the endorsement of negotiable instruments for deposit or collection, or (b) suffer to exist
any liability for borrowed money, except any borrowings that does not render the Borrower a "Shell" company as defined
in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. 

  
2.4              Sale of Assets. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the Borrower

shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, sell, lease or otherwise dispose of any significant portion of its assets
outside the ordinary course of business. Any consent to the disposition of any assets may be conditioned on a specified
use of the proceeds of disposition. 

  
2.5              Advances and Loans. So long as the Borrower shall have any obligation under this Note, the

Borrower shall not, without the Holder’s written consent, lend money, give credit or make advances to any person, firm,
joint venture or corporation, including, without limitation, officers, directors, employees, subsidiaries and affiliates of the
Borrower, except loans, credits or advances (a) in existence or committed on the date hereof and which the Borrower has
informed Holder in writing prior to the date hereof, or (b) made in the ordinary course of business or (c) not in excess of
$100,000. 

  
ARTICLE III. EVENTS OF DEFAULT 

  
If any of the following events of default (each, an “Event of Default”) shall occur: 
  
3.1              Failure to Pay Principal or Interest. The Borrower fails to pay the principal hereof or interest

thereon when due on this Note, whether at maturity, upon acceleration or otherwise. 
  
3.2              Conversion and the Shares. The Borrower fails to issue shares of Common Stock to the Holder (or

announces or threatens in writing that it will not honor its obligation to do so) upon exercise by the Holder of the
conversion rights of the Holder in accordance with the terms of this Note,fails to transfer or cause its transfer agent to
transfer (issue) (electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder
upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, the Borrower directs its transfer
agent not to transfer or delays, impairs, and/or hinders its transfer agent in transferring (or issuing) (electronically or in
certificated form) any certificate for shares of Common Stock to be issued to the Holder upon conversion of or otherwise
pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note, or fails to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to remove or
impairs, delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer
instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate for any shares of Common Stock issued to the Holder upon conversion
of or otherwise pursuant to this Note as and when required by this Note (or makes any written announcement, statement
or threat that it does not intend to honor the obligations described in this paragraph) and any such failure  
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shall continue uncured (or any written announcement, statement or threat not to honor its obligations shall not be
rescinded in writing) for four (4) business days after the Holder shall have delivered a Notice of Conversion. It is an
obligation of the Borrower to remain current in its obligations to its transfer agent. It shall be an event of default of this
Note, if a conversion of this Note is delayed, hindered or frustrated due to a balance owed by the Borrower to its transfer
agent. If at the option of the Holder, the Holder advances any funds to the Borrower’s transfer agent in order to process a 
conversion, such advanced funds shall be paid by the Borrower to the Holder within forty eight (48) hours of a demand
from the Holder. 

  
3.3              Breach of Covenants. The Borrower breaches any material covenant or other material term or

condition contained in this Note and any collateral documents including but not limited to the Purchase Agreement and
such breach continues for a period of ten (10) days after written notice thereof to the Borrower from the Holder. 

  
3.4              Breach of Representations and Warranties. Any representation or warranty of the Borrower made

herein or in any agreement, statement or certificate given in writing pursuant hereto or in connection herewith (including,
without limitation, the Purchase Agreement), shall be false or misleading in any material respect when made and the
breach of which has (or with the passage of time will have) a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder with
respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement. 

  
3.5              Receiver or Trustee. The Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower shall make an assignment

for the benefit of creditors, or apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver or trustee for it or for a substantial part
of its property or business, or such a receiver or trustee shall otherwise be appointed. 

  
3.6              Judgments. Any money judgment, writ or similar process shall be entered or filed against the

Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower or any of its property or other assets for more than $500,000, and shall
remain unvacated, unbonded or unstayed for a period of twenty (20) days unless otherwise consented to by the Holder,
which consent will not be unreasonably withheld. 

  
3.7              Bankruptcy. Bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or liquidation proceedings or other

proceedings, voluntary or involuntary, for relief under any bankruptcy law or any law for the relief of debtors shall be
instituted by or against the Borrower or any subsidiary of the Borrower. 

  
3.8              Delisting of Common Stock. The Borrower shall fail to maintain the listing of the Common Stock

on at least one of the OTCBB or an equivalent replacement exchange, the Nasdaq National Market, the NasdaqSmallCap
Market, the New York Stock Exchange, or the American Stock Exchange. 

  
3.9              Failure to Comply with the Exchange Act. The Borrower shall fail to comply with the reporting

requirements of the Exchange Act; and/or the Borrower shall cease to be subject to the reporting requirements of the
Exchange Act. 
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3.10          Liquidation. Any dissolution, liquidation, or winding up of Borrower or any substantial portion of

its business. 
  
3.11          Cessation of Operations. Any cessation of operations by Borrower or Borrower admits it is

otherwise generally unable to pay its debts as such debts become due, provided, however, that any disclosure of the
Borrower’s ability to continue as a “going concern” shall not be an admission that the Borrower cannot pay its debts as
they become due. 

  
3.12          Maintenance of Assets. The failure by Borrower to maintain any material intellectual property

rights, personal, real property or other assets which are necessary to conduct its business (whether now or in the future). 
  
3.13          Financial Statement Restatement. The restatement of any financial statements filed by the

Borrower with the SEC for any date or period from two years prior to the Issue Date of this Note and until this Note is no
longer outstanding, if the result of such restatement would, by comparison to the unrestated financial statement, have
constituted a material adverse effect on the rights of the Holder with respect to this Note or the Purchase Agreement. 

  
3.14          Reverse Splits. The Borrower effectuates a reverse split of its Common Stock without twenty (20)

days prior written notice to the Holder. 
  
3.15         Replacement of Transfer Agent. In the event that the Borrower proposes to replace its transfer

agent, the Borrower fails to provide, prior to the effective date of such replacement, a fully executed Irrevocable Transfer
Agent Instructions in a form as initially delivered pursuant to the Purchase Agreement (including but not limited to the
provision to irrevocably reserve shares of Common Stock in the Reserved Amount) signed by the successor transfer agent
to Borrower and the Borrower. 

  
3.16     Cross-Default. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note or the other related

or companion documents, a breach or default by the Borrower of any covenant or other term or condition contained in
any of the Other Agreements, after the passage of all applicable notice and cure or grace periods, shall, at the option of
the Holder, be considered a default under this Note and the Other Agreements, in which event the Holder shall be entitled
(but in no event required) to apply all rights and remedies of the Holder under the terms of this Note and the Other
Agreements by reason of a default under said Other Agreement or hereunder. “Other Agreements” means, collectively, 
all agreements and instruments between, among or by: (1) the Borrower, and, or for the benefit of, (2) the Holder and any
affiliate of the Holder, including, without limitation, promissory notes; provided, however, the term “Other Agreements”
shall not include the related or companion documents to this Note. Each of the loan transactions will be cross-defaulted 
with each other loan transaction and with all other existing and future debt of Borrower to the Holder. 

Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of any Event of Default specified in Section 3.1 
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(solely with respect to failure to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon when due at the Maturity Date), the Note shall
become immediately due and payable and the Borrower shall pay to the Holder, in full satisfaction of its obligations
hereunder, an amount equal to the Default Sum (as defined herein).  UPON THE OCCURRENCE AND DURING THE
CONTINUATION OF ANY EVENT OF DEFAULT SPECIFIED IN SECTION 3.2, THE NOTE SHALL BECOME
IMMEDIATELY DUE AND PAYABLE AND THE BORROWER SHALL PAY TO THE HOLDER, IN FULL
SATISFACTION OF ITS OBLIGATIONS HEREUNDER, AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO: (Y) THE DEFAULT SUM (AS
DEFINED HEREIN); MULTIPLIED BY (Z) TWO (2). Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of any Event of
Default specified in Sections 3.1 (solely with respect to failure to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon when due on
this Note upon a Trading Market Prepayment Event pursuant to Section 1.7 or upon acceleration), 3.3, 3.4, 3.6, 3.8, 3.9,
3.11, 3.12, 3.13, 3.14, and/or 3. 15 exercisable through the delivery of written notice to the Borrower by such Holders (the
“Default Notice”), and upon the occurrence of an Event of Default specified the remaining sections of Articles III (other
than failure to pay the principal hereof or interest thereon at the Maturity Date specified in Section 3,1 hereof), the Note
shall become immediately due and payable and the Borrower shall pay to the Holder, in full satisfaction of its obligations
hereunder, an amount equal to the greater of (i) 150% times the sum of (w) the then outstanding principal amount of this 
Note plus (x) accrued and unpaid interest on the unpaid principal amount of this Note to the date of payment (the
“Mandatory Prepayment Date”) plus (y) Default Interest, if any, on the amounts referred to in clauses (w) and/or (x) plus
the amounts referred to in clauses (x), and (y) shall collectively be known as the “Default Sum”) or (ii) the “parity value”
of the Default Sum to be prepaid, where parity value means (a) the highest number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to such Default Sum in accordance with Article I, treating the Trading Day
immediately preceding the Mandatory Prepayment Date as the “Conversion Date” for purposes of determining the lowest 
applicable Conversion Price, unless the Default Event arises as a result of a breach in respect of a specific Conversion
Date in which case such Conversion Date shall be the Conversion Date), multiplied by (b) the highest Closing Price for 
the Common Stock during the period beginning on the date of first occurrence of the Event of Default and ending one day
prior to the Mandatory Prepayment Date (the “Default Amount”) and all other amounts payable hereunder shall 
immediately become due and payable, all without demand, presentment or notice, all of which hereby are expressly
waived, together with all costs, including, without limitation, legal fees and expenses, of collection, and the Holder shall
be entitled to exercise all other rights and remedies available at law or in equity.  
  
If the Borrower fails to pay the Default Amount within five (5) business days of written notice that such amount is due
and payable, then the Holder shall have the right at any time, so long as the Borrower remains in default (and so long and
to the extent that there are sufficient authorized shares), to require the Borrower, upon written notice, to immediately
issue, in lieu of the Default Amount, the number of shares of Common Stock of the Borrower equal to the Default
Amount divided by the Conversion Price then in effect. 
  

ARTICLE IV. MISCELLANEOUS 
  
4.1              Failure or Indulgence Not Waiver. No failure or delay on the part of the 
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Holder in the exercise of any power, right or privilege hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or
partial exercise of any such power, right or privilege preclude other or further exercise thereof or of any other right,
power or privileges. All rights and remedies existing hereunder are cumulative to, and not exclusive of, any rights or
remedies otherwise available. 

  
4.2             Notices. All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications required

or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served, (ii)
deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air
courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile, addressed as set forth
below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or other
communication required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand delivery or delivery
by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile machine, at the address or number
designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received), or the
first business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal business hours where
such notice is to be received) or (b) on the second business day following the date of mailing by express courier service,
fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing, whichever shall first occur. The addresses
for such communications shall be: 

  
If to the Borrower, to: 
  

XSUNX, INC. 
65 Enterprise 
Aliso Viejo, CA 92656 
Attn: TOM M. DJOKOVICH, Chief Executive Officer 
facsimile: 949-266-5823 

  
With a copy by fax only to (which copy shall not constitute notice): 

  
  
  

If to the Holder: 
  

  
  

With a copy by fax only to (which copy shall not constitute notice): 
  
  

4.3              Amendments. This Note and any provision hereof may only be amended by an instrument in
writing signed by the Borrower and the Holder. The term “Note” and all reference thereto, as used throughout this 
instrument, shall mean this instrument (and the other 
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Notes issued pursuant to the Purchase Agreement) as originally executed, or if later amended or supplemented, then as so
amended or supplemented. 

  
4.4              Assignability. This Note shall be binding upon the Borrower and its successors and assigns, and

shall inure to be the benefit of the Holder and its successors and assigns. Each transferee of this Note must be an
“accredited investor” (as defined in Rule 501(a) of the 1933 Act). Notwithstanding anything in this Note to the contrary,
this Note may be pledged as collateral in connection with a bonafide margin account or other lending arrangement. 

  
4.5              Cost of Collection. If default is made in the payment of this Note, the Borrower shall pay the

Holder hereof costs of collection, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. 
  
4.6              Governing Law. This Note shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the

State of New York without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party against the other
concerning the transactions contemplated by this Note shall be brought only in the state courts of New York or in the
federal courts located in the state and county of Nassau. The parties to this Note hereby irrevocably waive any objection
to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction
or venue or based upon forum non conveniens. The Borrower and Holder waive trial by jury. The prevailing party shall be
entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable attorney's fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this Note
or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule
of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed
modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or unenforceable
under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each party hereby
irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any suit, action or proceeding in
connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction Document by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified
mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this
Agreement and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing
contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by law. 

  
4.7              Certain Amounts. Whenever pursuant to this Note the Borrower is required to pay an amount in

excess of the outstanding principal amount (or the portion thereof required to be paid at that time) plus accrued and
unpaid interest plus Default Interest on such interest, the Borrower and the Holder agree that the actual damages to the
Holder from the receipt of cash payment on this Note may be difficult to determine and the amount to be so paid by the
Borrower represents stipulated damages and not a penalty and is intended to compensate the Holder in part for loss of the
opportunity to convert this Note and to earn a return from the sale of shares of Common Stock acquired upon conversion
of this Note at a price in excess of the price paid for such shares pursuant to this Note. The Borrower and the Holder
hereby agree that such amount of stipulated damages is not plainly disproportionate to the possible loss to the Holder
from the receipt of a cash payment without the opportunity to convert this Note into shares of Common Stock. 
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4.8              Purchase Agreement. By its acceptance of this Note, each party agrees to be bound by the

applicable terms of the Purchase Agreement. 
  
4.9              Notice of Corporate Events. Except as otherwise provided below, the Holder of this Note shall

have no rights as a Holder of Common Stock unless and only to the extent that it converts this Note into Common Stock.
The Borrower shall provide the Holder with prior notification of any meeting of the Borrower’s shareholders (and copies 
of proxy materials and other information sent to shareholders). In the event of any taking by the Borrower of a record of
its shareholders for the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other
distribution, any right to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire (including by way of merger, consolidation,
reclassification or recapitalization) any share of any class or any other securities or property, or to receive any other right,
or for the purpose of determining shareholders who are entitled to vote in connection with any proposed sale, lease or
conveyance of all or substantially all of the assets of the Borrower or any proposed liquidation, dissolution or winding up
of the Borrower, the Borrower shall mail a notice to the Holder, at least twenty (20) days prior to the record date specified
therein (or thirty (30) days prior to the consummation of the transaction or event, whichever is earlier), of the date on
which any such record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, right or other event, and a brief
statement regarding the amount and character of such dividend, distribution, right or other event to the extent known at
such time. The Borrower shall make a public announcement of any event requiring notification to the Holder hereunder
substantially simultaneously with the notification to the Holder in accordance with the terms of this Section 4.9. 

  
4.10          Remedies. The Borrower acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause

irreparable harm to the Holder, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby. Accordingly,
the Borrower acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Note will be inadequate and
agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Borrower of the provisions of this Note, that the Holder shall
be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to the penalties assessable
herein, to an injunction or injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this Note and to enforce specifically
the terms and provisions thereof, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security
being required. 

  
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower has caused this Note to be signed in its name by its duly authorized officer

this October 27, 2011. 
  

XSUNX, INC. 
  

By: _______________________________ 
TOM M. DJOKOVICH 
Chief Executive Officer

 



EXHIBIT A 
NOTICE OF CONVERSION 

  
The undersigned hereby elects to convert $_________________principal amount of the Note (defined

below) into that number of shares of Common Stock to be issued pursuant to the conversion of the Note (“Common 
Stock”) as set forth below, of XSUNX, INC., a Colorado corporation (the “Borrower”) according to the conditions of the 
convertible note of the Borrower dated as of October 27, 2011 (the “Note”), as of the date written below. No fee will be 
charged to the Holder for any conversion, except for transfer taxes, if any. 
  
Box Checked as to applicable instructions: 
  

[ ] The Borrower shall electronically transmit the Common Stock issuable pursuant to this Notice of Conversion to
the account of the undersigned or its nominee with DTC through its Deposit Withdrawal Agent
Commission system (“DWAC Transfer”). 

  
Name of DTC Prime Broker: 
Account Number: 

  
[ ] The undersigned hereby requests that the Borrower issue a certificate or certificates for the number of shares of

Common Stock set forth below (which numbers are based on the Holder’s calculation attached hereto) in
the name(s) specified immediately below or, if additional space is necessary, on an attachment hereto: 
  

  
Date of Conversion: _____________ 
Applicable Conversion Price: $____________ 
Number of Shares of Common Stock to be Issued 
Pursuant to Conversion of the Notes: ______________ 
Amount of Principal Balance Due remaining 
Under the Note after this conversion: ______________ 
  
Holder 
  
By:_____________________________ 
Name:  
Title:  
Date: ______________ 

  
  


